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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Arkade Developers Limited
(Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Arkade Developers Limited (‘the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, ('Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board's Report, the management report and chairman's report, but does not
include the financial statement and our auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using
the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or fo
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

1. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under
sub-section 10 of Section 143 of the Act will always detect a material misstatement when it e
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

3. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

4. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
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relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as appears from our examination of those books;

c¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the applicable Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31,
2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

a) Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended):

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position and
performance of the Company in the standalone financial statements. (refer note no. 35 to
the standalone financial statements).
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The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other

than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of

funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that

the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As per Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has
used accounting software's for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.
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h) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, being a private limited
company provisions of section 197 to the Act are not applicable to the company.

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 106456W

,_—-—/-:F
Hemant R Bohra
Partner

Mem. No.: 165667
UDIN: - 24165667BKEZEQ4544

Place : Mumbai
Date :June 10, 2024



Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Annexure "A” to Independent Auditor’'s Report

Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our Report
of even date on the accounts of Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers
Private Limited) for the year ended 31st March 2024,

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 and according to the information and
explanations given to us during the course of the audit and on the basis of such checks of the books and
records as were considered appropriate we report that:

(i) a) (i) The company has maintained proper records, showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment.

(i) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in
accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our opinion is reasonable,
considering the size of the company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us, in
accordance with this program certain Property Plant and Equipment were verified during the
year. The frequency of verification is reasonable and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such physical verification.

¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee, and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Hence, clause 3 (i) (c) is not applicable
to the company.

d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment and its intangible assets. Accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not
noticed on such physical verification.

b) As perthe information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and records examined
by us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital term loans in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
for the specific projects. Quarterly returns / statements and other information filed with such
Banks/ financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.
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(i) With respect to investments made in or any guarantee or security provided or any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, granted during the year by the Company to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties:

a) As per the information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and records
examined by us, during the year, the Company has made investments in various mutual fund
schemes. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or has not granted any
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
entities during the year. Hence paragraph 3 (iii) (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) & (f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under Sections 185. Further in our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act 2013 in respect of the investments made and the Company has not provided any
loans, guarantees or security to parties covered under Section 186 of the Act.

(V) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under fo the
extent notified.

(vi) The Central government has prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Act. We have not reviewed the cost records maintained by the company but based on the
information submitted by the company, we are of the view that such accounts and records have
been made and duly maintained.

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, employee's state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods & service tax, cess, tax
deducted at source and other statutory dues to the extent applicable to the Company.
According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no undisputed amount payable in respect of such statutory dues
which have remained outstanding as at 31st March, 2024 for a period more than six menths
from the date they became payable.

b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited
as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given below:

Nameof | Period to which Forum where dispute is

. Statute | amountrelates . pending -
Service Tax 2016-17 CESTAT

Goods & 2017-18 to 2020-21 Director General of Anti-
Service Tax Profiteering

2018-19 to 2020-21 357.86 | Additional Commissioner,
Thane
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2019-20 56.40 | Assistant Commissioner,
Thane
2020-21 to 2021-22 58.20 | Assistant Commissioner,
Thane
2020-21 to 2022-23 4801.65 | Joint Commissioner,
Thane

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are
not accounted in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in tax assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income
which has been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph
3(vili) of the Order is nat applicable to the Company.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to
any lender during the year.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
records of the Company, the working capital term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not taken any funds
from an any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates, or joint ventures.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

b) According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, the company has made preferential allotment of 15,00,00,000
fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each by way of issue of bonus shares to the existing
shareholders of the company. Further, we report that the company has complied with the
requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143 (12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not
required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

c¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received
by the Company during the course of audit. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the said Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with the section 177
and 188 of the Act, wherever applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 "Related Party
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued for the period under
audit, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the said Order is not
applicable.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India.
Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.
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¢) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

d) The Company does not have any CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated
in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable fo the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
overall financial statements of the Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the
current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions
stated in paragraph clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as
on the date of audit report and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from

the balance sheet date.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company has already spent the required amount as per the section
135 of the said Act.

(b) Since there is not any amount remaining unspent under section (5) of the section 135 of
the Act and hence clause (xx)(b) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given fo us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the under the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARQ) is not
applicable in respect of entities included in the consolidated financial statements, Hence, clause
xi is not applicable.

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 106456W

Mewmanil
Hemant R Bohra
Partner

Mem. No.: 165667
UDIN:- 24165667BKEZEO4544
Place :Mumbai

Date :June 10, 2024
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of Arkade Developers Limited (formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
for the year ended 31st March 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arkade Developers Limited
(“the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management ovenide of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 106456W

T

Hemant R Bohra
Partner

Mem. No.: 165667
UDIN:- 24165667BKEZEQ4544

Place :Mumbai
Date :June 10, 2024



Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Standalone Balance sheet as on March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
(3) Property, plant and equipment q 1,182.98 151.11
[B) Intangible assets 5 33.03 24.87
(e) Right-of-use assets 3 182,33 -
[d) Financial assets
[e) (i} Investments 7 1,829.33 1,710.27
(i} Loans 8 - -
(iii] Other financial assets § 235.06 637.24
[fi  Non-current tax assets (net) 10 217.58 108.60
[g) Deferred tax assets {net) 11.1 52.29 65.86
(R} Other non-current assets 12 2.85 B.25
Total non-current assets 3,734.96 2,746,20
Current assets
(2] Inventories 13 48,750,324 50,052.66
|b} Financial assets
{1} Investments T - -
(i1) Trade receivables 14 B05.23 368.52
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 15 2,302.77 1,656.80
(iv) Bank balances other than {iii) above 16 155.79 85.00
(v) Loans 8 11.14 9.07
{vi} Other financial assets 9 295,48 267.74
(e) Other current assets 12 1,376.57 328.97
Total current assets 53,737.22 52,768.78
Total assets 57.472.18 55,514.98
Equity and liabilities
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 17 15,200.00 200.00
[b) Other equity 18 17,140.23 19.821.19
Total equity 32,340.23 20,021.19
Liabilities
MNon-current liabilities
[a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 19 2,904.25 7.875.45
(i) Lease liabilities 6.2 14334
(il Other financial liabilities 20 - -
[b} Provisions 21 124,66 109.14
() Deferred Tax Laibilities [Net) 111 % =
Total non-current liabilities 3,172.25 7,984.59
Current liabilities
(a} Fimancial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 4,036.79 7,024.08
(i) Lease labilities 6.2 3857 -
(ill] Trade payables 22
= Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 1,012.35 796.63
-Total sutstanding dues of creditors other than micro 2,816.84 1,555.26
and smal| enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 20 452,77 1,362.86
|b] Other current liabilities 13 12,887.50 16,479.84
(e) Provisions 21 53233 290.53
|d] Current tax habilities [net) 14 182.54 -
Total current liabilities 21,959.69 27,509.20
Total equity and llabilities 57,472.18 55,514,98
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

As per our report of even date

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 106456W

Mownant
Hemantm:a

Partner

M No. 165667
Place: Mumbai
pate: June 10,2024

UDIN:- 2416566 TRKEZEOUSHY

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
| Revenue from operations 25 63,473.65 22,015.27
I |Other income 26 184.89 1,349.62
Il |Total income (I + 11} 63,658.54 23,364.89
IV |Expenses
(a) Cost of construction 27 41,639.73 33,442.84
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 28 1,262.42 (20,151.91)
(c) Employee benefit expense 29 1,670.19 1,708.34
(d) Finance costs 30 312.71 11871
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 113.84 27.12
(f} Other expenses 32 2,145.51 982.92
Total expenses (IV) 47,144.40 16,128.01
V  |Profit before tax (I11 - 1V) 16,514.15 7,236.88
VI |Tax expense
{1) Current tax 33 4,247.22 1,790.00
(2) Taxation for earlier year (41.27) -
(3) Deferred tax expense/ (credit) 11.1 13.58 (38.90)
Total tax expense [VI) 4,219.53 1,751.10
VIl |Profit for the year (V -VI) 12,294.62 5,485.79
VIl |Other comprehensive income
{A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) (Loss)/Gain on remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 18.3 (24.43) (3.82)
(b) Income tax on above - 2
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (24.43) (3.82)
IX |Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (VII+VII) 12,319.04 5,489.61
X |Earnings per equity share (Face value of % 10/- per share) 34
(1) Basic (%) 8.09 361
(2) Diluted (F) 8.09 361
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1-44
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are T in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particulars For Year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 16,514.15 7,236.88
Adjustments for;
Finance costs 312.71 118.71
Interest incorme (29.14) (35.89)
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net} 17.61 -
Fair value {gain} on investrments (net) - .
Loss / (gain) on sale of current investments (net) {23.72) (72.73)
Depreciation and amaortisation expenses 113.84 27.12
Operating profit before working capital changes 16,905.44 7,274.09
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets
Trade receivables (436.70) 155.48
Inventories 1,262,42 (20,151.90)
Other financial assets (Non-Current and Current} 374.44 (776.22)
Loans (2.07) [7.53)
Other assets (Non-Current and Current) {1,042.20) 741.16
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade payables 1,485.82 1,327.87
Pravisions (Non-Current and Current) 25723 (559.51)
Other financial liabilities (Non-Current and Current) [918.62) 602.00
Other current liabilities (3,592.34) 3,441.05
Changes in Working Capital (2,611.92) (15,227.61)
Cash generated from operations 14,293.52 (7,953.52)
Income taxes paid {MNet of Refund) {4,132.61) (1,752.65)
Net cash generated by operating activities 10,160.91 [9,706.17)
Cash flows from investing activities
(Irnvestment in) / Proceeds from Bank Deposits (70.79) 251.55
{Investment) / withdrawal from investments in subsidiary & associates firms (118.06) 1971
(Investrent in) / Proceeds from current investments 23,72 2,389.01
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (1,216.70) [60.26)
Interest Income 29.14 3589
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets 121.00 -
Net cash used in investing activities (1,232.68) 2,635.90
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 17,858.14 12,303.03
Repayment of borrowings (25,816.63) (3,702.65)
Payment of Lease Liabilities [40.72) -
Interest paid (307.43) (118.71)
Net cash (used in) / generated by financing activities (8,306.69) 8,481.67
Add [ Less : (Loss)/Gain on remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 24.43 382
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 645.97 1,415.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,656.80 241.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,302.77 1,656.80
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year {Refer Note 15) 2,302.77 1,656.80

Flow™.
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
As per our report of even date

For Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 106456W
M

Hem: ohra

Partner

M No. 165667
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The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS - 7) "Statement of Cash
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ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Sigaificant Accounting Policies forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Arkade Developers Limited is a Public Company domiciled in India and Incorporated on 13th May, 1986 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 having its registered oflice situated at Arkade House, Opp. Bhhomi Arkade, Ashok Magar, Kandivali East, Mumbai,
400 101, The company is primarily engaged in real estate development. The operations of the Company span all aspects of real cstate
development, from the identification and acquisition of land, to planning, execution, construction and marketing of Commercial and
residetial projects.

These standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on June 10, 2024,

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation

The Standalone Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2024, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (Including other comprehensive income),
the standalone statement of chanpes in Equity and the standalone cash flow statement, for the year ended 31.03.24, the summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (Cellectively, the "Standalone financial statements [ informaton. The
comparative financial information has not been included in these Standalonc financial statcments.

The Standalone Ind AS financial statements has been prapared by the management of the Company for the purpose of preparation of
Restated Consolidated Financial Statements for Inclusion in the Red herring prospectus (RHF) in connection with proposed initial public
offer ["IPO") of its equity shares, comprising a [resh issue of equity sharc (the "Proposed Offer”) under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended, (the "SEBI ICDR Regulations”] and rclavant provisions
of the companies act, 2013 (the "Act").

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the
Generally accepted Accounting Principles (GAAF) in India [Indian Accounting standards referred to as “IndAS") as specificd under the
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendments rules issucd there after and and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule I). These standalone financial statements are presented [n INR and all values are rounded to the nearcst Lakhs, except
when otherwise indicated.

The [nancial statements have been preparcd on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities:

1 Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value;

i, Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value.

iii, Investments in equity instruments, other than investments in subsidiary & associates firm, measured at fair value
thorugh profit & loss account (FVTFL).

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilitics in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An assct is treated as
current when it is:

= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or uscd to scttle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period

All other asscts are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

= Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability {or at least twelve months after the reparting period,

All other liabilities are classified as non-current,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash cquivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

2.3

2.4

Property, Plant & Equipments

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company.

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in asset’s carrying amount or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate, enly when it is probable that
future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognized.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under development as at the balance sheet
date.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost of intangible assets acquired in business combination
is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in
statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost
of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-

generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable, If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis, The Company has assessed indefinite
life for such brand considering the expected usage, expected investment on brand, business forecast and challenges to establish a premium
electronic segment. These are carried at historical cost and tested for impairment annually.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.

Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on pro-rata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives preseribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013,

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used which are aligned with useful lives defined in schedule I of
Companies Act, 2013 :

Fixed Asset Name No. Of Years Useful
Life

Buildings (Temporary Structures) 3 Years

Vehicles (Car) 8 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Computers & Mohiles J Years

Leasehold Improvements Period of the initial
lease

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Network and Server 6 Years




ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

2.5

2.6

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their
useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by
changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets other than having indefinite life :

Class of Asset Useful lives

Computer Software 8 Years

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Companys of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by waluation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Company bases its impairment caleulation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. Thes= budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subseguent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or esuntries in which the Company operates, or for the
market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except
for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCl. For such properties, the impairment is recognized in OCI up to
the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill and intangible assets having indefinite life, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverzble amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is
limited so that the earrying amount of the asset daes not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

As per the assessment conducted by the Company there were no indications that the non-financial assets have suffered an impairment loss
during the reporting periods.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise fo a financial aszet of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities ate initally measured ar fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities [other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assels ar financial liahilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.




ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

26.1

2.6.2

2.6.3

2.0.4

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subseguently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

sthe asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect eontractual cash flows: and

+ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on th
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (sxcept
for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recopnition):

+ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual eash flows and selling financial assets
and

+ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on th
principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and
losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of 'Resérve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income'. When
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caiculating the amorrised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that ‘exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income" line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other eomprehensive income for investments in equity instruments, which
are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that de not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOC] criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTQCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or delit instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the pains and Insses on them on different bases, The Company has not designated any
debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurements recognised in profit or loss, The net gain or loss recugnised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line itera, Dividend on financial assets at FYTPL is recognised when the Company's
right to receive the dividends is established, it is probabie that the sconomic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
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ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Pril.rate Limited)

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

26.5

2.6.6

2.6.7

2.7
2.7.1

2.7.2

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs,

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

+it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

= on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actue
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or ;

*it is a denvative that is not designated and effective as a hédgl"ng instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company's right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend win flow to the entity, the dividend dees not represent a
recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in prefit or loss is
included in the 'Other income' line item. )

The Company has not elected for the FYTOCI irrevocable option for this investment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets. The impairment methadology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or
another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 1B, the Company always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash Mows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received,

On derecognition ef a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety {e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts,

Finaneial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity .

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial Hability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
Deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issu=d by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.,




ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Frivate Limited)

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
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274

2.7.9

2.76

2.8

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Finaneial labilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial Hability is classified as held for trading if: '

It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

+ on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actus
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

+it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

+ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

» the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the Companying is provided internally on that basis; or

+ it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities {including borrewings and trade and otner payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate] a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability, Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries

The investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost as per IND AS 27, The Company regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity
(the investee), determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. The Company controls an investee when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee.

Thus, the Company controls an investee if and only if it has all the following:

» power over the investee;

* exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
+ the ability to use its power over the investee to aiffect the amount of the returns.

Investments are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of investment, the
difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss,
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Inventories
Inventories comprise of (ij Construction materials and consumables (iij Construction Work-In-Progress representing properties under
construction/development (iii) Finished Inventories representing unsold units in completed projects

'

The construction materials and consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

The construction work in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, Cost includes cost of land, development rights, rates and
taxes, construction costs, borrowing costs, other direct expenditure, allocated overheads and other incidental expenses.

Finished stock of completed projects and stock in trade of units is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contacts with customer is recognized when conltrol of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured based
on the transaction price which is the consideration, adjusted for discount and other credits, if any, as specified in the contract with
customer. The company presents revenue from contracts with customer net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss. The company
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent, The Company has concluded
that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangement.

Income from property development

The company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated in determining the transaction price, the company considers the effect of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

The company satisfies a performance obligation and ﬂ:i:o:gnize the revenue over the time if the company’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Company and it has an enforceabls right to receive payment for performance completed till the date on
the basis of the agreement entered with customers, otherwise revenue is recognized peint in time. The revenue is recognized at the point in
time when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer and the performance obligation is satisfied i.e. on transfer of legal title of
the residential unit and on completion of praject and occupation certificate is received,

In respect of property under development, Company starts recognising the revenue once the construction linked milestone is achieved with
respect to project cost incurred and work progress. '

When it is not possible to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation and the company expect to recover the cost incurred
in satisfying the performance obligation revenue is recognized cnly to the extent of the cost incurred until such time that it can reasonably
measure the outcome of the performance obligation

The company becomes entitled to invoice customers for construction of residential and commercial properties based on achieving a series of
construction-linked milestones. When the company satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates
a contract asset based on the amount of consideration earned hy the performarnce. Any amount previously recognized as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivable at the point when the company has the right to receive the consideration that is unconditional. If a customer
pays consideration before the company transfer goods or services to the customer, the contract liability is recognized when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue, when the Company performs under the
caontract.

Income Tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax pavable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax
rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses,

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of ameunts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.12.1

2.12.2

2.13

2.13.1

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates [and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted to apply when the related deferred income tax assets is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets and Hlabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Employee Benefits:

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-moenetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Post-employment

Defined contribution plan
The Company makes specified monthly contribution towerds employee provident fund to Employees' Provident Fund. The Company's
contributions to the fund are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which the employee renders the service.

Defined benefit plan i

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined
based on actuarial valuation carried at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows, The discount rate used for determining the present value of
the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date.

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or
loss: g T
Service cosis comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements

Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and lesses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit iability and the return on plan assets (sxoluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability], are
recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee .

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for office and other premises. The Company applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to uze the underlying assets.
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2.13.3

2.14

(a) Right-of-use assets (ROU)

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (ie/, the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is caleulated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

(b) Lease Liabilities i

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term, The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of & purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease i not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the earrying amount of lease liabiiities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged o profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining talance of the liability for each period.

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occur.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately preé.ented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing
cash flows. Lease liabilities have been included in financial liabilities.

(e) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases [Le., those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases. For operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Transition to Ind AS

The following is the summary of practical expedient= ejected on initial application:

*Applied a single discount rate to a partiolio of leases of similar assets in simiiar economic environment with a similar end date

sApplied the exemption not to recognise right-af-uss assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of
initial application, variable lease and low value asset.

*Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

Segment reporting :

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
Board of directors monitors the operating results of all product segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

+  Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment including inter-segment revenue.

+ Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the segment result. Expenses which
relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are included under unallocable expenditure.

* Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in unallocable income.

+ Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. Unallocable assets and liabilities represent
the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole and noet allocable to any segment.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net pmﬁt or loss for the peried attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted averape number of equity shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consclidation of
shares) if any that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net prefit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to real estate project development activities are inventorised / capitalized as part of project
cost.

Borrowing costs are inventorised / capitalised as part of project cost when the activities that are necessary to prepare the inventory / asset
for its intended use or sale are in progress. Borrowing costs are suspended {rom inventorisation / capitalisation when development work on
the project is interrupted for extended periods and there is no iimminent certainty of recommencement of work.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the perwd in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the
Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cagh at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in Indian mupee () which is also the Company's functional currency. Foreign currency
transaction are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency item at the bzlance sheet date:

+Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are transiated at the exchange rates prevailing on the
reporting date.

+Non-menetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in z foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

Exchange differences:

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit
& Loss.
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2,19.1

2.19.2

2,193

2.20

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities

Provisions:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation, These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement. '

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance
cost in respective expense.

Provision for Defects Liabilities and Repairs

As per, Real Estate (Regulation and Developrnent] Act, 20'6 (RERA) vide section 14(3) a builder or developer will be liable to repair any
defect, on the building sold, for a period of Five years. Further, as per the terms of contracts with customers, the company is liable for any
defects, repairs and other claims for ertain period after completion and handover of the possession of developed properties. Provision for
defect liability and repairs is recognized when sales from contracts with customer is recognized. Certain percentage to the sales recognised
iz applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for expense to be accrued, The recognition percentage is based on
management estimates of the possible future incidence. The claims against defect liability and repairs from customers may not exactly
match the historical percentage, so such estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of
occurrence and revised accordingly.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nomn-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not recognize a
contingent lability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resaurces is remote,

Fair value measurement

that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either;

+In the principal market for asset or liability, or
+In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageatis market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use. ’ '

The Company uses valuation techniques that are apgropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant ghservable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclozed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

= Level 1- Quoted{unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

+ Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indireetly
ohservable

* Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
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For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has detennined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

Critical accounting estimates, judgement and assumptions

The preparation of these standalone financial statements reguires the management to make judgments, use estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgements, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

i. Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable
income. Given the wide range of business relationships differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future
changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes
provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax
assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.

ii. Employee benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation iz highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate, managemant considers the interest rates of long term government bonds with
extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly
available mortality tables for India. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for India.

iii. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal, contractor
and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The
assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use
of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

iv. Property Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent significant pertion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodie depreciation
is derived after determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The useful life and
residual value of Company's assets are determined by Managemsnt at the time asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the
end of each year. The useful life is based on historical experience with similar assets, in anticipation of future events, which may have
impact on their life such as change in technology.

v. Impairment of non-financial assets .

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset including intangible assets having indefinite
useful life and goodwill may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverahle amount is the higher of an asset’s CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal
and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset ar CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use | the estimated future cash flows are estimated based on past trend and
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation mode! is used, These caleulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other
fair value indicators. )
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vi. Provisions for Defect liability and repairs

As per, Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA) vide section 14(3) a builder or developer will be liable to repair any
defect, on the building sold, for a period of Five years, Further, as per the terms of contracts with customers, the company is liable for any
defects, repairs and other claims for ertain period after completion and handover of the possession of developed properties. Provision for
defect liability and repairs is recognized when sales from contracts with customer is recognized. Certain percentage to the sales recognised
is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for expense to be accrued. The recognition percentage is based on
management estimates of the possible future incidence. The claims against defect liability and repairs from customers may not exactly
match the historical percentage, so such estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of
occurrence and revised accordingly.

vii. Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets

The company lollows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Under this approach the
company does not track changes in credit risk but recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, For
this purpose the company uses a provision matrix to determine the impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The said
matrix is based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables duly adjusted for forward looking
estimates.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposures, the company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit
loss(ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent
period, eredit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and 'meaj_rrﬁent 10:'55':. the: Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a
timely basis.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-
month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resuits from defaualt events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive (i.e,, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. The ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal|
recognized during the period in the statement of profit and loss and the eumulative loss is reduced from the carrying amount of the asset
until it meets the write off criteria, which is generally when no cash flows are expected to be realised from the asset.

viii. Impairment for Investments in Subsidiary & Assocites

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries are impaired requires an estimate in the value in use of investments. In considering
the value in use, the Directors have anticipated the future operating margins, resources and availability of infrastructure, discount rates
and other factors of the underlying businesses/operations of the investee companies. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to
changes in the above-mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of investments,

ix. Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not
to be exercised. Wherever, lease contracts that include extension and termination options, the Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant
factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise
or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued frem time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below:
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(i Ind AS 103 - Reference to Concepiual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) izssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These
changes do not significantly change the reguirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant
impact in its Financial Statements.

(iij Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling
items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and
related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant, and
equipment in its Financial Statements.

{(iii) Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate
directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts, The amendment is essentially a clarification, and the Company does not expect the
amendment to have any significant impact in its Financial Statements.

{iv) Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS [2022)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent' test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its Financial Statements.

(v) Ind AS 116 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2022)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration.
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its Financial Statements.

.
Y

*




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

3 Statement of Changes in Equity
2] Equity share capital

[For year ended March 31, 2024

Changes in equity share capital | Restated balance at April 1,| Changes in equity share | Balance as at March
Bal April 1, 202

alance as at April 1, 2023 due to prior period errors 2023 capital during the year 31, 2024

| 200.00 - 200.00 15,000.00 15,200.00
Ewﬂ:e year ended March 31, 2023

Changes in equity share capital |Restated balance at April 1,| Changes in equity share | Balance as at March
DRt A, P22 vt sty vk mivont 022 capital during the year 31, 2023
[ 20000 2 700.00 2 200.00
{b) Other equity

Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Securities premium I ement of
i
Balance as at April 1, 2023 1,879.16 17,946.11 (4.09) 18,821.18
Changes in decounting palicy - Z < =
Restated balance as at Aprll 1, 2023 1,879.16 17,946.11 (4.08) 19,821 18
Prafit for the year - 12,294,862 = 12,294.62
Less: Utilised far Banus lssue (1,879.18) (13,120 84) ¥ [15,000.00)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation, nat of income tax - - 18.43 24.43
Total comprehensive (loss)/Gain for the year (1,879.15) |826.23) 24.43 17,140.22
Securities premium on shares issusd (net of share issue costs) & - <L
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 17,118.88 20.34 17,140.22 |
Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Securities premium Retalned eamings Remeasurement of
defined benefit plan

Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,879.16 12,460.32 [r.a1) 14,331.57
(Changes in accounting policy - - - -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 1,879.16 12,460.32 [7.00) 14,331.57
Prefit for the year - 5,885,739 - 5,485.79
Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation, net of Income tax - - 3.82 3.82
Total comprehensive [loss)/Gain for the year - 5,485.79 1.82 5,989, 61
Securities premium on shares issued (net of share issue costs) - = - =
Balance as at March 21, 2023 1,879.16 17,945.11 [3.08] 19,871.18

Significant Accounting Policies and Motes to Ac

As per our report of even date

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accauntants
Firm Reg. No.: 106456W

Lommntt”

Hemia Bahra

1-24

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arkade Developers Umited

Amit Jain Arpit Jain
Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director
M Na. 165667 DIN : 0p139764 DIN : 0GRS5631
Plaee: Mumbal
oes: June 10,2024 ;
UDIN{~ 24165667@KEZEOASHH iy, Nebst
Samshet Shetye Sheetal Salani
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M No. : A45963

Place: Mumbai

Date ; :rl.ll"le- ‘ O' 202-,'!
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are  in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

5 _Intangible assets

Particulars

Computer Software

Total

I. Cost/Deemed cost

Balance as at April 1, 2022
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Il. Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2022
Amortisation expense for the year
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance asat March 31, 2023
Amortisation expense for the year
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at March 31, 2024

|11l Net block balance (I-11)
As on March 31, 2024
As on March 31, 2023
As on April 1, 2022

24.87

24.87

24.87

24.87

8.16

8.16

33.03

33.03

33.03
24.87

33.03
24.87

5.1 The Company has not revalued its intangible assets as on each reporting year and therefore Schedule Ill disclosure requirements

with respect to fair value details is not applicable.

5.2 The computer software under Intangible assets is having useful life of indefinite period and hence not amortised.




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

6 Right-of-use assets
|Parti|:ulars

Premises Total
I. Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2022
Additions -
Termination - 7
Balance asat March 31, 2023 - =
Additions 217.61 217,61
Termination - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 217.61 217.61
Il. Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2022 * :
Amortisation expense for the year =
Eliminated on termination - =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - ]
Amortisation expense for the year 35.28 35.28
Eliminated on termination - X
Balance as at March 31, 2024 35.28 35.28
Ill. Net block balance (I-11)
As on March 31, 2024 182.33 182.33
As on March 31, 2023 - s
6.1 Details of lease liabilities
Particulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
As at beginning of the year
Recognised during the year 207.99
Finance cost accrued during the year 14.65
Derecognised during the year -
Payment of lease liabilities (40.72)
As at end of the year 181.92 -
6.2 Classification of lease liabilities
Particulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-current 143.34
Current 38.57
Total 181.92 -
6.3 Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
Particulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amortisation expenses on right-of-use assets 3528
Interest expenses on lease liability 14.65
Expenses related to short term leases 8.21

Gain on early termination of lease

6.4 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities of non-cancellable contractual

commitments as on an undiscounted basis.

More than five years

Particulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Less than one year 56.94

One to five years 172.29

6.5 The company does not face a significant liguidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to

meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

6.6 The company has taken assets including offices on lease. The average lease term is 3-5 years as at each March, 31 2024,

6.7 The total cash outflows for leases amounts to X 48.93 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2023: % Nil) (includes cash

outflow from short term and long term leases).

oy
Iy




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

7 Investments

As at March 31, 2023
No. of Units Amount

As at March 31, 2024
No. of Units Amount

Particular

Non-current
Unguoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Current Capital of Subsidiaries

Arkade Paradigm

Atul & Arkade Realty
Bhoomi & Arkade Associates

Total

Investments in Current Capital of Associates

- 6.95

- 1,750.04
- 63.35

Arkade Realty - 8.98 12.12

0.89

1,697.26

1,820.33

1,710.27

Total aggregate unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of cost of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of cost of unguoted investments - 1,829.33 1,710.27
|Aggregate amount of impairment value of investments - =

7.1 The Company is compliant with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017).

7.2 Details of Investment in Partnership Firms:
(i} M/s Arkade Paradigm

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Name of the Partners Shiaje bEEaEh Total Capital Shiare uf Each Total Capital
partner partner
(s8) Amount (%) Amaunt
Arkade Developers Ltd. 95.00 6.95 95.00 0.89
Amit M Jain 5.00 0.10 5.00 0.05
Total Capital 100.00 7.06 100.00 0.94
(i) M/s Arkade Realty
As at 31st March 2024 As at 315t March 2023
Name of the Partners Shinre: of ey Total Capital SRt END Total Capital
partner partner
(%) Amount (%) Amount
Arkade Developers Ltd. 70.00 898 70.00 1212
Pratik Jain 30.00 23.12 30.00 5.19
Total Capital 100.00 32.10 100.00 17.32
(1il) M/s Atul & Arkade Realty
As at 31st March 2024 As at 315t March 2023
Name of the Partners Shive of Each Total Capital Shwee of Each Total Capital
partner partner
(56) Amount (%) Amount
Arkade Developers Ltd. 40.00 1,750.04 40.00 1,697.26
Atul Projects India Ltd. 60.00 1,750.71 60.00 1,652.24
Total Capital 100.00 3,500.75 100.00 3,349.50
(iv) M/s Bhoomi & Arkade Assoclates
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Name of the Partners Share b Each Total Capital Shoute 6t Ebiiy Total Capital
partner partner
(52) Amount (%) Amount
Arkade Developers Ltd, 34.00 63.35 34.00 (32.75)
Bhoomi Shashwat Estate Put. Ltd, 66.00 102.33 66.00 (79.07)
Total Capital 100.00 165.68 100.00 {111.82)




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are ® in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

8 Loans
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Non-current - unsecured, considered good
(a) Loans to employees B .
Total - =
Current - unsecured, considered good
(a) Loans to employees 11.14 9.0v
Total 11.14 9.07
9 Other financial assets
L As at March 31, 2024 | Asat March 31, 2023
Non Current - unsecured, considered good
(a) Deposits with bank
- Margin money deposits with banks (held as lien by bank) 219.80 63724
(b) Security deposits 15.26 -
Total 235.06 637.24
Current - unsecured, considered good
(a) EMD Deposits with societies 267.00 200.00
(b) Security deposits 8.89 2.99
(c) Other receivables 19.59 64.75
Total 295.48 267.74
10 Non-current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | Asat March 31, 2023
Advance tax (net of provisions) 217.58 108.60
Total 217.58 1DB.ED=




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

1

Deferred tax asset (net)

11.1 Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2024

11.2

Particulars Opening Balance as| Recognised in Recognised in Recognised | Closing balance as
on April 1, 2023 Profit or loss Other directlyin  |on March 31, 2024
(expense)/ credit | comprehensive Equity
income
Property, plant and equipment (2.49) 843 - - 5.00
Provisions 37.62 12.35 - = 49.97
Disallowances under Income Tax 30.74 (30.74) 4 % =
ROU Assets, Lease Liability, Security Deposits
and Loan Processing Fees : (3.68) ” ” (3.68)
Total 65.86 {13.58) - - 52.29
Deferred tax asset/[liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars Opening Balance as| Recognised in Recognised in Recognised | Closing balance as
on April 1, 2022 Profit or loss Other directlyin  [on March 31, 2023
{expense)/ credit | comprehensive Equity
income
Property, plant and equipment 0.17 (2.65) - - (2.49)
Pravisions 26.79 10.83 = 2 37.62
Disallowances under Income Tax - 30,74 - = 30.74
Total 26.96 38.91 - - 65.86




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

12 Other assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Non-current
(a) Prepaid Expenses 2.85 8.25
(b) Capital Advance - -
Total 2.85 B.25
Current
(a) Security deposits given against purchase of land - -
(b) Balance with Government Authorities™® B75.49 187.13
(c) Advance to Suppliers 15.06 90.27
(d) Prepaid Expenses** 478.05 14.92
(e) Interest Accrued and due 3.70 24.93
(f) Other Receivables 4.27 11.72
Total 1,376.57 328.97

I

* Balance with Government Authorities as at 31st March, 2024 includes deposits towards Court Fees amounting to Rs. 43.66

Lakhs and GST Appeal Fees amounting to Rs. 38.17 Lakhs

** Prepaid Expenses as at 31st March, 2024 Includes Rs. 216.54 Lakhs towards expenses incurred in relation to Initial Public

Offer.
13 Inventories

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

At lower of cost or net realisable value

14

(a) Work in Progress (Project) 48,790.24 48,978.13
(b) Finished Goods - 1,074.53
Total 48,790.24 50,052.66
Trade receivables
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Trade receivables
(a) Unsecured, considered good 80523 368.52
{b) Unsecured, credit Impaired - -
805.23 368.52
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
Total 805.23 368.52

14.1 The average credit period on sales of goods is 15 days.

14.2 Considering the inherent nature of business of the Company, Customer credit risk is minimal. The Company generally does not
part away with its assets unless trade receivables are fully realised. Wherever there is doubt an recovery, the Company makes

adequate provision based on best estimation of recovery.

Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, management believes there is no credit risk
provision required, other than thase made in the accounts, if any. Also the Company does not have any significant concentration

of credit risk.
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Notes to the Standalane Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

15 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

{a) Cash on hand 0.67 0.26

(b) Balances with banks in current account 2,302.11 1,656.52

Total 2,302.77 1,656.80

15.1 There is no repatriation restriction with regard to cash and cash equivalents at the end of reporting and prior

periods.

16 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

{a) Term deposits with banks (with original maturity of more than 155.79 85.00

three months but less than twelve months)

(held as margin money with Banks for guarantees)

Total 155.79 85.00
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

18 Other equity
Paticulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Securities premium - 1,879.16
Retained earnings 17,119.88 17,946.11
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 20.35 {4.08)
Total 17,140.23 19,821.19

18.1 Securities premium

Paticulars For year ended March | For year ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 1,879.16 1,879.16
Securities premium arising on issue of equity shares - z
Securities premium utilised for issuing of bonus shares (1,879.16) -
Balance at end of the year - 1,879.16

Amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. It will be used as per the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares, write-off equity

related expenses like underwriting costs, etc.

18.2 Retained earnings

Paticulars For year ended March | For year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 17,946.11 12,460.32
Less: Utilised for Bonus |ssue (13,120.84) -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 12,294.62 5,485.79
Balance at end of the year 17,119.88 17,946.11

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any transfers to General Reserve, dividends or ather
distributions to shareholders. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company,

18.3 Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Paticulars

For year ended March

For year ended March

31, 2024 31, 2023
Balance at beginning of the year (4.08) (7.91)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 24,43 3.82
Income tax on abave =
Balance at end of the year 20.35 (4.08)

Includes re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and

loss.

19 Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Non Current
Secured from banks:
Vehicle Loan from Bank 62.14 92.13
Loan from Bank
Term Loan from Non-Bank Financial Companies 2,842.11 7,783.31
2,904.25 7,875.45
Current
Secured from banks:
Current maturities of long term loans from banks 12.36 27.72
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Loan from related parties (refer note 39) 4,024.43 6,946.35
Intercorporate Deposits - 50.00
4,036.79 7,024.08
//(_ eVo ,\\ Total 6,941.04 14,899.53
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Notes

to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

20

20.1

21

22

22.1

Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Non-current
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Security deposits received - -
Total = =
Current
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Security deposits received from customer 135.64 187.02
Interest accrued but not due - 25.42
Society maintenance liabilities (net of expense incurred) 27.33 62.44
Employee Benefits payable 100.54 519.55
Accrued Expenses 15.64 13.29
Project Expenses Payable 173.62 545.75
Other payables - 9.40
Total 452.77 1,362.86
Refer note 39 on financial instruments.
Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity. 110.19 104.28
- Leave Encashment 14.48 4.86
Total 124.66 109.14
Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 17.10 17.40
- Leave Encashment 3.02 0.99
Provision for defect liability & repairs 512.22 27213
Total 532.33 290.53
Trade payables
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 2023
2024
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 1,012.35 796.63
(b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2,816.84 1,555.26
Total 3,829.19 2,351.90

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days.

22.2 For explanations on the Company’s liquidity risk management processes Refer note 39.3 (iii)
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

22.4 Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act):
The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006’ has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

23

24

Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

(a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 1,012.35 796.63

remaining unpaid as at period end

(b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid 370 -

as at period end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the -

appointed day during the period

(e) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, te suppliers registered -

under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the period

(d} Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the 2

MSMED Act,beyond the appointed day during the period

(e) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for =

payments already made

(g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier periods %

Other current liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Statutory remittances 599.30 987.60

Advance from Customers 12,288.19 15,459.50

Current Account balance with Partnership Firms & LLP's . 32.75

Total 12,887.50 16,479.84

Current tax liabilities (net of advance tax)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Income tax payable (net of advance tax & TDS) 182.54 2

Total 182.54 -




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwlse stated

25 Revenue from operations

ek For Year ended March | For year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Sale of Properties 63,444,326 21,915.67
Other operating revenues
Development and amenities charges frem Sale of Flats 2929 99.61
Total 53!473.65 255015.2?

25.1 The Company has provided far impairment |asses, if any, based on expected credit loss policy on trade receivable recognised in statement of profit and

loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

25,2 Contract balances

Refer details of trade receivables in note 14 & advance from customers in note 23

25.3 The Company receives payments from custemers as per agreed contractual terms and payment schedules. Accounts receivable are recorded when the

right to consideration becomes unconditional.

25.4 Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

Particulars For Year ended March | Foryear ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Revenue from contracts with customers 63,444.36 21,915.67
Add: Credits / Returns - .
Contracted price with the customers 63,444.36 ___21,915.67 |
26 Other income
Particulars For Year ended March | For year ended March
31, 2024 31,2023
Interest Income on flanancial assets measures at amortised cost
- From bank deposits 9,77 27.14
- From delayed payments by custamers 18.49 8.75
- From security deposites 0.88 -
29.14 35.89
Other gains and |losses
- Net gain arising on financial investments measure = #
at FVTPRL
- Gain on sale of current investments 23.72 72.73
23.72 72.73
Other non-operating income
- Cancellation Charges Received from Customers # 4.94
- Commission Received 22.07 1D0.79
- Sundry Balance written back 16.62 804.74
- Share of Profit/(Loss) from Investment in Partnership Firms & LLP (Net) 87.46 414.47
- Miscellaneous income 5.87 6.06
132.03 1,241.00
Total 184.89 1,349.62
27 Cost of Constructions
For Year ended March | For year ended March
Particulars 31, 2024 31, 2023
Land & Land Related cost 13,874.64 14,439.11
Construction Cost 24.774.00 17,155.23
Allocated expenses to project:
Fimance cost [refer note 30) 1,354.44 662.39
Employee benefits expense (refer note 29) - 50.00
Other expenses (refer note 32) 1,636.64 1,136.12
Total 41,639.73 33,442.84
28 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in prograss
particulars For Year ended March | For year ended March
31, 2024 31,2023
Inventaories at the beginning of the year
-Finished Units (Completed Projects) 1,074.53 -
-Waork in Progress (Projects under construction / development]) 48,978.13 29,900.75
| e ear
-Finished Units (Completed Projects) & 1,074.53
-Work in Progress (Projects under construction / development) 48,790.24 48,978.13
Net (increase)/decrease 1,262.42 (20,151.91)
—_— - — = ="




Arkade Developers Limited [Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwlse stated

29 Emplayee benefits expense

Particulars For Year ended March | For year ended March
31 2024 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,211.93 687.90
Director's Remuneration & Bonus 331.40 1,017.02
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 37) 1123 4.64
ESIC Contribution 0.65 0.72
Gratuity (Refer note 38) 30,03 23.60
Leave Encashment 11.64 1.29
Staff Training & Recruitment Expense 46.02 15.48
Staff welfare expenses 27.28 7.69
1,670.19 1,758.34
Employee benefits expense allocated to Cost of Constructions (refer note 27) . (50.00)
Total 1,670.19 1,708.34
AL
30 Finance cost
For Year ended March | Foryear ended March
— 31,2024 31,2023
Interest cost - on financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Borrowings from banks 7.10 1166
- Borrowings from NBFC's 737.17 114.77
- Borrowings from Others £34.81 610.61
- Lease Liabilities 14.65
Transaction cost related 1o long term borrowings 246.44 2.37
Bank Charges and Stamp Duty Charges on long term borrowings 26.99 41.68
1,667.15 T8L.09
Finance cost allocated to Cost of Constructians (refer note 27) (1,354.44) [662.39)
Tatal 312,71 118.71
31 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Particulars For Year ended March| For year ended March
31,2024 31, 3023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 78.57 27.12
Amortisation of intangible assets * 3 °
Right-of-use assets 35,28 -
Total 113.84 27.12
* The computer software under Intangible assets is having useful life of indefinite period and hence not amortised.
32 Other expenses
Particulars For Year ended March | For year ended March
31, 2024 31,2023
Brokerage & Commission B60.31 460.38
Business Pramotion & Advertising 1,383.26 782,14
Computer Expenses 1.23 183
Directors Sitting Fees 7.09 =
Donation & CSR Expense 125.08 B3.27
Electricity Charges 3.48 4.73
Expenses to Increase Autorized Share Capital 173.85 =
House Keeping Expenses 74.87 31.54
Insurance Expenses 21.78 B8.59
Auditors Remuneration (As per Note 32.1) 4.00 4,00
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 17.61 -
Legal & Professional Fees 79B.68 549.51
Mator Car Expenses 4.06 5.77
Printing & stationary 8.54 10.87
Rent paid B.21 -
Repair B Maintenance Expenses - Others 6.58 9.76
Security Expenses 101.44 72.38
GST Reversed / Paid - ¥
Saftware & IT related Expenses 7.00 19.71
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 17.39 21.39
Miscellaneous Expenses 157.70 53.16
3,782.15 2,119.04
Other expenses allocated to Cost of Constructions {refer note 27) (1,636.64) (1,136.12)
Total 2,145,51 982.92
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Arkade Developers Limited [Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the S5tandalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

A For Year ended March | For year ended March
321 k
Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses (net of GST} 31 2024 31, 2023
(i) For audit 4.00 4.00
(i} For taxation matters - -
(i} For other services e -
(iv) For certification work i -
(v} Auditors out-of-pocket expenses = E
Total 4.00 4,00
32.2 Expenses on corporate social responsibility
No, |Particulars For Year ended March | For year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Gross amount reguired to be spent by the Company during the period/ year {under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013) 104.73 76.62
2| Amount of expenditure incurmed
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - =
(il) On purposes other than (i} above 120011 79.39
3 |Amount not spend during the year on:
(i} Construction/acquisition of any asset -
(i) On purposes other than (i) above - -
3|Shortfall at the end of the year - -
4| Total of previous years shortfall - =
5|Reason for shortfall
- Adoption of long gestation program/project
&|Amount yet to be spent/paid = o
7|Details of Related party transactions
- Contributions 1o the trust in which directors are trustee a6.88 21.33
8|Liability incurred by entering into contractual obligations - 4
9|Mature of C5R activities: a. Promofing health| a. Promoting health
care including|care including
preventive health care|preventive health care
and sanitation and sanitation
b. Protection of Artf|b. Protection of Art/
culture culture
. Ensuringlc. Ensuring
environmental environmental
sustainability and|sustainability and
maintaining gquality offmaintaining guality of]
soil, air and water soil, air and water
d. Eradicating hunger,|d. Eradicating hunger,
powverty and| poverty and malnitrition
malnitrition




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

33 Current Tax and Deferred Tax

33.1 Income Tax Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

et For year ended March| For year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Current Tax:
Current income tax charge 4,247 22 1,790.00
Short provision of tax relating to earlier years (41.27) =
4,205.95 1,790.00
Deferred Tax expense/ (credit)
In respect of current period 13.58 (38.90)
13.58 {38.90)
Total tax expense/(credit) recognised in statement of profit and loss 4,219.53 1,751.10

33.2 Income Tax recognised in other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

For year ended March
31,2024

For year ended March
31, 2023

Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets:
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligations
Total

33.3 Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate:

Partir For year ended March| For year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023

Profit/{Loss) before tax 16,514.15 7,236.88
Less: Income taxed at different tax rate (23.72) (72.73)
Profit/(Loss) Before tax 16,490.42 7,164.15
Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate # 4,150.31 1,803.07
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 89.17 35.98
Effect of income that is not taxable in determining taxable profit (22.01) (104.31)
Effect of income taxed at different rate = 21.23
Effect of adoption of Ind AS 29.75 34.03
Income tax related earlier year (41.27) S
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 4,205.95 1,790.00

# The tax rate used for the reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of plus surcharge (as applicable) on corporate tax, education cess
and secondary and higher education cess on corporate tax, payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under Income Tax Act,

1961.

In pursurance of Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 announced by the Government of India through Taxation Laws {Amendment)
Ordinance, 2019, the Company has opted for irrevocable option of shifting to lower tax rate w.e.f FY 19-20.

33.4 The Company does not have any unrecorded income and assets related to previous years which are required to be recorded during the

year.
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34 Earning per share

Particulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(a) Profit/Loss for the year 12,294.62 5,485.79

{b) Weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding for the purpose of 20,00,000 20,00,000
basic earnings per share (numbers) at beginning of the period

(c) Effect of Issued of ordinary bonus shares (Numbers)* 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000

(d) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in computing diluted earnings per 15,20,00,000 15,20,00,000
share [[b) + (c}] (numbers)

{e) Earnings per share on Profit for the year (Face Value X 10/- per share)

- Basic [(a)/(b)] (%) 8.09 3.61

— Diluted [(a)/(d)] (%) 8.09 3.61

*Note : Pursuant to the resolution passed in the meeting of shareholders held on July 06, 2023, the Company has allotted 15,00,00,000
equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each, as a bonus Shares in the ratio of 1: 75 to the existing equity shareholders. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 presented above are restated and
accordingly basic and diluted earning per share have been calculated after considering the bonus issue of shares.

35 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for}

Particulars For year ended As at March 31,
March 31, 2024 2023

Contingent liabilities :

(i) Bank Guarantees 357.50 190.00

(1i) Demands/Claims by Government Autharities not acknowledged as debts and contested/to be

contested by the Company:

Service Tax - FY 2016-17 8.85 8.85

Goods & Service Tax - FY 2017-18 to FY 2022-23* 5,277.25 2,975.42

Particulars For year ended As at March 31,
March 31, 2024 2023

Capital Commitment

Estimated Amount of Contracts Remaining to be Executed on capital account and not provided - -

for

35.1 * The figures for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 includes the amount of contingent liabilities for the

respective year, where show cause natice or claims have been received after the close of respective reporting period and till the date of
approval of this fianncial statements by the Board of Directors. Further, the amount of contingent liabilities disclosed above, does not
include the amount of interest or penalty, wherever the same are not ascertain or included in demand notices.

35.2 The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business, the impact of which

presently is not quantifiable. These cases are pending with various courts / authorities. After considering the circumstances and advice from
the legal advisors, management believes that these cases will not adversely affect its financial statements, The above Contingent Liabilities

exclude undeterminable outcome of these pending litigations.

35.3 Future cash flow in respect of the above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with the relevant

authorities. Interest, penalty or compensation liability arising on outcome of the disputes has not been considered, since not determinable

at present.

losses.

35,4 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision was required for foreseeable
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36 Segment information
For management purposes, the Company is into one reportable segment i.e. Real Estate development.

The Managing Director is the Chief Operating Decision Maker of the Company who monitars the operating results of the Company for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. The Company’s performance as single segment is
evaluated and measured consistently with profit or loss in the standalone financial statements. Also, the Company's financing (including
finance costs and finance Income) and income taxes are managed on a Company basis

36.1 Geographical information
The Company operates in one geographical environment only i.e. in India.

The Company's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information about its non-
current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

Revenue from External Customers
Particulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within India 63,473.65 22,015.27
Outside India = -
Total 63,473.65 22,015.27
Non-current Assets
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Within India 1,617.23 224.23
Outside India - -
Total 1,617.23 224.23

36.2 Information about major customers
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023.

36.3 The reporting segment includes a number of sales operations in various cities within India each of which is considered as a separate
operating segment by the CODM. For financial statements presentation purposes, these individual operating segments have been
aggregated into a single reportable operating segment taking into account the following factors:
= these operating segments have similar long-term gross profit margins;
= the nature of the products and production processes are similar; and
» the methods used to distribute the products to the customers are the same.




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are  in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

37 Employee benefit plans

37.1 Defined contribution plans:
The Company participates in Provident fund as defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised
in relation to provident fund represents the value of contributions payable during the period by The Company at rates specified by
the rules of provident fund. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that
were not paid until after the end of the reporting period.

(a) Provident fund and pension

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the Company are
entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company
make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under the
law, are made to the provident fund administered and managed by Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further
obligations under the fund managed by the GOl beyend its manthly contributions which are charged to the statement of Profit and
Loss in the period they are incurred. The benefits are paid to employees on their retirement or resignation from the Company.

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year under employee benefits
expense, are as under:

Particulars For year ended March 31, For the Year ended
2024 March 31,2023

i) Employer's contribution to provident fund and pension 11.23 4.64

ii} Employer's contribution to state insurance corporation 0.65 0.72

Total 11.89 5.36

(b) Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity (Unfunded)

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a unfunded defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan
provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or at death while in employment or on termination of the
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary, as applicable, payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs
upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on
an actuarial valuation,

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out for the year ended March
31, 2024 by an independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and
past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

(&) Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

(1) Actuarial Risk:

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
i} Adverse Salary Growth Experience

il} Variability in mortality rates

iii} Variability in withdrawal rates

(2) Investment Risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value
of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate, This can
result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-
valuation period.

(3) Liquidity Risk:

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such
employees resign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows.
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(4) Market Risk:

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial
assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in
discount rate |eads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the
yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability Is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the
valuation date.

(5) Legislative Risk

Legislative risk is the risk of Increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation,
The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This
will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the

year when any such amendment is effective.

(B) Principal actuarial assumptions used:
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.
Gratuity (Unfunded)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

1. Discount rate - Company 7.20% 7.40%

2. Salary escalation - Company 10.00% 10.00%

3. Rate of employee turnover - Company Age 25 & Below: 25 %, | Age 25 & Below: 25%,
Age 2510 35: 20 %, Age 25t0 35: 20 %,
Age35to45: 15%, Age 35to 45: 15 %,
Age 45to 55: 10 %, Age 45 to 55: 10 %,
Age 55 & above : 5% Age 55 B above: 5 %

4. Mortality rate Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult.

(C) Expenses recognised in profit and loss
Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded)
For year ended March 31,| For year ended March
2024 31, 2023
Service cost:
Current service cost 21.67 17.12
Net Interest cost 8.36 6.48
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 30.03 23.60

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expenses' line item in the

Statement of profit and loss.

(D) Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars

Gratuity (Unfunded)

For year ended March 31,
2024

For year ended March
31, 2023

Interest cost
Interest income

8.36

6.48

Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss

8.36

6.48

(E) Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars

For year ended March 31,
2024

For year ended March
31, 2023

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the year
- Due to changes in demographic assumptions

- Due to changes in financial assumptions 1.48 (3.85)

- Due to experience adjustment (25.91) 0.03
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income s
Net (income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI {24.43) (3.82))
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{F}) Amount recognised in the consclidated balance sheet

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 127.28 121.68
Fair value of plan assets =
127.28 121.68
(G) Net asset/{liability) recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
Recognised under: As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Long term provision 110.19 104.28
Shart term provision 17.10 17.40
Total 127.28 121.68
(H) Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars For year ended March 31,| For year ended March
2024 31, 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation 121.68 101.90
Current service cost 21.67 17.12
Interest cost 8.36 6.48
Actuarial losses [ (Gain) (24.43) (3.82)
Benefits paid from the fund -
Closing defined benefit obligation 127.28 121.68

{1) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

For year ended March 31,

For year ended March

2024 31, 2023
Year 1 cashflow 17.10 17.40
Year 2 cashflow 16.11 17.33
Year 3 cashflow 14.39 15.70
Year 4 cashflow 13.53 14.01
Year 5 cashflow 13.55 12.93
Year 6 to year 10 cashflow 67.26 50.80
Total expected payments 141.85 128.17

(1) Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact ofa
change in each of the lied assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice
such assumptions rarely change in isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent. For presenting the
sensitivities, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented above. There
was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis from previous year.

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reparting For year ended March 31,| For year ended March
2024 31, 2023
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions
Rate of discounting
Impact of +0.5% change 123.65 118.37
{% change) (2.86%) (2.72%)
Impact of -0.5% change 131.13 125,18
{% change) 3.02% 2.87%
Rate of salary increase
Impact of +0.5% change 129.23 123.17
(% change) 1.53% 1.22%
Impact of -0.5% change 125,39 120.38
(% change) (1.49%) (1.07%)
Withdrawal Rate (W.R.)
W.R. x 110% 127.50 122.78
{% change) 0.17% 0.90%
W.R. x 90% 126.82 120.36
(% change) (0.37%) {1.09%)

(K) Other disclosures

The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 2024 is 6.76 years (March 31, 2023: 6.89 years).
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|c) Leave Encashment plan

{A) Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the mest significant of which are detailed below:

(8]

(1) Actuarial Risk:

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
i) Adverse Salary Growth Experience

ii) Variahility in mortality rates

iil) Variability in withdrawal rates

i) Variability in availment rates

12} Investment Risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of
instruments backing the liahility. In such cases, the present value of the assets Is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter- valuation
period.

(3) Liquidity Risk:

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such
employees resign/retire from the Entity there can be strain on the

cash flows.

(4) Market Risk:

Market risk 15 a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial assumption
that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to
decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice wersa. This assumption depends on the yields on the
corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.Since the
benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirament age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

(5) Legislative Risk

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The
government may amend the Shop and Establishment Act, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to be recognized Immediately in the year when any
such amendment is effective.

Principal actuarial assumptions used;
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.

Leave Enchasment {Unfunded)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
1. Discount rate - Company 7.20% 7.40%
2. Salary escalation - Company 10.00% 10.00%
3. Rate of employee turnover - Company Age 25 & Below : 25 %, Age 25 & Below : 25 %,
Age 25to 3520 %, Age 2510 35:20 %,
Age 35to 45:15 %, Age 35to 45:15 %,
Age 45to 55: 10 %, Age 45 to 5510 %,
Ape 55 & ahove : 5% Age 55 & above :5 %
4, Mortality rate Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult.
'Expenses recognised in profit and loss
Particulars Leave Enchasment (Unfunded)
For year ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Service cost:

Current service cost 6.37 1.66
Net Interest cost 0,40 0.29
Net value of remeasurements on the obligation and plan assets 4.88 (0.66]

|{Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 11.64 1.29

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expenses' line item in the
Statement of profit and loss.
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{D) Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars Leave Enchasment [Unfunded)
For year ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Interest cost 0.40 0.29
Interest income -
Met interest cost recognised in profit or loss 0.40 0.29
(E) Remeasurements on the Obligation and Plan Assets
Particulars Foryear ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the year
- Due to changes in demographic assumptions - -
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.17 {0.16)
- Due to experience adjustment 4.71 {0.50)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income -
Net (Gain)/Loss for the period recognized in OCI 4.88 [0.66);
(F} Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 17.50 5.86
Fair value of plan assets *
17.50 5.B6
|G) Met asset/[liability) recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
Recognised under: As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Long term provision 14.48 4.86
Short term provision 3.02 0.93
Total 17.50 5.86
(H) Movements in the present value of defined benefit okligation are as follows:
Particulars Foryear ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation 5.B6 4.56
Transfer in/(out) obligation - -
Current service cost 6.37 1.66
Interest cost 0.40 0.29
Actuarial losses 4.88 (0.66)
Benefits paid from the fund - -
Closing defined benefit obligation 17.50 5.B6
(1) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting For year ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
. 2024 2023
Year 1 cashflow 3.02 0.99
Year 2 cashflow 2.68 0.89
Year 3 cashflow 239 0.80
Year 4 cashflow 2.16 072
Year 5 cashflow 1.95 0.66
Year 6 to year 10 cashflow 7.24 2.62
Total expected payments 13.45 6.68

[J) Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonatiy possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all ather assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypethetical impact of a change in rach of
the lied assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely
change in isolation and the asset value chanpes may offset the impact to some axtent. For presenting the sensitivities, the prasent value of
the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the
same as that applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Qbligation presentad above. There was no change in the methods and assumptions

used in the preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis from previous year.
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Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting For year ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
2024 2023

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Rate of discounting

Impact of +0.5% change 17.08 572

(% change) (2.39%) (2.36%)

Impact of -0.5% change 17.94 6.00

(% change) 2.51% 2.48%

Rate of salary increase

Impact of +0.5% change 17.92 6.00

(% change) 2.43% 2.41%

Impact of -0.5% change 17.09 572

(% change) (2.3a%) (2.32%)

Withdrawal Rate (W.R.) varied by 10%

W.R. x 110% 16.21 5.45

(% change) (7.38%) (6.99%)

‘W.R. x 90% 18.96 6.32

(% change) 8.39% 7.87%

(K) Other disclasures

The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 2024 is 5.33 years (March 31, 2023: 5.43 years).

Mumbaijw




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unfess otherwise stated

3B Related party disclosures

38.1 Details of related parties

Description of relationship

Name of the related party

Key management personnel
- Director (Managing Director w.e.f. 01.06.2023)
- Director (Whole Time Director w.e.f. 01.06.2023)
- Director (Whole Time Director w.e.f. 01,06.2023)
- Director (Non-Executive Non-Independent Director w.e.f. 29.11.2023)
- Key management personnel (w.e.f, 31.10,2023)
- Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 01,06.2023)
- Company Secretary (w.e.f. 22.05.2023

Amit Mangilal Jain

Arpit Jain

Sandeep Jain (Upto 30.10.2023)
Ketu Amit Jain

Sandeep Jain

Samshet Balkrishna Shetye
Sheetal Haresh Solani

Relatives of key management personnel (where transactions have taken
place)

Kritika Jain
Simran Jain
Ketu Jain
Sajjan Jain
Vikram Jain
Kala Jain
Mangilal Jain
Sneha Jain

Enterprises over which key management personnel is able to exercise
significant influence (where transactions have taken place)

The Sajjan Jain Support Trust

Subsidiary Firms

Arkade Paradigm
Arkade Realty

Associates Firms / LLP

Bhoomi & Arkade Associates

Atul & Arkade Realty

Arkade Abode LLP (Upto 19.11.2023)

Chandak & Arkade Associates (Upto 24.08.2023)

38.2 Transactions during the year with related parties

: For year ended March For year ended
S. No. |Particulars 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
AlKey management personnel
I| Amit Mangilal lain
Managertal Remuneration 190.67 130.00
Loan Taken 1,006.32 2,184.55
Repayment of Loan Taken 1,781.30 1,371.05
Interest Expenses 446.30 235.36
Rent Expenses 18.00 -
Security Deposit Paid 3.00 5
Ii] Arpit Jain

Managerial Remuneration 91.33 448.33
Loan Taken 265.00 341.00
Repayment of Loan Taken 1,521.62 70.78
Interest Expenses 100.04 177.79

lil| Sandeep Jain
Managerial Remuneration 49.40 438.69
Managerial Salaries 41.94 5
Loan Taken - 200.00
Repayment of Loan Taken 1,525.13 71.22
Interest Expenses BE.4A7 182.21

IV| Samshet Balkrishna Shetye
Managerial Salaries 26.76 -

V| Sheetal Haresh Solani
Managerial Salaries 7.15 -

B|Relati f Key Manage ment Personnel

I| Ketu Jain

Managerial Salarles 11.17 16.25
Sale of flat - 1,166.25
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5. No. |Particulars

For year ended March

For year ended

31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Il| Kala Jain
Repayment of Loan Taken 24.76 141,00
Interest Expenses - 0.23
1l 5ajjan Jain
Repayment of Loan Taken . 291,00
Sale of flat - 575.00
V| Mangilal Jain
Repayment of Loan Taken - 560.00
C|Enterprises over which management personnel is able to exercise significant
influence®
||The Sajjan Jain Support Trust
Donations Paid 46.88 21.33
D|Subsidiary Firms
||Arkade Paradigm
Share of profit / (loss) (1.30) 1.14
Capital Introduce 7.37 146.84
Capital Withdrawals - 190.77
lljArkade Realty
Share of profit / (loss) (7.17) (51.33)
Capital Introduce 4,03 16.74
Capital Withdrawals - 2.06
E|Associates Firms / LLP
||Bhoomi & Arkade Associates
Share of profit / (loss) 96.10 468.64
Capital Introduce 2.50 1.91
Capital Withdrawals 2.50 144.04
II|Arkade Abode LLP
Share of profit / (loss) - (3.79)
Capital Introduce -
Capital Withdrawals - 4,05
lijAtul & Arkade Realty
Share of profit / (loss) (0.16) (0.19)
Capital Introduce 56.33 68.55
Capital Withdrawals 3.39 +
IV|Chandak & Arkade Associates
Write off of Balances - 0.78

The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length
transactions. All the related party transactions are reviewed and approved by board of directars.

38.3 Amounts outstanding with related parties

As at March 31, As at March 31,
S. No. |Particulars 2024 2023
A|Key management personnel
1| Amit Mangilal Jain

Loan Payable 3,774.43 4,103.12
Managerial Remuneration Payable 5.61 10.06
Rent Payable 135 i
Security Deposit Receivable 3.00 =

11| Arpit Jain
Loan Payable 250.00 1,406.58
Managerial Remuneration Payable 4.79 21231
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5. No.

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

n

|| I = =]

Sandeep Jain
Loan Payable
Managerial Remuneration Payable
Managerial Salaries Payable

V| Kala Jain

Interest Payable

Subsidiary Firms
Arkade Paradigm

Capital balance with firms

Arkade Realty
Capital balance with firms

Associates Firms
Bhoomi & Arkade Associates
Capital balance with firms

Atul & Arkade Realty
Capital balance with firms

6.58

6.95

898

63.35

1,750.04

1,436.66
216.16

24.76

0.89

12.12

(32.75)

1,697.26
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39 Financial instruments and risk management

39.1 Capital risk management

The Company's objective, when managing capital is to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital, support the corporate strategy and meet shareholder’s expectations. The policy of the
Company is to borrow funds through banks or raise through equity which is supported by committed borrowing facilities to
meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the requirement of financial markets. The capital structure is governed by policies
approved by the Board of Directors, and is monitored by various metrics. The following table summarises the capital of the

Company :
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Short term debts*(including current maturities of long term debt) 4,036.79 7,024.08
Long term debts 2,904.25 7,875.45
Total Debts 6,941.04 14,899.53
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {2,302.77) (1,656.80)
Net debt 4,638.26 13,242.73
Total Equity 32,340.23 20,021.19
Net debt to equity ratio 0.14 0.66

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable, and there has been no breach of any loan covenants.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and

March 31, 2023.

39.2 Categories of financial instruments

The following table provides categorisation of all financial instruments

Particalirs As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost
(a) Loans (including inter corporate deposit) 11.14 9.07
(b) Security deposits 275.89 202.99
(c) Deposits with bank (Fixed Depasits) 219.80 637.24
(d) Cash and cash equivalent 2,302.77 1,656.80
(e) Bank balance other than (d) above 155.79 85.00
(f) Trade receivables 805.23 368.52
(g) Other financial assets 34.84 64.75

Total financial assets 3,805.47 3,024.37

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost
(a) Borrowings 6,941.04 14,899.53
(b) Trade payables 3,837.72 2,351.90
{c) Lease Liabilities 181.92 -
(d) Other financial liabilities 444.24 1,362.86

Total financial liabilities 11,404.92 18,614.28
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39.3

(i).

(a

="

(b

—

{ii).

Financial risk management objectives

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade
and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company periodically reviews the risk management
policy so that the management manages the risk through properly defined mechanism. The focus is to foresee the
unpredictability and minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. The Company’s overall risk
management procedures to minimise the potential adverse effects of financial market on the Company's performance are as
follows:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price
risk and commodity risk.

Interest rate risk:

The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk from long-term borrawings at variable rate. Currently the Company has
external borrowings and borowwings from promoter & promoter groups which are fixed and floating rate borrowings. The
Company achieves the optimum interest rate profile by refinancing when the interest rates go down. However this does not
protect Company entirely from the risk of paying rates in excess of current market rates nor eliminates fully cash flow risk
associated with variability in interest payments, it considers that it achieves an appropriate balance of exposure to these risks.

Foreign currency risk:

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign currency rates. Exposures can arise on account of the various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies
other than Indian Rupee,

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reparting date:

As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2024 2023

(a). Financial liabilities:
In USD - -

Equivalent in ¥ lakhs =1 -

(b). Financial assets:
In USD = =
In EURO * =
Equivalent in X lakhs -

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments,

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which customers
operate, has less influence on the credit risk.

Pt
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(iii).

The Company has entered into contracts for the sale of residential and commercial units on an instaliment basis. The
installments are specified in the contracts. The Company is exposed to credit risk in respect of installments due. However, the
possession of residential and commercial units is handed over to the buyer only after all the installments are recovered. In
addition, installment dues are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Company’s exposure to credit risk is not
significant. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as none of its customers
constitutes significant portions of trade receivables as at the year end.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by Company's treasury in accordance with the
Company’s policy. The company limits its exposure to credit risk by only placing balances with local banks of good repute. Given
the profile of its bankers, management does not expect any counterparty to fail in meeting its obligations.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to
sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for
managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company’s
exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company
manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents.

Surplus funds not immediately required are invested in certain financial assets which provide flexibility to liquidate at short
notice and are included in cash equivalents.

Liguidity risk table
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments.

Particulars Cpte 1-5 years Total

1 year
March 31, 2024
Borrowings 4,036.79 2,904.25 6,941.04
Lease Liabilities 38.57 143.34 181.92
Trade payables 3,837.72 3,837.72
Other financial liabilities 444.24 444,24
Total 8,357.32 3,047.59 11,404.92
March 31, 2023
Borrowings 7,024.08 7,875.45 14,899.53
Lease Liabilities - -
Trade payables 2,351.90 - 2,351.90
Other financial liabilities 1,362.86 - 1,362.86
Total 10,738.83 7,875.45 18,614.28
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43 Ratio Analysis and its elements

a) Current Ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Current assets 53,520.69 52,768.78
Current liabilities 21,959.69 27,508.20
Ratio (In times}) 2.44 1.92
% Change from previous year 27.08% 22.29%
Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2023-24 is on account of mainly repayment of short-term borrowings and decrease in advance from customers.
b} Returnon Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by average equity
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Net profit after tax 12,294.62 5,485.79
Total equity* 26,180.71 17,276.39
Ratio 0.47 0.32)
% Change from previous year 47.89% -20.86%
*Average equity represents the average of opening and closing total equity.
Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in Net profitability of the Company.
¢} Inventory Turnaver Ratio = Cost of materials consumed divided by average inventory
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Cost of materials consumed 42,902.14 13,290.93
Average Inventory 49,421.45 39,976.71
Ratio {In times) 0.87 0.33
% Change from previous year 161.11% -47.70%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2022-23 Due to increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and increased in overall opertions of the Company.
In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in operations while no corresponding major change in inventory level.

d} Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by average trade receivables

particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Sales 63,444.36 21,915.67

Average Trade Recelvables # 586.88 446.27

Ratio (In times) 108.11 49.11

% Change from previous year 120.13% -23.57%

# Trade receivables is included gross of ECL and net of customer advances. Average Trade receivables represents the average of opening and

closing trade receivables.

Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2022-23 due to improved Debtars Realisation period.

In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in sales while maintaining debtors realisation period under control.

e) Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Contract Cost 41,639.73 33,442 84
Closing Trade Payables 1,547 40 B843.98
Ratio (In times) 26.91 39.63
% Change from previous year -47.25% -2.53%
Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2023-24, due to increase in outstanding trade payable balances at the year end
$ Q)
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f] Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working capital

h

i

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Sales (A) 63,473.65 22,015.27
Current Assets (B) 53,520.69 52,768.78
Current Liabilities (C) 21,959.69 27,509.20
Met Working Capital (D=B-C) 31,561.00 25,259.58
Ratio (Intimes) (E= A f D} 2.01 0.87
% Change from previous year 130.75% -51.69%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2022-23 Due to increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and increased in overall opertions of the Company has lead to

iereased investments in working capital of the Company.
In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in overall operations of the company.

Net profit ratio = Net profit bafore tax divided by Sales
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,

2024 2023
Net profit before tax 16,514.15 7.236.88
Sales 63,473.65 22,015.27
Ratio 26.02% 32.87%
% Change from previous year -20.85% 19.09%
Return on Capital employed (pre -tax) = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by average Capital Employed
Particulais As at March 31, As at March 31,

2024 2023
Profit before tax (A) 16,514.15 7,236.88
Add : Interest (B) 1,379.08 737.04
EBIT (C) = [A) + (B) 17,893.22 7,973.92
Total Assets (C) 57,472.18 55,514.98
Current Liabilities (D) 21,959.69 27,508.20
Capital Employed (E)=(C}-{D} 35,512.49 28,005.79
Ratio [In %) 50.39% 28.47%
% Change from previous year 76.96% -35.16%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2022-23 Due to increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and increased in overall opertions of the Company has lead to

lereased investments in working capital of the Company.
In FY 2023-24 due to increased in overall opertions and profitability of the Company.

Debt Equity ratio = Total debts divided by Total Equity

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,

2024 2023
Total Debts £,941.04 14,889.53
Shareholder's funds 32,340.23 20,021.19
Ratio (In %) 21.46% 74.42%
% Change from previous year -71.16% 71.68%

Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 22-23 is on account of raising fresh Term Loans for Projects & unsecured borrow

ings.

In FY 2023-24 due to decrease is mainly on account of decrease in unsecured borrowings & increase in Networth of the Company.

Debt service coverage ratio= Earnings available for debt services dividend by total interest and principal repayments.

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars
2024 2023

Profit after tax (&) 12,294.62 5,485.79
Add: Non cash operating expanses and finance cost
-Depreciation and amortisation (B) 113.84 27.12
-Finance cost (C) 312.71 118.71
Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Pre-tax) (D= B+C) 426.56 145.82

319.20 108.12
Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Post-tax) (E =D (1-Tax rate))
Earnings available for debt services [F = A+E) 12,613.82 5,594.91
Debt service
Interest [G) 1,379.08 737.04
Lease payments (H) (40.72) -
Principal repayments (1) (25,816.63) (3,702.65)
Total Interest and principal repayments (1=G+H+ [} (24,478.27) (2,965.61)
Ratio (In times) (J = F/ 1) 0.52 1.89
% Change from previous year -72.69% -87.02%

Mumbai
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Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23 due to increase in repayment of principle amount of unsecured borrowings (which are repayable on demands)

k) Return on Investments

This ratio has not been calculated since the Company does not have any investments as on 31st March, 2024 except investments in Subsidiary
Partnership Firms & Assoclates Firms.

44 Significant events occurred during the year ended March, 31, 2024
{a} Initial Public Offer - Draft Red Herring Prospectus
The Company has formed the IPO Committee vide resolution passed in the meeting of Board of Directors of the Company held on December
05, 2022 for initiating the process of preparing and filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectuts in terms of SEBI (Issue of Capital & Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations and has filed the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with SEBI during the year ended 31st March, 2024.

(b} Conversion into Public Limited Company
The Company has been converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company vide resolution passed in the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the Company held on June 05, 2023,

(c) Increase in Authorised Share Capital

The Company has increased its authorised share capital from Rs. 200 lakhs (divided into 20 lakhs equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up) to

Rs. 18,500 |akhs (divided into 1,850 lakhs equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up vide special resclution passed in the meeting of
shareholders held on July 06, 2023.

(d} Issue of Bonus Shares
The Company has allotted 15,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each, as a bonus Shares in the ratio of 1 : 75 to the existing
equity shareholders of the Company vide resolution passed in the meeting of shareholders held on July 06, 2023.

s per our report of even date

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 106456W

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arkade Developers Limited

HemantRBohra Amit Jain

Partner Managing Director Whale-time Director

M No. 165667 DIN : 00139764 DIN : 06899631

Place: Mumbai
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Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Arkade Developers Limited

(Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Arkade Developers Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding Company”), its subsidiaries and associates (Holding Company
and its subsidiary and Associates together referred to as ‘the Group”), which comprise the consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated
cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated

financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Company Act, 2013
(‘Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the consclidated state
of affairs (consolidated financial position) of the Group as at 31 March 2024, its consolidated profit
(consolidated financial performance) and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Company act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAl together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2013. We beligve that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other Matters

1. We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary firms, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 44.27 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 and total revenues of Rs. Nil for the
year ended on that date and the associates whose financial statements reflect share of profit of
Rs. 95.93 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements are audited by other auditors and whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the
subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and associates, is based solely on the reports of auditors.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the management discussion and analysis, Board's
Report but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements, Standalone Financial Statements

and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term
of the requirements of the Company Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of
affairs (consolidated financial position), consolidated profit or loss (Consolidated financial performance)
and its consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
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accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The
respective Board of Directors of the company included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding

Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the company
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has

no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the company included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Company Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

fransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of
such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent

auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
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audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and

performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. '




(d)

(e)

Ui

(9)
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In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company none of
the directors of the Group company is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, being the Private Limited Company, the
provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

(h)

With respect to the other matters fo be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Company (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

.. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group (refer note 35 of the consolidated financial
statements)

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary and associates company
incorporated in India.

iv. (a) respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary and Associates which is
company incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or
any of such subsidiary and associates to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(‘Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiary and associates
(“‘Ultimate Beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiary.

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary and associates which is
company incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
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material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of
such subsidiary and associates from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or
any of such subsidiary and associates shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiary.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us on the Company and its subsidiary and associates which is
company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. Company has not declared dividend during the year hence reporting with respect to section
123 of the Company Act is not applicable.

vi. As per Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Holding Company
has used accounting software’s for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year, Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. Further, the above Proviso to Rule 3(1) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is not applicable to subsidiaries and associates, which is
included in the above consolidated financial statements.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Company (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order"/ “CARQ") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the
Act, is not applicable to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 106456 W

Mewend” 277

Hemant R Bohra

Partner
Mem.
UDIN:

Place
Date

No.: 165667

- 24165667TBKEZEP7632
: Mumbai
: June 10, 2024
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private
Limited) for the year ended 315t March 2024,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Company Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Arkade Developers Limited
(“the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial

Statements of the Group for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Group's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Group's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Company Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Company Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
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controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Group'’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Group's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extemnal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Group's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,

use, or disposition of the Group's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
s
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 106456W

Moo

Hemmma
Partner

Mem. No.: 165667
UDIN:- 24165667BKEZEP7632

Place :Mumbai
Date :June 10, 2024



Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Consolidated Balance sheet as on March 31, 2024
All amounts are T in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

As per our report of even date

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 106456W

Woard”

pate: June 'IO| 10}-"{

Fer and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arkade Developers Limited

Hemant R Bohra Amit Jain Arpit Jain

Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director
M No. 165667 DIN : 00139764 DIN : 06899631
Place: Mumbal Place: Mumbai

Fhatge b

Samshet Shetye
Chief Financial Officer

Particulars Note As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
{(a} Property, plant and equipment 4 1,182.48 191.11
{b) Intangible assets 5 33.03 24.87
{c} Right-of-use assets B 182.33 =
{d) Financial assets
(i} Investments 7 1,813.39 1,697.26
i} Loans B - -
[iii} Other financial assets ] 213819 637.24
{e) Mon-current tax assets [net) 10 217.58 107.96
{fl Deferred tax assets (net} 111 52,29 65.87
{g] Other non-current assets 12 2,85 825
Total non-current assets 3,722.15 2,732.56
Current assets
{a) Inventories 13 48,790.24 50,052.66
{b] Financial assets
(i} Investments 7 - -
(i) Trade receivables 14 807.19 370,49
(iii} Cash and cash equivalents 15 2,330.27 1,661.84
[iv) Bank balances other than (i) above 16 155,79 95.23
(v} Loans 2 1114 Q.07
[vi) Other financial assets 9 295.48 267.74
e} Other current assets 12 1,388.25 340.66
Total current assets 53,778.36 52,797.69
Total assets 57,500.51 m
Equity and liabilities
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 17 15,200.00 200.00
{b) Other equity 18 17,140.23 19,821.18
Total attributable to owners of the parent company 32,340.23 20,021.19
Total attributable to Non- Controlling Interest 23.22 5.24
Total Equity 32,363.45 20,026.43
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 2,904.25 7.875.45
(i) Lease liabilities 6.2 143.34 -
(iii} Other financial abilities 20 x &
{b) Provisions 21 124.66 109.14
{c} Deferred Tax Laibilities (Net) 111 &
Total non-current liabilities 3,172.25 7,984.59
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 19 4,036,79 7,024.08
(i} Lease liabilities 6.2 38.57 -
(iii} Trade payables 22
- Total outstanding dues to small and micro enterprises 1,012.35 796.63
- Total cutstanding dues of creditors other 2,816.95 1,555.26
than small and micro enterprises
(iv} Other financial liabilities 10 457.77 1,372.86
(b} Other current liabilities 3 12,887 51 16,479.86
{c) Provisions 21 532.33 290.53
{d} Current tax liabilities (net) 14 1B2.54 -
Total current liabilities 21,964.81 27,519.22
Total equity and liabllities 57,500.51 __55,530.25
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1-45

Shéetal Solani
Company Secretary
M No. : AA5964

UDIN: - 24165667 BKELEPTS32

Date: Tiyn e IG 2014




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are T in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particulars — For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
| |Revenue from operations 25 63,473.65 22,015.27
Il |Other income 26 97.56 944.52
Il |Total income {1+ 11) 63,571.21 22,959.79
IV |Expenses
(a) Cost of construction 27 41,639.73 33,442.84
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 28 1,262.42 (20,151.91)
(c) Employee benefit expense 29 1,670.19 1,708.34
(d) Finance costs 30 312.72 128.12
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 113.84 27.12
(f) Other expenses 32 2,157.23 986.91
Total expenses (IV) 47,156.13 16,141.41
V  |Profit before tax and share of profit (loss) from associates (Il - IV) 16,415.07 6,818.38
Share of profit / {loss) from associates 95.93 417.43
VI |Profit before tax 16,511.01 7,235.82
Vil |Tax expense
(1} Current tax 33 4,247.22 1,790.64
(2) Taxation for earlier year {41.27) -
(3) Deferred tax expense/ (cradit) 11.1 13.58 (38.90)
Total tax expense (V) 4,219.53 1,751.74
VIl |Profit for the year (V -V} 12,291.47 5,484.08
(i} Owners of the company 12,294.62 5,485.79
(ii) Non controlling interest {3.14) (1.71)
IX |Other comprehensive income
(A} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) (Loss)/Gain on remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 18.3 (24.43) (3.82)
(b} Income tax on above
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (24.43) (3.82)
(i} Owners of the company (24.43) (3.82)
(ii) Non controlling interest #
X |Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (VIHVIII) 12,315.90 5,487.90
(i) Owners of the company 12,319.04 5,489.61
(i) Mon controlling interest (3.14) (1.71)
Xl |Earnings per equity share (Face value of % 10/- per share) 34
(1) Basic(X) 8.09 3.61
(2) Diluted (%) 8.0% 3.61
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1-45

As per our report of even date

For Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 106456W

2 W\’ﬁ'

R S
Hemahﬁm
Partner

M No. 165667

Place: Mumbai
Date : :ru ne IO, 101LI
UDIN-2U165661BKEZEP7632

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Arkade Developers Limited

4~

Amit Jain
Managing Directar
DIN : 00139764

Hud=

Samshet Shetye
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai

pate: June 10,2024
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Arpit Jain

Whole-time Director
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Arkade Developers Lmited (Farmerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Cash flow far the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
Particulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Prafit before tax 16,511.01 7,235.82
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 31272 128,12
Interest income {29.27) {45.48)
Loss/{Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment {net) 1761 -
Fair value (gain} on investments (net) - -
Loss / [gain] on sale of current investments (net) [23.72) (72.73)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 113.84 27.12
Operating profit before working capital changes 16,902.18 7.272.83
Adjustments for:
[Increase)/decrease in operating assets
Trade receivables (436.70) 155 48
Inventeries 1,262.42 (20,151.90)
Right-to-returned goods asset
Other financial assets (Non-Current and Current) 37131 {776.22)
Loans to staff {2.07) {7.53)
Other assets {Non-Current and Current) {1,042.20) 969.29
Increasef[decrease) in operating Habilities
Trade payables 1,477.40 978.74
Provisions (Nan-Current and Current} 35733 {559.51))
Other financial liabilities (Non-Current and Current) (915.09) £02.00
Other current lisbilities {3,592.35) 3,398.82
Changes in Working Capital (2,619.96) {15,390.83)
Cash generated from aperations 14,282.23 (8.118.00)
Income taxes pald (Net of Refund) (4,133.26) (1,752.64)|
Net cash generated by operating activities 10,148.97 (9,870.64)
Cash flows from investing activities
{Investment in) / Proceeds from Bank Depasits {60.56) 605.07
Proceeds on sale of financial assets
{Investment) / withdrawal from investments in subsidiary & associates firms (116.13) (59.73)
Interest received
{Investment in] [ Proceeds fram current investments 3.7 2,389.01
Purchase of property, plamt and equipment and ather intangible assets (1,216.70) (60.26)
(Increase)/decrease of Capital Werk in Progress -
Interest Income 19.27 45,48
Proceeds from disposzl of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets 121.00 =
Met cash used in investing activities (1,219.40) 2,919.58
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds fram borrowings 17,858.14 12,303.03
Repayment of borrawings (25,816.63) (3,844.78)
Payrmient of Lease Liabilities {40.73) =
Interest paid [307.49) (128.12)
Change in Nan- Cantralling Interest 21.12 26.80
Net cash [used in) / generated by financing activities |8,285.57) 8,356.93
({Loss)/Gain on remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 24.43 3.gz
Met increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 668.43 1,409.69
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,661.84 252.15
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,330.27 1,661.84
Reconcillation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year [Refer Note 15) 2,330.27 1,661.84
MNote:
The ahove cash flaw statement has been prepared under the “indirect Method® a5 set aut in the indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS - 7] "Statement of Cash Flow'.
Significant Accounting Paolicies and Notes to Accounts 1-45
As per aur repart of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
For Mittal & Associates Arkade Developers Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 106456W
M-
“AW W
—
HemaRTH Bohra Amit Jain Arpit Jain
Partner Managing Director Whale-time Director
M Mo. 165667 DIN ; 00139764 DIN : 06859631
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Date : Iune lOr 2014 W ‘!}ﬁ""'
UDIN:- 214 165661 BKEZEPTE32
Samshet Shetye Sheetal Solani
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M No. : 445964
Place: Mumbai
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ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED [Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on 31st March, 2024

2.1.1

2.1.2

Corporate information

Arkade Developers Limited is a Public Company doemiciled in India and incorporated on 13th May, 1986 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office situated at Arkade House, Opp. Bhhomi Arkade, Asholt Nagar, Kandivali East, Mumbai,
400 10Ll. The company is primarily engaged in real estate development, The operations of the Company span all aspects of real estate
development, from the identification and acquisition of land, to planning, execution, construction and marketing of Commereial and
residetial projects,

These Consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on June 10, 2024,

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2024, the Consolidated Statement af Frofit and Loss (Including other comprehensive
income), the Consolidated statement of changes in Equity and the Consolidated cash flow statement, for the perod ended 31.03.24, the
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (Collectively, the "Special Purpose Consolidated financial
statements / information®). The comparative financial information has not been included in these Consolidated financial statements.

The Consolidated [nd AS financial statements has been prapared by the management of the Company for the purpose of preparation of
Restated Consolidated Financial Statements for Inclusion in the Red herring prospectus (RHF) in connection with proposed initial public
offer ("IPO") of its equity shares, comprising a fresh issue of equity share (the "Propesed Offer”) under the Securities and Exchanpe Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclostire Requirements] Regulations, 2018 as amended, (the "SEBI ICDR Regulations”) and refavant provisions
of the campanies act, 2013 (the "Act”)

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the
Generally accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India (Indian Accounting standards referred (o as “IndAS") as specified under the
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standard] Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendments rules issued there after and and presentation requirements of Division I of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind A3
compliant Schedule 111). These Consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearcst Lakhs
except when otherwise indicated,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, exeept for the following assets and liabilities:

i Certain finencial asscts and liabilities that is measured at fair value;

il Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value.

il Investments in equily instruments, other than investments in subsidiary & associates firm, measured at fair value
thorugh prafit & loss acesunt (FVTPL).

Principles of Consolidation

Bubsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Graup has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns {rom its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which contral is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsclidated [rom the date that control ceases,

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, Habilities,
equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between pgroup campanies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred assei.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the restated consvlidated statement of profit and
loss, restated consolidated statement of changes in equity and restated consolidated statement of assets and liabilities respectively,

Assoclates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significani influence butl not control or joint contrel. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the veoting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method ef
accounting, alter initlally being recognised at cost.

Equity Method

Under the eqiity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thercafter to recegnise the Group's
share of the post acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the Group's share of other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment,

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has ineurred obligations er made payments on
behalf of the other entity.




ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

2.2

23

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in these entities.

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have heen changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Current versus non-current classifieation

The Group presents assets and labilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as eurrent
when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal eperating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months alter the reporting
period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assels and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, Plant & Equipments

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost compriscs purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s earrying amount or recognized as a
separate assel, as apprapriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group.

All other repair and maintenance costs arc recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in asset’s carrving amount or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of item can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
cconomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derccognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying smount of the asset] is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognized.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under development as at the balance sheet
date.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and cquipment are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted praospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost of intangible assets acquired in business
combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in
statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any atiributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use,
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewcd annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful ife from indefinite to finite 1s made on a prospective basis. The Group has assesscd indefinite life
for such brand considering the expected usage, expected investment on brand, business forccast and challenges to establish a premium
electranic segment. These are carried at historical eost and tested for impairment annually.

An intangible assct is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic bencfits are cxpected from its use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the dilference between the net disposal procecds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.

Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation an property, plant and equipment is calculated on pro-rata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act 2013,

Followings are the estimated useful Lives of various category of asscis used which are aligned with useful lives defined in schedule 11 of
Companics Act, 2013 :

Fixed Asset Name No. Of Years Useful
Life

Buildings (Temporary Structiires) 3 Years

Vehicles [Car) 8 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Computers & Mobiles 3 Years

Leasehold Improvements Period of the initial
i lease

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Network and Server 6 Years

The useful lives of intangible asscts arc assessed as cither finite or indefinite. [ntangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their
useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite uselul life is reviewed at least at the end ol each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits cmbodied in the asset is
accounted for by changing the amortization period or methed, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The
amaortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the staternent of profit and loss,

The useful lives of intangible assets other than having indefinite life

Class of Asset Useful lives

Computer Software 8 Years

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. I any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estinates the assct’s recoverable amount. An assct's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
mmpatred and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In asscssing value in use, the cstimated future cash flows are discourited to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. [n determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available
fair valuc indicators.

The Group bases its impairment caleulation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast caloulations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year, To estimate cash
flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rete for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used, .

Impairment lnsses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of prolfit and loss,
except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCL For such properties, the impairment is recognized in
OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus,
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For assets excluding goodwill and intangible assets having indefinite life, an assessment is made at each reporting datc to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have deercased. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has heen
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized, The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the assct is carried at a revalucd amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

As per the assessment conducted by the Group there were no indications that the non-financial assets have suffered an impairment loss
during the reporting periods.

Finaneial instruments .
A finanecial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity. -

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial asscts and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and f{inancial labilitics at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial asscts or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on inital
recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time [rame established by regulation or
convention i the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subseguently nicasurcd at amortiscd cost {except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on inital recognition):

sthe asset is held within a business model whose objeetive is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash llows: and

« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on speciiied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest o
the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that mect the following conditions are subscquently measured at fair valuc through other comprehensive income
{except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

+ the asset is held within & business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets: and !

+ the contractual terms of the instrument give risc on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amaount outstanding,

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOC! debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and
lusses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of 'Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income'. When
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassificd to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measurcd at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating intcrest income over the
relevant period. The cifective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts| through the
expeeted life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, & shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those inancial asscts classified as at FVTPL. Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income” line item,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or lass (FVTPL) y
initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income {or investments in cquity instruments,
which arc not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOC! eriteria {see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost eriteria or the FVTOC] criferia but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
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A [inancial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt ingtruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation climinates or significantly reduces a measurcment or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases, The Group has not designated
any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting peried, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasirements recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognisced in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group can malte an irrevocable clection [on an instrument-by-instrument basis} to present the subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses ansing from changes in {air value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

=it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial insttuments that the Group manages together and has a recent actus
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

+it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equily instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to reccive the dividends is
cstablished, it is probable that the economic benefits asscciated with the dividend win flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent
a recovery of part of eost of the investment and the amount of dividerd can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss is
included in the 'Other income’ line item.

The Group has not clected for the FVTOC] irrevocable option for this investimeni.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its asseis. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a signilicant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables or any contractual right te receive cash or
another financial asset that result from transactions that _'are within the scope of Ind AS 18, the Group always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows [rom the asset expire, or when it transfers the
linancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards ol ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rcwards ol ownership and continues to contral the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an assaciated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and recogniscs a
collateralised borrowing [or the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in ita entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that hiad been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss if such pain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that
financial assct.

0On derccognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety {¢.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset], the Group allecates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing invelvement, and the part it no longer recognises en the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer, The difference between the carrying amount aliccated to the part that is no longer recogniscd and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recogmissd and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recopnised in profit or Joss if such pain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loes - that bad been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated bhetween
the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no langer recogniscd on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and cquity instruments issucd by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as ecquity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Equity instruments
deducting all of its liahilities. Equity instruments issucd by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

Finanecial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Finaneial liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classificd as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classificd as held for trading if: )

+It has been incurred principally for the purpese of repurchasing it in the near term; or

+ on inibial recognition it 15 part of a portfolio of identificd financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actus
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

+it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a Hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FYTPL upon initial recognition ift

« such designation climinates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

« the financial liability forms parl of a Group of financial assets or financial dabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is
cvaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
abaut the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containing ene or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract te be
designated as at FVTPL in accordance with lnd AS 109,

Financial hiabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying mmount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other financial liabilities:

Other financial liabilities {including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (inchuding all fecs and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or iwhere appropriate] a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recogition.

Derecegnition of financial liabilitics

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's abligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial Bability, Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an cxisting
financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of th= debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new fnaneial Hability. Thc difference between the carrying ameount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries
The investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost as per INID AS 27, The Group regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity
(the investee), determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. The Group controls an investee when it is
cxposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power aver the investee.

Thus, the Group controls an investee if and only if it has all the following:

» power over the investee;

* exposure, or rights, to variable returns Irom its involvement with the investee and
* the ability to use its power over the investee to affcct the amount of the returns.

Investments are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 103 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of investment, the
difference between its carrying amount and net disposal preceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.
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Inventories
Inventorics comprisc of: (i) Construction materials and consumables (i) Construction Werk-In-Progress representing properties under
construction /development (ifi] Finished Inventories representing unsoid units in completed projects

The construction materials and consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

The construction work in progress is valued at lower ol cost or net realisable value. Cost includces cost of land, devclopment rights, rates
and taxes, construction costs, borrowing costs, other direct expenditure, allocated overheads and other incidental expenses.

Finished stock of completed projects and stock in trade of units is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Revenue recognition

Rcvenue from contacts with customer is recognized when control of the goods or scrvices arc transferred to the customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenuc is measured
based on the transaction price which is the consideration, adjusted for discount and other eredits, if any, as specified in the contract with
customer. The Group presents revenue from contracts with customer net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss. The Group
asscsses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that
it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangement,

Income from property development

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated in determining the transaclion price, the Group considers the effect of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognize the revenue over the time if the Group's performance docs not create an asset
with an alternative usc to the Group and it has an cnforceable right to receive payment for performance completed till the date on the
basis of the agreement entered with customers, otherwise revenue is recognized point in time. The revenue is recognized at the point in
time when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer and the performanee obligation is satisfied i.e. on transfer of legal title of
the residential unit and on completion of project and cccupation certificate is received.

In respect of property under development, Group starts recognising the revenue once the construction linked milestone is achieved with
respect to project cost incurred and worle progress

When it is not posaible to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation and the Group expect to recover the cost incurred
in satislying the performance obligation revenue is recognized only to the extent of the cost incurred until such time that it can
reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation

The Group becomes entitled to invoiee customers for construction of residential and commercial properties based on achieving a series of
construction-linked milestones. When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or scrvices it creates
a contract asset based on the amount of consideration earned by the performance. Any amount previeusly recognized as a contract asset
is reclassificd to trade receivable at the point when the Group has the right to reccive the consideration that is unconditional. If &
customer pays consideration before the Group transfer poods or =ervices to the customer, the contract liability is recognized when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue, when the Group performs
under the contract. .

Income Tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax asscts and liabililies attributable to temporary differcnces and to unused tax losses.

The eurrent income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Group and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically cvaluates positions taken in tax rcturns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation, It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the lability methed on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying ameunt in the financial statement, Deferred income lax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and arc cxcepted to apply when the related deferred income tax
asscts is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Deflerred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losscs. Deferred tax asscts and liabilitics are offset when there is a
legally cnforccable right to offsct current tax assects and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of profit and less, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is alse recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Employee Benefits:

Shert-term abligations

Liabilities for wages and salarics, including non-monctary henefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upte the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the habilities are seitled. The liabilies arc presented as
current employee benefit obbigations in the balance sheet.

Paost-employment

Defined contribution plan

The Group makes specified monthly centribution towards employee provident fund to Employees’ Frovident Fund, The Group's
contributions to the fund are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which the employec renders the
sCrvice,

Defined benefit plan

The Group's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined
based on actuarial valuation carried at the year-end using the Prajected Unit Credit Mecthod, which recognises each period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for delermining the present value
of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date.

‘The Group recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under Employce benelit expense in statement of profit or
loss:

Service costs camprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtallments and non-routine settlements

Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Shect with a corrcsponding debit or eredit to retained earnings through other
camprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lesses

The Group's lease asset elasses primarily comprise of lease for office and other premises. The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. The Group recognises lease labilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

|a) Right-of-use assets (ROU)

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (Le., the date the underlying assct is available for usc).
Right-of-use assets are measured ai cost, less any accumulaied depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of leasc liabilitics. The cost of right-of-use asseis includes the amount of lease liabilitics recognized, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-ol-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the ledse term and the estimated useful lives.

If ownership of the leased assel transfers (o the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated uscful life of the asset, The right-of-usc asscts arc also subject to impairment.

|
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2.13.2

2.13.3

2.14

Z.15

(b) Lease Liabilities

AL the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises leasc liabilities measured at the present value of Jease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option

reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable,

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of intcrest and reduced for the leasc
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to futurc payments rcsulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the asscssment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged (o profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occur.

Lease liability and ROU asscts have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing
cash flows. Lease liabilities have been included in finaneial liabilitdes.

e} Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applics the short-term lease recopnition exemption to its shori-term leases (i.c., thosc Icases that have a lease term of 12
months or less rom the commencement date and do not contain a purchasc option|. It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases that arc considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as a finance or opcrating Iease. Whenever the terms of the lease transler substantially
all the risks and rewards of awnership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
aperating leases. For operating leases, rental income is recognised on a steaight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Transition to Ind AS

The following is the summary of practical expedicnts eleeted on initial application:

+Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date

« Applied the exemption nol to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilitics for lcascs with less than 12 months of lease term on the date ¢
initial application, variablc leasc and low value assct,

+Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

Segment reporting :

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
Board of directors monitors the operating results of all product scgments scparately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance asscssment, -

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

+  Scgment revenue includes ssles and other income directly identifiable with [/ allocable to the segment including inter-segment
rEvenue.

+ Expenses thal are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the scgment result. Expenses
which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to scgments are included under unallocable expenditure.

+ Income which relates to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in unallocable income.

+  Segment assels and liabilities include those directly ideatifinble with the respective segments. Unallocable assets and liabilitics
represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as a whole 2nd not allocable to any segment.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for events such as bonus isste, bonus sloment in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of
shares) if any that have changed the number of equity shares eutstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.
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2.16

2.18

2.19

2.19,1

2.19.2

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to eguity sharehelders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity sharcs.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to real estate project development activities arc inventorised / eapitalized as part of project
cost.

Borrowing costs are inventorised | capitalised as part of project cost when the activities that are necessary to preparc the inventory [
assct for its intended use or sale are in progress. Borrowing costs are suspended from inventorisation / capitalisation when development
work on the project is interrupted for extended periods and there is no imminent certainty of recommencement of worl.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the
Group mcurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Cash and cash equivaleats
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term depoesits with an original maturity of
three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdralts. Bank
overdrafts arc shown within borrowings in current liabilitics mn the balance sheet.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The Group's Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupec (2) which is also the Group's functional currency. Foreign currency
transaction are recorded on initial recognition in the funetional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency item at the balance sheet date:

« Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on th
reporting date.

» Non-monctary itcms that arc measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency arc translated using the exchange rates at th
dates of the initial transactions.

Exchange differences:
Exchange differences arising on scttiement or translation of monetary items are recagnised as income or cxpense in the Stalement of
Profit & Loss.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities

Provisions:

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance
cost.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but enly when the
reimbursement is wirtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss nct of any
reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost in respective expense.

Provision for Defects Liabilities and Repairs

As per, Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 {RERA) vide section 14{3) a builder or developer will be hable to repair any
defect, on the building sold, for a period of Five years. Further, as per the terms of contracts with custamers, the Group is liable for any
defects, repairs and other claims for crtain period after completion and handover of the possession of developed properties. Provision for
defeet liability and repairs is recognized when sales from contracts with customer is recognized. Certain percentage fo the sales
recognised is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for expense to be accrued. The recogmition percentage is
based on management estimates of the possible future incidence. The claims against defect liability and repairs [rom customers may not
exactly match the historical percentage, so such cstimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood
of occurrence and revised accordingly.
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2.19,3 Contingent Liabilities

2.20

2.21

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose cxistence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain fubiure events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability alse arises in extremcly rarc
cases, where there is a lability that cannot be recognized because it cannol be measured reliably. The Group docs not recognize a
contingent lability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remate.

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity invesunents in subsidiaries and joint ventures) and
derivatives at fair value al each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to scll the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either;

*In the principal market for assct or halahty, or
*In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or liability is measurcd Using
the assumptions that market participants would usc when pricing the assel or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest, A fair value measurement of a non- financial assect takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant shservable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and habilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, bazed on the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value measurement as a
whole:

» Level 1- Quoted{unadjusted) market prices in active markets [or identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observahle

* Level 3- Valuation techniques for which ihe lowest level input that is sigaificant to the fair value measurement is unobscrvable

For asscts and liabilitics that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categarization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair
value measurement as a whale) at the end of each reporting period,

For thc purpesc of fair valuc disclosurcs, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained above.

Critical accouinting estimates, judgement and assumptions

The preparation of these Consolidated financial statements requires the management to make judgments, use estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the acGrouping disclosurcs, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgements, assumptions and estimates could result in putcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or hability affected in futurc periods.

i. Taxes

Uneertainties exist with respect ta the interpretation of tax regulziions, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable
income, Given the wide range of business relationships differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or
future changes to such assumptions, could necessitaie future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Group
cstablishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of
previous tax assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.

ii. Employee benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plans .c. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuariai valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, mortality rates and fulure pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions
and its long-term nature, a defined henefit obligatior is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date. In determining the appropriste discount rate, maragement considers the interest rates of long term government
bonds with extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the deiined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality tables for India. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates
for India.
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ili. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group, including legal, contracter
and other claims, By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future cvents eceur or fail ta oceur.
The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencics inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and
the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

iv. Property Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent significant portion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation
is derived after determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The uselul life and
residual value of Group's assets are determined by Management at the lime asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the
end of each year, The useful life is based on historical experience with similar assets, in anticipation of future ¢vents, which may have
impact on their life such as change in technolegy,

v. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset including intangible assets having indefinite
useful life and goodwill may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recaoverable amount is the higher of an assct's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal
and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount, In assessing value in use , the estimated [uturc cash flows are estimated based on past
trend and discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators,

vi. Provisions for Defect liability and repairs

As per, Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 [RERA) vide section 14{3} a builder or devcloper will be Lable to repair any
defect, on the building sold, for a period of Five ycars. Further, as per the terms of contracts with customers, the Group is liable for any
defects, repairs and other claims for ertain period after completion and handover of the possession of developed properties. Provision for
defect Hlability and repairs is recognized when sales from conmtracts with customer is recognized. Certain percentage to the sales
recognised is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for expense to be accrued, The recognition percentage is
bascd on management cstimates of the possible future incidence, The claims against defect hability and repairs from customers may not
exactly match the historical percentage, so such estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood
of sccurrence and revised accordingly.

{vii) Provision for expected credit losses {ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group [ollows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Under this approach the Group
docs not track changes in credit risk but recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifctime ECLs at cach reporting date. For this
purpose the Group uses a provision matrix to determine the impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The said
matrix is based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables duly adjusted for forward looking
estimates.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk cxposures, the Group determines whether there has been a
significant inerease in the credit risk sinee initial recognition. If eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month espected credit
loss|ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk nas increased significantly, lifetime ECL is uscd. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant inerease in eredit risk since initial
recognition, then the Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines [inancial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objcctive of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on
a timely basis.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit lasses resulting from all possible default cvents over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default cvents on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are e o the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. The ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal)
recognized during the period in the statement of profit and loss and the cumulative loss is reduced from the earrying amount of the asset
until it meets the write off criteria, which is generally when no cash flows are expected to be realised from the asset,

[viii] Impairment for Investments in Subsidiary & Assorites

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries are impaired requires an cstimate in the value in use of investments. In considering
the value in use, the Directors have anticipaied the firture operating margins, resources and availability of infrastructure, discount rates
and other factors of the underlying businesses/operations of the investee companies. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to
changes in the above-mentioned factors could impact the earrying value of investments.
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2.22

(ix) Leases

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancelleble term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an optian to extend
the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods coverad by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain
not o be exercised. Wherever, lease contracts that include extension and termination options, the Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably eertain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant
facters that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its contrel and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or g terminate.

Recent Indian Aecounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companics (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companics (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amcndment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as belaw:

(i} Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framewark -

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assels and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Accounting Standards [Conceptual Framewerk] issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These
changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant
impact in its Financial Statements.

{ii} Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment ameounts reccived [rom selling
items produced while the Group is preparing the asset for ite intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and
related cost in profit or loss. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any inpact in its recognition of its property, plant, and
equipment in its Financial Statements.

(iii) Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract {examples would be dircct labour materials] or an
allocation of other costs that relate dircctly to fulfilling contracts, The amendment is esscntially a clarification, and the Group does not
expeet the amendment to have any significant impact in its Financial Statements.

(iv]  Ind AS 109 = Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2022) .
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent' test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to
derccognise a financial liability. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its Financial Statements.

(v) Ind AS 116 - Annual Imprevements to Ind AS (2022)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration.
The Group dees not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its Financial Statements.
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All amaounts are T in Lakhs unless atherwise stated

3 Statement of Changes in Equity
a) Equity share capital

For period ended March 31, 2024

Balance as at April 1, 2023

Changes in equity share
capital due ta prior

Restated balance at April

Changes in equity share

Balance as at March 31,

1,2023 capital during the year 028
period errors
200.00 200,00 15,000.00 15,200.00
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Changes in equity share
Restated balance at April | Changes In equity share | Balance as at March 31,
Balance as at April 1, 2022 capital due to prior 1,2022 capital during the year 2023
period errors
200.00 = 200.00 - 200.00
(b} Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Securities premium Retalned earnings Remeasurement of
d :
Batance as at April 1, 2023 1,679.16 17,946.10 (a.08} 18982118
Changas in accounting policy i - - L
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 1,679.16 17,946.10 (4.08) 19,821.18
Prafit for the year - 12,294.62 - 12,294.62
Less: Utilised for Bonus |ssue {1,879.16) [13,320.84) {15,000.00)
Remeasurernent of defined benefit obligation, net of income tax - - 2443 2443
Total comprehensive {loss)/Gain for the year (1,879.16) [B26.22) 2943 [2,680.96)
Securities premium on shares issued {net of share issue costs) = % % =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 17,119.88 20.34 17,140.22
Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Securities premium Retained eamings Remeasurement of
defined benefit plan
Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,879.16 12,460.31 (7.91) 14,331.56
Changes in accounting policy - - - =
Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 1,879.16 12,460.31 (7.91) 14,33156
Frofit for the year - 54a5.75% - 5,485.79
Remeasurement of defined benafit obligation, nat of income tax - = 38z 382
Total comprehensive {loss]/Gain for the year - 5,085,789 sz 548961
Securities premium on shares lssued [net of share lssue costs) - - = =
|Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,879.16 17,946.10 [4.08) 19,821.18
Significant Accounting Policies and Nates to Accounts 1-45
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

5 Intangible assets

Particulars Computer Software Total

I. Cost/Deemed cost

Balance as at March 31, 2022 = =
Additions 24.87 24.87
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 24.87 24.87
Additians B.16 8.16
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 33.03 33.03

Il. Accumulated amartisation
Balance as at March 31, 2022 = -
Amortisation expense for the year -
Eliminated on disposal of assets = -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 - =

Armortisation expense for the year -
Eliminated on disposal of assets =

Balance as at March 31, 2024 = -

l1l. Net block balance (I-11)

As on March 31, 2024 33.03 33.03
As on March 31, 2023 24.87 2487
As on March 31, 2022 - -

5.1 The Group has not revalued its intangible assets as on each reporting period and therefore Schedule 11l disclosure requirements
with respect to fair value details is not applicable.

5.2 The computer software under Intangible assets is having useful life of indefinite period and hence not amortised.




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Notes

to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

6

-

6.2

6.3

6.4

Right-of-use assets

Particulars

Premises Total

I. Cost

Balance as at April 1, 2022
Additions

Termination

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Additions

Termination

Balance as at March 31, 2024

ll. Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2022
Amortisation expense for the year
Eliminated on termination
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Amortisation expense for the year
Eliminated on termination
Balance as at March 31, 2024

11, Net block balance (I-11)
As on March 31, 2024
As on March 31, 2023
As on March 31, 2022

217.61 217.61

217.61 217.61

35.28 35.28

35.28 35.28

182.33 182.33

Details of lease liabilities

Particulars

For year ended
March 31, 2024

For year ended
March 31, 2023

As at beginning of the year
Recognised during the year

Finance cost accrued during the year
Derecognised during the year
Payment of lease liabilities

As at end of the year

207.99 =
14,65 -

(40.72) i

181.92 3

Classification of lease liabilities

Particulars

For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current
Current
Total

143.34 -
38.57 =

181.92 5

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For year ended
March 31, 2024

For year ended
March 31, 2023

Amortisation expenses on right-of-use assets
Interest expenses on lease llability

Expenses related to short term leases

Gain on early termination of lease

3528 =
14,65 -
821 -

an undiscounted basis.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liab

ilities of non-cancellable contractual commitments as on

Particulars

For year ended
March 31, 2024

Foryear ended
March 31, 2023

Less than one year
One to five years
Meore than five years

56.94 —
172.29 =

6.5 Tha company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the

obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

6.6 The comparny has taken assets including offices on lease. The average lease term is 3-5 years as at 31st March,2024.

6.7 The total cash outflows for leases amounts to % 48.93 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2023: 2 Nil) (includes cash outflow from short

term and long term leases).




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

7 Investments

Particular

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

No. of Units

Amount

No. of Units

Amount

Non-current
Ungquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Current Capital of Associates Firms
Atul & Arkade Realty
Bhoomi & Arkade Associates

Total

Total aggregate unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of cost of quoted investments
Aggrepate amount of cost of unquoted investments
|Aggregate amount of impairment value of investments

1,750.04
63.35

1,697.26

1,813.39

1,697.26

1,813.39

1,697.26

7.1 The Group has two associate firms as at March 31, 2024 and accordingly, the Company is compliant with the number of layers prescribed under clause
(87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017).

7.2 Details of Investment in Partnership Firms:

(i) M/'s Atul & Arkade Realty

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Shal f Each
Name of the Partners Shacn of Eack Total Capital T a1 mae Total Capital
partner partner
(L] Amount in (%) Amount in ”
Arkade Developers Ltd. 40,00 1,750.04 40.00 1,697.26
Atul Projects India Ltd. 60.00 1,750.71 60.00 1,652.24
Total Capital 100.00 3,500.75 100.00 3,349.50
(i) M/s Bhoomi & Arkade Associates
As at 31st March 2024 As at 315t March 2023
f Each Shi f Each 2
Name of the Partners Shars o Enc Total Capital BIE.A1. =00 Total Capital
partner partner
(%) Amount in (%2) Amountin”
Arkade Developers Ltd, 34.00 63.35 34.00 [32.75)
Bhoomi Shashwat Estate Put, Ltd, 66.00 102.33 66.00 (79.07)
Total Capital 100.00 165.68 100.00 (111.82)




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

8 Loans

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Non-current - unsecured, considered good
{a) Loans to employees

Total

Current - unsecured, considered good

(a) Loans to employess 11.14 9.07

Total 11.14 9.07
9 Other financial assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023

Non Current - unsecured, considered good
(2] Deposits with bank

- Margin money deposits with banks (held as lien by bank) 219.80 637.29

- Fixed Deposit with Bank 313 -

(b} Security deposits 1526 =
Total 238.18 637.24

Current - unsecured, considered good
(a) EMD Deposits with societies 267.00 200.00
(b) Security deposits 8.89 2.99
(c) Other receivables 19.59 64.75
Total 295.48 267.74
10 Non-current tax assets [net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Advance tax (net of provisions) 217.58 107.96
Total 217.58 107.96




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

11 Deferred tax asset (net)

11.1 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to the six months period ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Opening Balance as Recognised in Recognised in Recognised Closing balance as
on April 1, 2023 Profit or loss Other directly in Equity | on March 31, 2024
(expense)/ credit | comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment (2.49) 8.48 - - 6.00
Provisions 37.62 12.35 - . 48,97
Disallowances under Income Tax 30.74 (30.74) - - -
ROU Assets, Lease Liability, security deposits and {3.68) (3.68)
Loan Processing Fees
Total 65.86 (13.58) - - 52.29

11.2 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Opening Balance as Recognised in Recognised in Recognised Closing balance as
on April 1, 2022 Profit or loss Other directly in Equity | on March 31, 2023
(expense)/ credit | comprehensive
income

Property, plant and equipment 0.17 (2.65) - - (2.49)
Provisions 26,79 10.83 - - 37.62
Disallowances under Income Tax - 30.74 - - 30,74
Tatal 26.96 38.91 - . 65.87

!
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Arkade Developers Limited [Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

12 Other assets

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Non-current
(2) Prepaid Expenses
(b} Capital Advance
Total

Current
{a) Security depaosits given against purchase of land
(b} Balance with Government Authorities*
(c} Advance to Suppliers
(d) Prepaid Expenses *™*
(e)Iinterest Accrued and due
() Other Receivables

Total

285 8.25
2.85 8.25
887.17 198.82
15.06 90.27
478,05 14.92
3.70 24,93
4.27 11.72

1,388.25 340.66 |

* Balance with Government Authorities as at 31st March, 2024 includes deposits towards Court Fees amounting to Rs. 46.66 Lakhs and GST

Appeal amounting to Rs. 32.53 Lakhs.

** Prepaid Expenses as at 31st March, 2024 includes Rs. 215.54 Lakhs towards expenses incurred in relation to Initial Public Offer.

13 Inventories

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
At lower of cost or net realisable value
{a) Work in Progress (Project) 48,790.24 48,977.86
b} Finished Goods = 1,074.80
Total 48,790.24 50,052.66
14 Trade receivables
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Trade receivables
(a) Unsecured, considered good 807.19 370.45
(b} Unsecured, credit Impaired £
807.19 370.49
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts » =
Total B07.19 370.49

14.1 The average credit period on sales of goods is 15 days.

14.2 Considering the inherent nature of business of the Group, Customer credit risk is minimal. The Group generally does not part away with its
assets unless trade receivables are fully realised. Wherever there is doubt on recovery, the Group makes adequate provision based on best

estimation of recovery.

Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, management believes there is no credit risk provision
required, other than those made in the accounts, if any. Also the Group does not have any significant concentration of credit risk.

—
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

15 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
(a) Cash on hand 1.48 1.07
(b) Balances with banks in current account 2,328.79 1,660.75
Total 2,330.27 1,661.84

15.1 There is no repatriation restriction with regard to cash and cash equivalents at the end of reporting and prior periods.

16 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
(a) Term deposits with banks (with original maturity of more than three months 155.79 95.23
but less than twelve months)

(held as margin money with Banks for guarantees)

Total 155.79 95.23
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

18 Other equity

Paticulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Securities premium - 1,879.16
Retained earnings 17,119.88 17,946.10
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 20.35 (4.08))
Total 17,140.23 19,821.18
18.1 Securities premium
Paticulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 1,879.16 1,879.16
Securities premium arising on issue of equity shares - -
Securities premium utilised for issuing of bonus shares (1,879.16) 4
Balance at end of the year - 1,879.16

Amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. It will be used as per the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemptian of shares, write-off equity

related expenses like underwriting costs, etc.

18.2 Retained earnings

Paticulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 17,946.10 12,460.31
Less: Utilised for Bonus Issue (13,120.84) -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 12,294.62 5,485.79
Balance at end of the year 17,119.88 17,946.10

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any transfers to General Reserve, dividends or
other distributions to shareholders, Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company.

18.3 Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Paticulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at beginning of the year (4.08) (7.91)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 24.43 3.82
Income tax on above - =
Balance at end of the year 20.35 (4.08)

Includes re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to statement of profit

and loss.

19 Borrowings

/ IC:E:_:_: fo./\ \

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Non Current
Secured from banks:
Vehicle Loan from Bank 62.14 92.13
Term Loan from Non-Bank Financial Companies 2,842.11 7,783.31
2,904.25 7,875.45
Current
Secured from banks:
Current maturities of long term loans from banks 12.36 27.72
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Loan from related parties (refer note 39) 4,024.43 6,946.35
Loan fram Other - -
Intercorporate Deposits - 50.00
4,036.79 7,024.08
J-':;—-":j \,\ Total 6,941.04 14,899.53
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Arkade Developers Limited (Farmerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

19.1 Summary of borrowing arrangements

The terms of repayment of term loans and other loans are stated below:

Secured against mortgage of Vehicle,

monthly installment of Rs. D.84
lakhs.

it carrizs an interast rate of 8,404
B.a.

Particulars Terms of repayment Amaount outstanding - Amount outstanding -
331,03, 2034 31.03.2023
Nature of Security for Non-current borrowings:
[a) Term Lean from HDFC Bank Limited
Security
tdorgage of Company's share of Inventory, receivables and Insuranee policies of|The loan is repayable as 10% of the - 1,450.00
Project namely "Arkade Crown™ in Borivali West, Mumbai. Further, It is secured|eollections out of the said projects
against Morgage of commercial premises of the Director, Mr. Amit lain, sitated at 2nd|receivables by way of escrow
Flar, Arkade House, Atmaram Merchant Marg, Kandivall, Mumbal. sweep
It carrins interst rate @ HOFC-CF-
PLR minus 280 basis point spread
(effective rate of Interest at the
time of sanction is 11.25% p.a.).
(b} Term Loan from Bajaj Housing Finance Limited
Security
Secured against exclusive fipst charge by way of Mortgage of unsold Inventory,|The loan is repayable as 10% of the = 5,333.31
scheduled recelvables and receivables from unsold units and Insurance policies offcollections out of the said projects
Project namely “Arkade Aspire” in Goregaon East, receivables by way of escrow
sweep.
it carries Interst rate @ BHFL-I-FRR
HFCINS minws 4,45 % spread.
Anflactive rate of interest at the
time of sanction iz 11.50% p.a.)
{c] Wehicle Loan from Bank of Baroda Limited
Security The |oan is repayable in 60 equal| - 119,36
Secured against mortgage of Ve hicle, manthly installment of Rs. 253
Lakiha,
It earries an Interest rate of 10.36%
B
{d} Term Loan from Bajaj Housing Finance Limited
Security
Secured against exclusive first charge by way of Mortgage of unsold Inventory,|The loan is repayable as 10% of the 365.08 =
scheduled receivables and receivables from unsold units and Insurance policies of|collections cut of the said projects
Project namely “Arkade Aspire” in Goregaon East, receivables by way of escrow
SWEED.
It earries interst rate @ BHFL-|-FRR
HFCINS minus 4,45 % spread,
.|effective rate of intarest at the
tirme of sanction s 11.75% p.a.)
(&) Term Loan from Bajaj Housing Finance Limited
Security
Secuted against exclusive first charge by way of Mortgage of unsald Inventory, |The loan is repayable as 10% of the 1,877.05 *
scheduled receivables and receivables from wnsold units and Insurance palicies of|callectians out of the said projects
|Preject namely "Arkade Aspire" In Goeregaon East, recefvables by way of escrow
SWeEER,
Itcarries interst rate (2 BHFL--FRR
HFCINS minus 4.45 % spread.
[effective rate of Interest at the
time of sanction is 11.75% p.a.)
{1} Vehicle Loan from ICICI Bank Limited
Security The loan is repayable In 60 equal 34.50 =
Sacured sgainst morigage of Vehicle, monthly installment of Rs. 077
lakhs.
It carries an interest rate of 9.05%
pa.
(g} Vehicle Loan from ICICI Bank Limited
Security The loan is repayable in 6D equall A0.00 -

The loans are repayable on demand.

LT+

\ e

13.2 Loan from Director, Mr. Amit Jain, amounting to Rs. 3774.43 Lakhs (PY March 2023 Rs. 4103.12 lakhs) are unsecured and carries interest at rate of 12% p.a. (PY March 2023 is B% pa.).




Arkade Developers Limited (Farmery known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless atherwise stated

Loan from Director, Mr. Arpit Jain amounting to Rs. 250,00 Lakhs (PY march 2023 Rs. 1406.58 lakhs) are unsecured and carvies interest at rate of 122 p.a. [PY March 2023 is 15% pa)).
The lgans are repayable on demand.

Lean fram Director, Mr. Sandeep lain amounting to Re. Nil (PY March 2023 Rs. 1436.65 lakhs] are unsecured and carries interest at rate of 12% p.a. {PY March 2023 is 15% pa.). The
leans are repayable on demand,

Loan from Atul Projects (India} Private Limited amounting te Rs. Nil {PY March 2023 Rs, 50.00 lakhs) i unsecured and interest free. The loan is repayable on demind.

19.3 Reconcillation of liabilities avising from financing activities
The table below details changes in the Campany’s liabilities arising from financing activitles, including Both cash and non—cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
thase far which cash flows ware, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Comparry's statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Particulars For period ended March 31, 2024 Faeiyemr e';';;“m %
Term loans from banks / Non Banking financial companies
Balanee at beginning of year of relavant year 14,89%.53 6,441,328
Financing cash flows
- Proceeds from issue of long term f short term borrowings 16,572.89 11,700.55
- Repayment of long term [ short term borrowings 25.816.83 3.844.78
Nen-cash changes
- Transaction cost of long term bormowings (net} 109.88 [132.83)
- Interest accruals on acceunt of amentisation 1,17537 735.31
|Balance at end of year 6,341.04 14,899.53

19.4 the Company has availed working capital term loans in excess of five crore rupses, in aggregale, from banks or financial insfilutions on the basis of securily of current
assels for the specific projests. Quarterly relurs / sialements and other infarmation filed wilh such Banks/ financial inslilufions are in agreement wilh the baoks of accounls,
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20.1

21

22

221

Other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Non-current
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Security depasits received

Total - -
Current
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Security deposits received from customer 140.64 197.02
Interest accrued but not due - 25.42
Society maintenance liabilities (net of expense incurred) 27.33 62.44
Employee Benefits payable 100.54 519.55
Accrued Expenses 15.64 13.29
Praject Expenses Payable 173.62 545.75
Other payables - 9.40
Total 457.77 1,372.86
Refer note 39 on financial instruments.
Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 110.19 104.28
- Leave Encashment 14.48 4.86
Total 124.66 109.14
Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 17.10 17.40
- Leave Encashment 3.02 0.99
Provision for defect liability & repairs 512.22 27213
Total 532.33 290.53
Trade payables
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
{a) Total outstanding dues of small and micro enterprises 1,012.35 796.63
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small and micro 2,816.95 1,555.26
enterprises
Total 3,829.30 2,351.90

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days.

22.2 For explanations on the Group’s liquidity risk management processes Refer nate 39.3 {iii)
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22.4 Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MISMED Act):
The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006' has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of infarmation available with the Group.

23

24

This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | Asat March 31, 2023

{a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 1,012.35 796.63

remaining unpaid as at period end

(b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 3.70 "

unpaid as at period end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond - -

the appointed day during the period

(c) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers - -

registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the period

(d) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under -

the MSMED Act,beyond the appointed day during the periad

(e} Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, - =

for payments already made

(g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier periods -

Other current liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023

Statutory remittances 599.30 987.60

Advance from Customers 12,288.20 15,459.52

Current Account balance with Partnership Firms & LLP's - 32.75
Total 12,887.51 16,479.86

Current tax liabilities (net of advance tax)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023

Income tax payable (net of advance tax) 182.54 5
Total 182.54 -
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Revenue from operations
For year ended March 31,| For year ended March 31,
I
Particulars e 2023
Sale of Properties 63,444.36 21,915.67
Other operating revenues
Development and amenities charges from Sale of Flats 29,29 99,61
Total 63,473.65 22,015.27

25.1 The Group has provided for impairment losses, if any, based on expected credit loss policy on trade receivable recognised in statement of profit and loss for the year

25.2

ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
Contract balances

Refer details of trade receivables in note 14 & advance from custormers in note 23

25.3 The Group receives payments from customers as per agreed contractual terms and payment schedules. Accounts receivable are recorded when the right to

25.4 Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

26

27

28

consideration becomes unconditicnal.

For year ended March 31,

For year ended March 31,

Particulars St 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers 63,444,386 21,915.67
Add: Credits / Returns - -
Contracted price with the cu £3,444.36 21,915.67

Other income

Particulars

For year ended March 31,

For year ended March 31,

2024 2023
Interest Income on fianancial assets measures at amortizad cost
- From bank deposits 9.89 3674
- From delayed payments by customers 18.45 875
- From security deposites 0.8B -
28.27 45.48
Other gains and losses
= Net gain arising an financial investments measure - :
at FvTPL
- Gain on sale of current investments 23.72 7273
23.72 72.73
Other non-operating income
- Cancellation Charges Received from Customers - 4.94
- Commission Received 22.07 10.79
- 5undry Balance written back 16.62 802.90
- Miscellaneous income 5.87 7.68,
44.56 B26.31
Total 97.56 944.52
Cost of Constructions
Particulars For year ended March 31,| For year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Land & Land Related cost 13 874.64 14,435.11
Construction Cost 24,774.00 17,155.23
Allocated expenses to project
Finance cost (refer note 30) 1,354.44 662,39
Emplayee benefits expense (refer note 29) - 50.00
Other expenses (refer note 32) 1,636.64 1,136,12
Total 41__n=39.?3 33!442,54
Changes in inventaries of finished goods and work in progress
| pariicutiare [ For year ended March 311, | For year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Inventories at the heginni i r
-Finished Units [Completed Projects) 1,074.53 -
-Werk in Progress (Projects under construction / development] 48,978.13 29,9500.75
Inventories at the end of the year
-Finished Units (Completed Projects) - 1,074.53
~Work in Progress (Projects urder construction / development) 48,750.24 48,978.13
Net {increase)/decrease L e 1,262.42 {20,151.91)
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Employee benefits expense

Particulars For year ended March 31, Foryeer ended March 31,
2024 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,211.93 687.90
Director's Remuneration & Bonus 331.40 1,017.02
Contribution to provident and other funds {Refer note 37) 11.23 4,64
ESIC Contribution 0.65 0.72
Gratuity (Refer note 38) 30.03 2360
Leave Encashment 11.64 129
Staff Training & Recruitment Expanse 46.02 1548
Staff welfare expenses 27.28 7.69
1,670.19 1,758.34
Emplayes benefits expense allocated to Cost of Constructions (refer note 27) - [50.00)
Total 1,670.19 1,708.34
S—|
Finance cost
Particulars For year ended March 31,| Foryear ended March 31,
2024 2023
Interest cost - on financial labilities at amortised cost
- Barrowings from banks 7.10 11,66
- Borrowings from MBFC's 737.17 114,77
- Borrowlings from Others 634,81 619,87
- Lease Liabilities 14.65 i
Transaction cost related to long term borrowings 246,44 2.37
Bank Charges and Stamp Duty Charges on long term borrewings 27.00 41.83
1,667.16 790.50
Finance cost allocated to Cost of Constructions (refer note 27) [1,354.44) {662.33)
Total 312.72 128.12

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Particulars

For year ended March 31,

For year ended March 31,

Deprecjation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of infangible assets *
Right-of-use assets

Total

2024 2023
78.57 27.12

35.28 -

113.84 27.12

* The computer software under Intangible assets is having useful life of indefinite period and hence not amortised.

Other expenses

For year ended March 31,| For year ended March 31,
Particulars A 3004
Brokerage & Commission 860,31 460.38
Business Promation & Advertising 1,383.26 78214
Computer Expenses 123 183
Director Sitting Expenses 7.09 -
Donation & CSR Expense 125.08 83.27
Electricity Charges 348 5.47
Expenses to Increase Autorized Share Capita! 173185 *
House Keeping Expenses 74.87 31.54
Insurance Expenses 21.78 B.59
Auditors Remuneration (As per Note 32) 4.00 4,00
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 17.61 E
Legal & Professional Fees 798,68 549.63
Mator Car Expenses 4.06 577
Printing & stationary 8.54 10.87
Rent paid 8.21 -
Repair & Maintenance Expenses - Others 6.59 9.76
Security Expenses 101.44 74.35
Stamp Duty Refund . =
GST/YAT Reversed [/ Paid 10,70 -
Software & [T related Expenses 7.00 18,71
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 17.39 2138
Miscellaneous Expenses 158.73 54.33

3,793.88 2,123.03

Other expenses allocated to Cast of Canstructions {refer note 27) (1,636.64) {1,136.12)
Total 2,157.23 986.91
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32.1 Auditors

jon and out-of-pocket exp [net of GST):

Particulars

For year ended March 31,
2024

For year ended March 31,
2023

(i} For audit

(i) For taxation matters

{iii} For other services

{iv) Fer certification waork

{v) Auditors out-of-pocket expenses
Total

4.00

4.00

4.00

Expenses on corporate social resE-umRJilihf

Particulars

For year ended March 31,
2024

For year ended March 31,
2023

[

s

~4

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the period/ year (under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013)

Amount of expenditure incurred

(i} Constructionfacquisition of any asset
(i) On purpeses other than (i} above
Amount not spend during the year on:
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(1) On purposes other than (i} above
Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfall

Reasan for shortfall
- Adoption of leng gestation program/project

Amount yet te be spent/paid

Details of Related party trensactions
- Contributions te the trust in which directors are trustee

Liability incurred by entering into contractual obligations

Mature of C5R activities;

104.73

12011

46,88

a. Promoting health care
ineluding preventive
health care and sanitatien
b. Protection of Art/
culture

. Ensuring environmental
sustainability and
maintaining quality of soil,
air and water

d.  Eradicating hunger,
poverty and malnitrition

T6.62

7935

2133

a. Promoting health care
including preventive health
care and sanitation
b. Protection of Artf
culture

c. Ensuring environmental
sustainability and
maintaining quality of sail,
air and water

d. Eradicating  hunger,
poverty and malnitrition
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33 Current Tax and Deferred Tax

33.1 Income Tax Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Tax:
Current income tax charge 4,247.22 1,790.64
Short provision of tax relating to earlier years {41.27) -
4,205.95 1,790.64
Deferred Tax expense/ (credit)
In respect of current period 13.58 (38.90)
13.58 (38.90)
Total tax expensef{credit) recognised in statement of profit and loss 4,219.53 1!?51.?4
33.2 Income Tax recognised in other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets:
Remeasurement of Defined Banafit Obligations
Total

33.3 Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate:

For the year ended For the year ended

—— March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit/(Loss) before tax 16,511.01 7,235.82
Less: Income taxed at different tax rate [23.72) [72.73)
Prafit/{Loss) Before tax 16,487.28 7.163.08
Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate # 4,149.52 1,802.81
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 92,09 37.64
Effect of income that is not taxahble in determining taxable profit [24.14) (105.06)
Effect of income taxed at different rate - 21.23
Effect of adoption of Ind AS 29.75 34,03
Income tax related earlier year (41.27) =
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 4,205.95 1,790.64

# The tax rate used for the recanciliations above is the carporate tax rate of plus surcharge (as applicable) on corporate tax, education cess and
secondary and higher education cess on corporate tax, payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under Income Tax Act, 1961.

In pursurance of Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 announced by the Government of India through Taxation Laws [Amendment)
Ordinance, 2019, the Company has opted for irrevocable option of shifting to lower tax rate w.e.f FY 19-20.

33.4 The Group does not have any unrecorded income and assets related to previous vears which are required to be recorded during the year.

R b

=

—

m
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34 Earning per share

Particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Profit/Loss for the year 12,294.62 5,485.79
[b) Weighted average number of Qrdinary shares outstanding for the purpose of 20,00,000 20,00,000
basic earnings per share (numbers)
(c) Effect of potential ordinary bonus shares [numbers)* 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
{d) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in computing diluted earnings 15,20,00,000 15,20,00,000
per share [{b) + [c]] (numbers)
(e) Earnings per share on Profit for the year (Face Value % 10/- per share)
—Basic [(a)/(b}] (%) 8.09 361
— Diluted [(a)/{d]] (%) 8.09 3.61

*Note : Pursuant to the resolution passed in the meeting of shareholders held on July 06, 2023, the Company has allotted 15,00,00,000 equity shares
of face value of Rs. 10/- each, as a bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:75 to the existing eguity shareholders, The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 presented above are restated and accordingly basic and diluted earning

per share have been calculated after considering the bonus issue of shares,

35 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Contingent liabilities :

(i) Bank Guarantees 255.00 190.00
(i) Demands/Claims by Government Authorities not acknowledged as debts and contestedfto be

contested by the Company:

Income Tax - FY 2015-16 and FY 2017-18 11.00 -
Service Tax - FY 2016-17 8.85 2.85
Goods & Service Tax - FY 2017-18 to FY 2022-23 * 5,366.48 2,975.42

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Capital Commitment
Estimated Amount of Contracts Remaining to be Executed on capital account and not provided for

35,

-

* The figures for the year Ended March 31, 2024 and March 21, 2023 Includes the amount of contingent liabilities for the respective year, where show

cause notice or claims have been received after the close of respective reporting period and till the date of approval of this fianncial statements by
the Board of Directors. Further, the amaunt of cantingent liabilities disclosed above, does not include the amount of interest or penalty, wherever the

same are not ascertain or included in demand notices,

35.2 The Group is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business, the impact of which presently is not
quantifiable. These cases are pending with various courts [ authorities. After considering the eircumstances and advice from the legal advisors,
management believes that these cases will not adversely affect its financial statements. The above Contingent Liabilities exclude undeterminable

outcome of these pending litigations,

35.3 Future cash flow in respect of the above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with the relevant authorities.
Interest, penalty or compensation liability arising on outcome of the disputes has not been considered, since not determinable at present.

35.4 The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision was required for foreseeable lnsses.

36 Segment information

Far management purposes, the Cempany Is into one reportable segment i.e, Real Estate development.

The Managing Director is the Chief Operating Decision Maker of the Company who monitors the operating results of the Company for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. The Company's performance as single segment is evaluated and measured
consistantly with profit or loss in the standalone financial statements. &lso, the Company’s financing (including finance costs and finance income) and

income taxes are managed on a Company basis
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36.1 Geographical information
The Group operates in one geographical environment only i.e. in India.

The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information about its non-current assets by

location of assets are detailed below:

Revenue fram External Customers

Particulars For year ended For year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Within India 63,473.65 22,015.27
Outside India 5 -
Tatal 63,473.65 225015.27

Non-current Assets

L gy As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Within India 1,617.23 224.23
Qutside India = 3
Total 1,617.23 224.23

36.2 Information about major customers

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Company’s revenue for the Six Months Period Ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

36,3 The reporting segment includes a number of sales operations in various cities within India each of which is considered as a separate operating
segment by the CODM. For financial statements presentation purposes, these individual operating segments have been aggregated into a single

reportable operating segment taking into account the following factors:

= these operating segments have similar long-term gross profit margins;
= the nature of the products and production processes are similar; and
= the methods used to distribute the products to the customers are the same.
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37 Employee benefit plans

37.1 Defined contribution plans:
The Group participates in Provident fund as defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised n
relation to provident fund represents the value of cantributions payable during the period by The Company at rates specified by the rules
of provident fund. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were not paid
until after the end of the reporting period.

(a) Provident fund and pension

In accordance with the Employee's Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the Company are
entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make
manthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are made
to the provident fund administered and managed by Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further abligations under the fund
managed by the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are
incurred. The benefits are paid to employees on their retirement or resignation from the Company.

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year under employee benefits expense,
are as under:

Particulars For the year ended March For the Year ended
31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i} Emplayer's cantribution to provident fund and pension 11.23 4.64

ii} Employer's contribution ta state insurance corporation 0.65 0.72

Total 11.89 5.36

[b) Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity (Unfunded)

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a unfunded defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides for
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or at death while in employment or on termination of the employment of an
amount equivalent to 15 days salary, as applicable, payable for each completed year of service, Vesting occurs upon completion of five
years of service, The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.

The most recant actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out for the year ended March 31,
2024 by an independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service
cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method,

{A) Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks,
the most significant of which are detailed below:
(1) Actuarial Risk:
Itis the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
i) Adverse Salary Growth Experience
ii) Wariability in martality rates
i) Variability in withdrawal rates

(2] Investment Risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of
instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result
in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter- valuation
period.

(3) Liguidity Risk:

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such
employees resign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows.

(4) Market Risk:

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial assumption
that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to
decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & wvice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the
corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

(5] Legislative Risk

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The
government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when
any such amendment is effective.

-
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(B} Principal actuarial assumptions used:

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.

Gratuity (Unfunded)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
1, Discount rate - Company 7.20% 7.40%
2. Salary escalation - Company 10.00% 10.00%

3. Rate of employee turnover - Company

4. Mortality rate

Age 25 & Below © 25 %,
Age 25to0 35: 20 %,
Age 351045115 %,
Age 450 55: 10 %,
Age 55 & above ;5%

Age 25 B Below : 25 5%,
Age 25 to 35: 20 %,
Age 35to d45:15 %,
Age 45 to 55 10 %,
Age 55 & above : 5%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Uit

(C) Expenses recognised in profit and loss

Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded)
For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2024 31, 2023
Service cost:
Current service cost 21.67 17.12
Net Interest cost 8.36 6.48
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 30.03 23.60

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expenses' line item in the

Statement of profit and loss.

(D) Netinterest cost recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded)
For the year ended For year ended March 31,
March 31, 2024 2023
Interest cost 8.36 6.48
Interest income - -
Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss 8.36 6.48
(E) Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Particulars For the year ended For year ended March 31,
March 31, 2024 2023
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the year
- Due to changes in demographic assumptions 3 -
= Due to changes in financial assumptions 1.48 (3.85)
= Due to experience adjustment (25.91) 0.03
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income . s
|Nel {income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI [24.43)] (3.82)
(F) Amount recognised in the consalidated balance sheet
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 127.28 121.68
Fair value of plan assets = o
ﬁﬂ 121.68
(G) Net asset/(liability) recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
Recognised under: As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Long term provision 110.159 104.28
Short term provision 17.10 17.40
Total 127.28 121.68
{H) Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars For the year ended For year ended March 31,
March 31, 2024 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation 121.68 101.80
Current service cost 21.67 17.12
Interest cost 8.36 £.48
Actuarial losses / (Gain) (24.43) (3.82)
Benefits paid from the fund - -
Closing defined benefit obligation 127.28 121.68

e

o
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(1} Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting For the year ended For year ended March 31,
March 31, 2024 2023
Year 1 cashflow 17.10 17.40
Year 2 cashflow 16.11 17.33
Year 3 cashflow 14.39 15.70
Year 4 cashflow 13.53 1401
Year 5 cashflow 13.55 1293
Year 6 to year 10 cashflow 67.26 50.80
Total expected payments 141.95 128.17

{J) Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in
each of the lied assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such
assumptions rarely change in isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent. For presenting the sensitivities,
the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period, which |5 the same as that applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented above. There was no change in the
metheds and assumptions used in the preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis from previous year.

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting For the year ended For year ended March 31,
March 31, 2024 2023

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Rate of discounting

Impact of +0.5% change 123.65 118.37

(% change) (2.86%) (2.72%)

Impact of -0.5% change 131.13 12518

(% change) 3.02% 2.87%

Rate of salary increase

Impact of +0.5% change 129.23 12317

(% change) 1.53% 1.22%

Impact of -0.5% change 125.39 12038

(% change) (1.49%) [1.07%)

Withdrawal Rate [W.R.)

W.R. % 110% 127.50 12278

(% change) 0.17% 0.90%

W.R. x 90% 126.82 120.36

(% change) (0.37%) (1.09%%)

(K) Other disclosures

The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 31, 2024 is 6.76 years (March 31, 2023: 6.85 years).
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(c) Leave Encashment plan

{A) Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is expased to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
(1) Actuarial Risk:
It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
i} Adverse Salary Growth Experience
if) Variability in mortality rates
jii} Variability in withdrawal rates
iv) Variability in availment rates

(2) Investment Risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of
instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can
result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-
valuation period.

(3) Liquidity Risk:

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. if some of such
employees resign/retire from the Entity there can be strain on the

cash flows.

(4) Market Risk:

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are refated to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial
assumption that has a material effact is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount
rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice varsa. This assumption depends on the yields on the
corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of Kability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.Since
the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable ill retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

(5) Legislative Risk

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation.
The government may amend the Shop and Establishment Act, thus reguiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employaes.
This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the
year when any such amendment is effective.

[B) Principal actuarial assumptions used:
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows,

Leave Encashment {Unfunded)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
1. Discount rate - Company 7.20% 7.40%
2. Salary escalation - Company 10.00% 10.00%

3. Rate of employee turnover - Company

4. Mortality rate

Age 25 & Below : 25 %,
Age 25to 35: 20 %,
Age 3510 45 :15 %,
Age 45 to 55: 10 %,

Age 55 & above : 5%

Age 25 & Below : 25 %,
Age 2510 35:20 %,
Age 3510 45:15 %,
Age 4510 55:10 %,
Age 55 & above : 5%

. Indian Assured Lives Martality (2012-14) Ult.

[C) Expenses recognised in profit and loss

Particulars Leave Enchasement (Unfunded)
For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
Service cost:

Current service cost 6.37 1.66
Net Interest cost 0.40 0.29
Net value of remeasurements on the obligation and plan assets 4.88 (0.66)
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or logs 11.64 1.29

The current service cost and the net interest expenses fer the yzar are included in the 'Employee benefits expenses' line item in the

Statement of profit and loss.
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(D) Netinterest cost recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Interest cost 0.40 0.29
Interest income =
Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss 0.40 0.29
(E) Remeasurements on the UbliEtiOl’l and Plan Assets
Particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the year
- Due to changes in demographic assurptions - =
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.17 (0.16)
- Due to experience adjustment 471 (0.50)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 2
Net (Gain)/Loss for the period recognized in OCI 4.88 lo'ﬂ,
[F} Amount recognised in the consolidated baiance sheat
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 17.50 5.86
Fair value of plan assets =
17.50 5.86
(G) Net asset/(liahbility) recognised in the consolidatad balance sheet
Recognised under: As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Lang term provision 9.32 4.86
Shart term provision 1.94 0.99
Total 11.26 5.86
——

(H)

Movements in the present value of define:i henefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars i For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation 586 4.56
Transfer inf{out) obligation . .
Current service cost 6.37 1.66
Interest cost 0.40 0.29
Actuarial losses 4.88 (0.66)
Benefits paid from the fund - -
Closing defined benefit obligation 17.50 5.B6
} Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Projected benefits payable in future years frem the date of reporting For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Year 1 cashflow 3.02 0.99
Year 2 cashflow 268 0.89
Year 3 cashflow 239 0.80
Year 4 cashflow 2.16 0.72
Year 5 cashflow 1.85 0.66
Year b to year 10 cashflow 7.24 2.62
Total expected payments 19.45 6.68

(1) Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based 09 raasonably possiblz change of the respective assumptions occurring at
the end of the reparting period, while halding all siher assumptions conslant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a
change in each of the lied assumptions in isolation. While 2ach of these sensitivities halds all other assumptions constant, in practice
such assumptions rarely change in isolation and the asset value changes mey oifset the impact to seme extent. For presenting the
sensitivities, the present value of the Defined Benefit Oblig;itinn has hesn caleulated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting period, which is the same.as that appliad in calculating the Detined Benefit Obligation presented above. There was no
change in the methods and assumptighs usad in the prenaration of the Sensitivity Analyzis from previous year.
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Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reparting For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions
Rate of discounting
Impact of +0.5% change 17.08 572
(% change) (2.39%) [2.36%)
Impact of -0.5% change 17.94 6.00
(% change} 251% 2.48%
Rate of salary increase
Impact of +0.5% change 17.92 6.00
(% change) 2.43% 2.41%
Impact of -0.5% change 17.09 572
(% change) (2.34%) (2.32%)
Withdrawal Rate (W.R.) varied by 10%
W.R. x 110% 16.21 5.45
(% change) (7.38%) (6.99%)
W.R. x 90% 18.96 6.32
(% change} 8.39% TRTY

{K) Other disclosures

The weighted average duration of the cbligations as st Maveh 31, 2024 i5 5.33 years (iMarch 31, 2023: 5.43 years).
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38

38.1

Related party disclosures

Details of related parties

Description of relationship

Name of the related party

Key management personnel
- Director (Managing Director w.e.f. 01.06.2023)
- Director (Whole Time Director w.e.f. 01.06.2023)
- Director (Whole Time Director w.e.f. 01.06.2023)
- Director (Non-Executive Non-Independent Director w.e.f. 29.11.2023)
- Key management personnel {w.e.f. 31.10.2023)
- Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 01.06.2023)
- Company Secretary (w.e.f. 22.05.2023)

Amit Mangilal Jain

Arpit Jain

Sandeep Jain (Upto 30.10.2023)
Ketu Amit Jain

Sandeep Jain

Samshet Balkrishna Shetye
sheetal Haresh Solani

Relatives of key management personnel (where transactions have taken place)

Kritika Jain
Simran Jain
Ketu Jain
Sajjan lain
Vikram Jain
Kala Jain
Mangilal Jain
Sneha Jain

Enterprises over which key management personnel is able to exercise significant
influence (where transactions have taken place)

The Sajjan Jain Support Trust

Associates Firms f LLP Bhoomi & Arkade Associates
Atul & Arkade Realty
Arkade Abode LLP
Chandak & Arkade Associates
Transactions during the year with related parties
5. No. |Particulars Forthe yearended | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A management personnel
1| Amit Mangilal Jain
Manageriz| Remuneration 190.67 130.00
Loan Taken 1,006.32 2,184.55
Repayment of Loan Taken 1,781.30 1,371.05
Interest Expenses 446.30 235,36
Rent Expenses 18.00 -
Security Deposit Paid 3.00 -
11| Arpit Jain
Managerial Remuneration 91.33 448.33
Loan Taken 265.00 341.00
Repayment of Loan Taken 1,521.62 70.78
Interest Expenses 100.04 177,79
11| Sandeep Jain
Managerial Remuneration 49,40 438.69
Managerial Salaries 41.54 -
Loan Taken - 200.00
Repayment of Loan Taken 1,525.13 71.22
Interest Expenses 88.47 182.21
IV| Samshet Balkrishna Shetye
Managerial Salaries 26.76 -
V| Sheetal Haresh Solani
Managerial Salaries 7.15 -
B|Relatives of Key Management Personnel
I| Ketu Jain
Managerial Salaries 11.17 16.25
Sale of flat - 1,166.25
1| Kala Jain
Repayment of Loan Taken 24.76 141.00
Interest Expenses - 0.23
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Forthe yearended | Forthe year ended
S. Mo. |Particular
0. |Farteuiars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
11| Sajjan Jain
Repayment of Loan Taken - 291.00
Sale of flat + 575.00
1¥| Mangilal Jain
Repayment of Loan Taken - 560.00
C|Enterprises over which key management personnel is able to exercise significant
influence*
1{The Sajjan Jain Support Trust
Danations Paid 46.88 21.33
D|Associates Firms [ LLP
I|{Bhoomi & Arkade Associates
Share of profit / (loss) 96.10 468.64
Capital Introduce 250 191
Capital Withdrawals 250 144.04
Repayment of Loan Taken 142,13
Il{Arkade Abode LLP
Share of profit / (loss) - (3.79)
Capital Withdrawals - 4.05
in{Atul & Arkade Realty
Share of profit / (loss) (0.16) 0.19)
Capital Introduce 56.33 68.55
Capital Withdrawals 335 -
IV|Chandak & Arkade Associates
Write off of Balances - 0.78

The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms eguivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length

transactions. All the related party transactions are reviewed and approved by board of directors.

38.3 Amounts outstanding with related parties

S. No. |Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

A|Key management personnel

1| Amit Mangilal lain

Loan Payahle

Managerial Remuneration Payable
Rent Payable

Security Deposit Recelvable

1] Arpit Jain
Loan Payable
Managerial Remuneration Payable

Ill| Sandeep Jain

Loan Payable

Managerial Remuneration Payable
Managerial Salaries Payable

V| Kala Jain
Interest Payable

B i .
I|Bhoomi & Arkade Associates
Capital balance with firms

=

Atul & Arkade Realty
Capital balance with firms

3,774.43
5.61
135
3.00

250.00
4.79

6.58

63.35

1,750.04

4,103.12
10.06

1,406.58
21231

1,436.66
216.16

24.76

(32.75)

1,697.26
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39 Financial instruments and risk management

39.1 Capital risk management

The Group’s objective, when managing capital is to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital, support the corporate strategy and meet shareholder's expectations. The policy of the Group is to borrow
funds through banks or raise through equity which is supported by committed borrowing facilities to meet anticipated funding
requirements. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the requirement of financial markets. The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, and is

monitored by various metrics. The following table summarises the capital of the Company :

Particular As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Short term debts®*(including current maturities of long term debt) 4,036.79 7,024.08
Long term debts 2,904.25 7.875.45
Total Debts 6,941.04 14,899.53
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (2,330.27) {1,661.84)
Net debt 4,610.77 13,237.69
Total Equity 32,340.23 20,021.19
Net debt to equity ratio 0.14 0.66

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial

covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrawings.

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable, and there has been no breach of any loan covenants.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March

31, 2024,

39.2 Categories of financial instruments

The following table provides categorisation of all financial instruments

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost
(a) Loans (including inter corporate deposit) 11.14 5.07
{b) Security deposits 275.89 202,99
{c) Deposits with bank (Fixed Deposits) 219.80 637.24
{d) Cash and cash equivalent 2.330.27 1,661.84
{e) Bank balance other than (d) above 155.79 95.23
{f) Trade receivables B07.19 370.49
{g) Other financial assets 37.97 B64.75

Total financial assets 3,838.05 3,041,60

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost
{a) Borrowings 6,941.04 14,899.53
{b) Trade payables 3,837.83 2,351.90
[c} Lease Liabilities 181.92 -
(d) Other financial liabilities 449.24 1,372.86

Total financial liabilities 11,410.02 18,624.28

39.3 Financial risk management objectives

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Group's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.
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(i)-

(a

—

(b

{ii).

{iii).

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group periadically reviews the risk management palicy so that
the management manages the risk through properly defined mechanism. The focus is to foresee the unpredictability and minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group’s overall risk management procedures to minimise the
potential adverse effects of financial market on the Group's performance are as follows:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commuodity risk.

Interest rate risk;

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk from long-term borrowings at variable rate. Currently the Group has external
barrowings and barowwings from promoter & promoter groups which are fixed and floating rate borrowings. The Group achieves the
optimurm interest rate profile by refinancing when the interest rates go down. However this does not pretect Group entirely from the
risk of paying rates in excess of current market rates nor eliminates fully cash flow risk associated with variability in interest payments,
it considers that it achieves an appropriate balance of exposure to these risks.

Foreign currency risk:

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
currency rates. Exposures can arise on account of the various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than
Indian Rupee.

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(a). Financial liabilities:
In USD - -

Equivalent in % lakhs = =

(b). Financial assets:
InuUsD . _
In EURO £ E
Equivalent in % lakhs a -

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The Group's exposure te credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the
Group's customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which customers operate, has less influence on the
credit risk.

The Group has entered into contracts for the sale of residential and commercial units on an installment basis. The installments are
specified in the contracts. The Group is exposed to credit risk in respect of installments due. However, the possession of residential and
commercial units is handed over to the buyer only after all the installments are recovered. In addition, installment dues are monitored
on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to credit risk is not significant. The Group evaluates the concentration of
risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as none of its customers canstitutes significant portions of trade receivables as at the year
end.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial Institutions is managed by Group's treasury in accordance with the Group’s policy.
The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only placing balances with local banks of good repute. Given the profile of its bankers,
management does not expect any counterparty to fail in meeting its obligations.

Liguidity risk management
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial
asset guickly at close to its fair value. The Group has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term,
medium term and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adeguate
funds in cash and cash equivalents.
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Surplus funds not immediately required are Invested in certain financial assets which provide flexibility to liquidate at short notice and
are included in cash equivalents.

Liquidity risk table
The table below summarisas the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars iy 1-5 years Total

1 year
March 31, 2024
Borrowings 4,036.79 2,904.25 6,941.04
Lease Liabilities 38.57 143.34 181.92
Trade payables 3,837.83 - 3,837.83
Other financial liabilities 449.24 = 445.24
Total 8,362.43 3,047.59 11,410.02
March 31, 2023
Borrowings 7,024.08 7,875.45 14,899.53
Lease Liabilities - . -
Trade payables 2,351.90 . 2,351.50
Other financial liabilities 1,372.86 - 1,372.86
Total 10,748.83 7,875.45 18,624.28




*S53UISNQ JO 35IN0D AJBUIPJO 3 Ul seaAo|duwa 0} sajueape pue sueof 1dsoxa pouad sy Suunp ssiped Aue o3 sueo| Aue pajuesd jou sey dnouo ayj (i)
‘JUBLIEIEYS |BIJUBUL 3Y3 Ul T°g 310N ul uand aue Auedwo) aup Aq apew sjuaunsaau| jo s|ielaq (1)

'SMO|jo)
se ale {07 ‘se|ny (s1amod sy pue pieog jo sdungaapy) ssiuedwo) ayl yum peal 10 10y saluedwlo]) 243 JO 98T UOII3S J3PUN SjUSWSaAUL pue saajuelend ‘SUBg| Jo s|lejap ayL

£T0Z “1ov seiuedwo) 3yl jo 98T uondas Jad se 2.nsopsig €0

.mm-_.-_m_}
J1ey Jayy ejewxoidde sjuawalels [BpuUBUY SSBYY U PESIUB0I3) SII3|IGE]| [BIDUBUY PUE S1BSSE [BDUBUY JO Siunowe Sulhiied Byl eyl Japisuod Auedwod Byl 4O 51030341p BYL

(paJinbai a1e sansopIsIp aN|eA JIB) ING) BNjeA Jiej 1 P3JNSE3W 10U 3. 1ey] SIIIIGE]] [BIJUBUI) PUE S]955€ [BIJUBUY JO 3njeA Jied Z°0b

*s15eq SUlINDaJ B U0 3N|EA 1B} 1B PRINSESW 2.8 JBY] S3IM|Iqel| |BI2UBUL pUE $13sSE [ejaueuly Aue ainseaw jou sey Auedwo) ayy

siseq SulINJaJ B UO 3N[EA Jigj 18 PAUNSealu 2Je 1843 Sa1]Ie|| |12 UBUL PUE SI3SSE [BRUBUY s,Auedilo) 3yl jo anjea Jied T'0F

ge|| [BIDUBLIY PUE S]3SSE [BIIUBLI SNOLEA JO S3N|BA JIB) S3UIWIZIRP dnoJg BUL MOy INoge Loew.oyul sapiacsd ajou siy)
SJUDLIBINSEILW anjea Jieq op
Pa1E1S 35IMIBYIO SS3|UN SYNET Ul % SJE SIUNOWE ||y

¥Z0Z ‘TE YdIe 1€ SE SJU3WWAE)S [E1DUBUIY PIJEPIOSUO] 3Y) 0] S310N
{panwi7 1Al S1adojanaq spexiy Se umouy Ajsswiog) paniwi s1adojanaq spey .y



‘BAIIIELE SPWOIY BPOD) BYI Uaym poriad ayl ul 3oedw) pale(as AU pJodad [|Im pUE 12843 OU| SBWoD

3 uaym apo) ay3 jo J2eduwl sy ssasse [im Auedwo) 3yl palilou UIag Jou SBY J2aj@ 03Ul W0 ||Im 2P0 ayl Yaiym Uo alep ayl JasamoH “EIpu| jo aRazes ayl u paysignd usag sey

apo) 3] "0z0z Jagwaidag u) juasse |Bruapisald paniaasl spyauag uawhio|dws-1sod pue Juswhojdwa Suunp syyauaq sadojdws o1 Sunefsl (,8po),) 070z "ANdaS |EID0S Uo ApoD) ay|
0z0z "Mina3g |ewos jo 3po) LTy

*ET0Z ‘1Y saiuedwo) ayy Japun sadley) jo uonensiSay ul Aejap Aue apew jou sey dno ay| 9'Th
‘salieldlauag ajewijjn ay3 Jo jleyaq uo Jo o3 2yl ay3 Jo Ayundas ‘asjuesend Aue apinosd (q)
Jo (sauepuauag ajewdn) Auedwo?) ayl Jo yleyaq uo Jo Ag Janaosieym Jauuew Aue Ul paiyuap| sanua Jo suosiad Jaylo i 3sanul Jo pua| Apoaspul o Ajgaadip (e)
HITH

Adelpawsau) ayy jeyl Buipuelsiapun ayl yiim (saueipawsaiu) sannua udialo) Suipnpul (sajAmua Jo (sjuosiad Jaylo Aue o] spuny paisanul Jo paueo| JO pEdUBAPE JoU sey droso 3yl TR

‘1o ¥anuys satuedwo]) Yiim suonaesuely Aue aney jou pip dnoug ay|
sawedwos yo-yanns yum diysuonesy iy

"ETOZ 12y saluedwo? ay}
10 £€7 01 QET SUOJIIBS JO SWI U| ATJOYINY Jualadwo) ayl woly [eacidde paJinbas yaym ‘pousd Sunsodass yses Sulinp dnoug By Aq pIsiua SIUSWRTUBLIY JO SWBYIS OU BJEM 2343Y) E'Th

“Aauzaind [eniaip Jo Adusuind
01dA) u| pajsanul Jo papeJ; Jou sey dnolg 3y ‘pouad ugiodal yaea uung “porad Juinodal yoea Suunp Aauaain) [enuip Jo Auaund oadAi) u) paisaaul Jo papely jou sey dnoig ayl Z'Ir

‘JapunaJayl apeL ssjnd pue (384T 40 o) 886T '19Y (uojlqiyoud) suoijoesuel)] |weuag
ayy sapun Apadoud iweuaq Aue Suipjoy 1oy Auedwo?) ayy Jsuiede Suipuad ase o pajeniul uaaq asey yoiym ssuipaadoid ou aJe asayl Jayund saipadosd (weuaq umo Jou ssop dnosg ay) T'Iy

sajoN yl0 T

Pale1s aSIMIBYI0 SSBUN SYNET Ul 3 SJE SIUNOWE |y
FZ0Z "TE Y2JeA Je Se S1USLIBIeIS [BJUBULY P3IepI[oSUD) 3Y3 0} S31ON
{paywir] ajeany s1adojanag apeysy se umouy Al1awio4) payiwi siadojanag apeysy



Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

42 Ratio Analysis and its elements

a) Current Ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

b

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Current assets 53,778.36 52,797.69
Current liabilities 21,964.81 27,519.22
Ratio [In times) : 2.45 1.92
% Change from previous year 27.60% 23.08%
Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2023-24 is on account of mainly repayment of short-term borrowings and decrease in advance from customers.
Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by average equity
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
| 2024 2023
Met profit after tax 12,291.47 5,4B4.08
Total equity* 26,180.71 17,276.38
Ratio 0.47 0.32
% Change from previous year 47.90% -21.40%
*Average equity represents the average of opening and closing total equity.
Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in Net profitability of the Company.
¢) Inventory Turnover Ratic = Cost of materials consumed divided by average inventory
i As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars
2024 2023
Cost of materials cansumed 42,902.14 13,290.93
Average Inventory 49,421.45 35,976.71
Ratio (In times) 0.87 0.33
% Change from previous year 161.11% -47.72%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2022-23 Due to increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Prajects and increased in overall opertions of the Company.
In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in operations while no corresponding major change in inventory level.

d} Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by average trade receivables
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
a 2024 2023
Sales 63,444.36 21,915.67
Average Trade Receivables # 588.84 448.23
Ratio [In timas) 107.75 48,89
% Change from previous year 120.36% 95.92%
# Trade receivables is included gross of ECL and net of customer advances. Average Trade receivables represents the average of opening
and closing trade receivables.
Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2022-23 due to improved Dehtors Realisatior: period.
In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in sales while maintaining debtors realisation period under contral.
e) Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables
partkiass As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Contract Cost 41,639.73 33,442.84
Closing Trade Payables 1,545.30 531,26
Ratio (In times) 26.95 35.91
% Change from previous year -33.27% 21.19%

Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2023-24, due to increase in outstanding trade payable balances at the year end




Arkade Develepers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are ® in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

f) Met Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working capital

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars
2024 2023

Sales (A) 63,473.65 22,015.27
Current Assets (B) 53,778.36 52,797.69
Current Liabilities [C) 21,964.81 27,519.22
Net Working Capital (D =B -C) 31,813.55 25,278.47
Ratie (In times) (E=A / D} 2.00 0.87
% Change from previgus year 129.09% -51.99%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2022-23 Due to increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and increased in overall opertions of the Company has lead

to icreased investments in working capital of the Company.

In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in overall operations o7 the company.

g) Met profit ratio = Net profit hefore tax divided by Sales
Particulars As at March 31, A it Msrch 34,
2024 2023
Met profit before tax 16,415.07 6,818.38
Sales 63,473.65 22,015.27
Ratio 25.86% 30.97%
% Change from previous year -16.50% 27.06%
h) Return on Capital employed (pre -tax) = Earnings hefore interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by average Capital Employed
Particuiars . As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Profit before tax [4) 16,415.07 £,818.38
Add : Interest (B) 1,393.72 746.31
EBIT [C) = (A+B) : 17,808.80 7,564.69
Total Assets (C) 57,500.51 55,530.25
Current Liabilities (D} 21,964.81 27,519.22
Capital Employed (E)=(C}-{D) 35,535.70 28,011.03
Ratio (In %) 50% 27%
% Change from previous year 85.57%| -33.64%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2022-23 Due to increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and increased in overall opertions of the Company has lead

to icreased investments in working capital of the Company.

In FY 2023-24 due to increased in overall opertions and profitability of the Company.

Debt Equity ratio = Total debts divided by Total Equity

particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Total Debts 6,941.04 14,899.53

Shareholder's funds 32,340.23 20,021,139

Ratio (In Times) 0.21 0.74

% Change from previous year -71.16% 67.89%

Reason for change more than 25%: )
In FY 22-23 Is on account of raising fresh Term Loans for Projects & unsecured borrowings.

In FY 2023-24 due to decrease is mainly on account of decraase in unsecured borrowings & increase in Networth of the Company.




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

i) Debt service coverage ratio= Earnings available for debt services dividend by total interest and principal repayments.

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Profit after tax (A) 12,291.47 5,484,08
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost
-Depreciation and amortisation |B) 113.84 27.12
-Finance cost (C) 312.72 128.12
Total Non-cash eperating expenses and finance cost (Pre-tax) (D= B+C) 426.57 155.23
Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Post-tax) (E = D (1-Tax rate)) 319.21 116.16
Earnings available for debt services (F = A+E} 12,610.68 5,600.24
Debt service
Interest (G) 1,379.08 746.31
Lease payments (H) (40.72) .
Principal repayments (1) (25,816.63) (3,844.78)
Total Interest and principal repayments (1=G +H+1) [24,478.27) |3,098.47)
Ratio {In times) [J = F/ 1} 0.52 1.81
% Change from previous year -71.50% -94.37%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23 due to increase in repayment of principle amount of unsecured borrowings (which are repayable on

demands)

k} Return on Investments

This ratio has not been calculated since the Company does not have any investments as on 31st March, 2024 except investments in

Associates Firms

43  Significant events occurred during the year ended Mareh, 21, 2U24 |

{a) Initial Public Offer - Draft Red Herring Prospactus
The Company has formed the IPO Committee vide resolution passed in the meeting of Board of Directors of the Company held on
December 05, 2022 for initiating the process of preparing and filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectuts in terms of SEBI {Issue of Capital &
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations and has filed the Draft Red Harring Prospectus (DRHP) with SEBI during the year ended 21st March,
2024,

[b) Conversion into Public Limited Company
The Company has been converted from Private Limited Company te Public Limited Company vide resclution passed in the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the Company neld on June 05, 2023,

(c] Increase in Authorised Share Capital
The Company has increased its authorised share capital from Rs. 200 lakhs [divided into 20 lakhs equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up)
to Rs. 18,500 lakhs (divided into 1,850 lakhs equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up vide special resolution passed in the meeting of
shareholders held on July 06, 2023.

(d) Issue of Bonus Shares

The Company has allotted 15,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each, as 3 bonus Shares in the ratio of 1: 75 to the existing
equity shareholders of the Company vide resolution passed in thz meeting of shareholders held on July 06, 2023.
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Independent Examination report on the Restated Ind AS Consolidated Financial Information of Arkade
Developers Limited (formerly Arkade Developers Private Limited)

The Board of Directors
Arkade Developers Limited (formerly Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Arkade House, Near Children’s Academy, A S Marg,
Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra 400101

Independent Auditor's Examination Report on Restated Consolidated Financial Information in
connection with the proposed Initial Public Offering of Arkade Developers Limited (formerly Arkade
Developers Private Limited)

Dear Sirs,
1. This report is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement dated 15t February, 2024,

2. We have examined the attached Restated Consolidated Financial Information, expressed in Indian Rupees
in millions of Arkade Developers Limited (formerly Arkade Developers Private Limited) (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company” or the “Issuer’ or the ‘ADL') and its subsidiaries (the Company and its

subsidiaries together referred toas the “Group"), and associates comprising: :

(a) the “Restated Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities” as at March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023,
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 (enclosed as Annexure I);

(b) the “Restated Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss" for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31,
2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 (enclosed as Annexure |I);

(c) the “Restated Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” for the years ended March 31,2024, March
31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 (enclosed as Annexure Ill);

(d) the "Restated Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows” for the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31,
2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 (enclosed as Annexure IV);

(e) the "Basis of Preparation, Significant Accounting Policies” for the years ended March 31, 2024, March
31,2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 (enclosed as Annexure V);

(f) the "Notes to Restated Consclidated Financial Information” for the years ended March 31, 2024, March
31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 (enclosed as Annexure VI); and

(¢) the “Statement of Adjustments to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements” as at and for the
years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 (enclosed as
Annexure VII);

(hereinafter together referred to as the “Restated Consolidated Financial Information”), prepared by the
Management of the Company in connection with the proposed Initial Public Offering of Equity Shares of the
Company (the “IPO" or “Issue”) in accordance with the requirements of:
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i. Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) as amended from time to time;

ii. Paragraph (A) of Clause 11 (I) of Part A of Schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended to date (the “SEBI ICDR
Regulations”) issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (the “"SEBI"); and

iii. the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"), as amended from time to time (the "Guidance Note”).

The said Restated Consolidated Financial Information has been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Companyat their meeting held on June 10, 2024 for the purpose of inclusion in the Red Herring Prospectus
(“RHP") and initialed by us for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility for the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

3. The preparation of the Restated Consolidated Financial Information, for the purpose of inclusion in the RHP
to be filed with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), BSE Limited ("BSE") and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai (‘ROC”) in connection with the
proposed Initial Public Offering of the equity shares of the Company, is the responsibility of the Management
of the Company. The Restated Consolidated Financial Information have been prepared by the Management
of the Company in accordance with the basis of preparation stated in Note 2.1 to the Restated Consolidated
Financial Information in Annexure V. The Management's responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Restated Consolidated
Financial Information. The Management is also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Group, its
jointly controlled operations, joint ventures and associates, comply with the Act, SEBI ICDR Regulations and
the Guidance Note.

Auditor's Responsibilities

4, Our work has been carried out considering the concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable
assurance based on verification of evidence supporting the Restated Consolidated Financial Information in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) and other
applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
pursuant to the requirements of Section 26 of the Act, and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our work was
performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your compliance with the Act, the
SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note in connection with the Issue.

5. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by
the Instituteof Chartered Accountants of India.

6. The Restated Consolidated Financial Information, expressed in Indian Rupees in million, has been prepared
by the Company's Management from:

(a) the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group and associates as at and for the years ended
on March 31, 2024 prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (referred to as “Ind AS") as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Actread with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, which have been
approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on June 10, 2024,
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(b) the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group and associates as at and for the years ended

on March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021, prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (referred to as “Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, which have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on July 03,
2023, April 01, 2023 and April 01, 2023 respectively.

7. For the purpose of our examination, we have relied on

(a)

(b)

(c)

Auditor's reports issued by other auditors on consolidated financial statements of the Group and
associates as at and for the years ended on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 prepared in
accordance with Accounting Standard (referred to as "AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, dated April 01, 2023.

Auditor's report issued by other auditors on the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements of the
subsidiaries and associates as at and for the years ended March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023, March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021.

Special purpose audit report issued by us on the Special Purpose Ind AS Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Group and its associate as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022, March 31,
2021, dated July 14, 2023.

Audit report issued by us on the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and its
associates as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, dated July 03, 2023, as referred in Para 6 (b)
above.

8. We have not audited any financial statements of the Group and associates as of any date or for any period
subsequent to March 31, 2024. Accordingly, we do not express any opinion on the financial position, results
or cash flows of the Group and associates as of any date or for any period subsequent to March 31, 2024.

Opinion

9. Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the
Restated Consolidated Financial Information:

c.

have been prepared in accordance with the Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note;

have been prepared after incorporating adjustments in respect of changes in the accounting policies,
material errors, and regroupingfreclassifications, retrospectively (as disclosed in Annexure VIl to
Restated Consolidated Financial Information) to reflect the same accounting treatment as per the
accounting policies as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 for all the reporting periods; and

there are no qualifications in the auditors' reports which require any adjustments.

10. The Restated Consolidated Financial Information does not reflect the effects of events that occurred
subsequent to the respective date of reports on the special purpose audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group and its jointly controlled operations, joint ventures and associates mentioned in
paragraph 8 above,
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11, This report should not in any way be construed as a re-issuance or re-dating of any of the previous audit
report issued by us on the special purpose auditors consolidated financial statements and, on the auditors,
consolidated financial statements of the Group and its jointly controlled operations, joint ventures and
associates, as may be applicable, for the reporting periods.

12. We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of the

report.

Other Matters

13. a) As indicated in the auditor's reports referred in paragraph 7 above:

1.

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022, 31st
March, 2021 and the transition date opening Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2021 included in the
financial statements for the year ended on 31t March, 2023, are based on the previously issued
audited financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company
on transition to the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), which have been audited by us.

Consolidated accounts for the previous years ended on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 under
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006, were audited by another firm of Chartered
Accountants viz. M/S. Kevin Shah & Associates. They have expressed the unmodified opinion on
the financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2022 and March 31, 2021 vide their
respective years report dated 01 April, 2023.

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiaries and associates whose share of total
assets, net assets, total revenue, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit/ (loss) and other
comprehensive income), net cash inflows / (outflows) and share of profit/ (loss) in its associates
included in the consolidated financial statements, for the relevant years/period is tabulated in Table
A below, which are audited by other auditors and whose reports have been furnished te us by the
Company's management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these components, is based solely on
the reports of other auditors:

Table A

~ Particulars

| Asatandfor | Asatandfor | Asatandfor | Asatand for
| theyear | theyearended | theyearended | theyearended
| ended March | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Hitooa B i

Nﬁmber
(numbers)

.of

Siibsidiatiss 2 ol 2 i)
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~ Particulars | Asatandfor | Asatandfor | Asatandfor | Asatandfor
i | theyearended | theyearended | theyearended | theyear ended

g e March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 - March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Total Assets (INR Million) 443 1.53 52.37 91.57
Net Assets (INR Million) 3.92 0.52 (1.89) 9.84
Total Revenue (INR Million) Nil Nil 25.87 563.51
Total Comprehensive Income (1.16) (0.17) 3.28 9.84
(INR Million)
Net cash inflows/ (outflows) 2.25 (0.55) (0.18) (47.23)
(INR Million)
Number of Associates and 2 3 3 3
Joint Ventures (numbers)
Share of profit/ (loss) in 9.59 41,74 72,08 (6.10)
associates (net) (INR Million)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters.

b)

We did not examine the restated financial information of subsidiaries and associates whose share of

total assets, net assets, total revenue, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit/ (loss) and other
comprehensive income), net cash inflows / (outflows) and share of profit/ (loss) in its associates included
in the Restated Consolidated financial information, for the relevant years/period is tabulated in Table B
below, which are audited by other auditors and whose reports have been fumished to us by the
Company's management and our opinion on the Restated consolidated financial information, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these components, is based solely on the
reports of other auditors and information provided by the management.

Table B
_ Particulars | Asatand forthe | As at and for the[ As at and for the [ As at and for the
o | yearended | yearended | yearended ~ yearended

| March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Number of Subsidiaries (numbers) 2 2 2 2
Total Assets (INR Million) 4.43 1.63 57.09 91.57
Net Assets (INR Million) 3.92 0.52 2.74 9.84
Total Revenue (INR Million) Nil Nil 25.87 563.51
Total Comprehensive Income (INR (1.16) (4.89) 8.00 (0.88)
Million)
Net cash inflows/ (outflows) (INR 2.25 (0.55) (0.18) (50.32)
Million)
Number of Associates and Joint 2 3 3 3
Venture (numbers)
Share of profit/ (loss) in associates 9.59 41.74
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The other auditors of the subsidiaries and associates, have confirmedthat the restated standalone /
consolidated financial information of the components:

i. have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting policies,
material errorsand regrouping/reclassifications to reflect the same accounting treatment as per the
accounting policies of the Arkade Developers Limited as at 315t March, 2024;

ii. there are no qualifications in the auditors' report which require any adjustments; and
iii. have been prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note.
Restriction on Use

14. This report is addressed to and is provided to enable the Board of Directors of the Company to include this
report in the Red Herring Prospectus, prepared in connection with the proposed Initial Public Offering of
Equity Sharesof the Company, to be filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited in connection with the proposed Initial Public
Offering of the equity sharesof the Company. Our report should not be used, referred to, or distributed for
any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any
liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 106456W

Hemant R Bohra
Partner

Mem. No.: 165667
UDIN:- 24165667BKEZEQ3670

Place : Mumbai
Date :June 10, 2024



ANMEXUREI

All amounts are T in Millions unless otherwise stated

Restated Consolidated Statement of Assets & Liabilitles

Arkade Developers Limited {(Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Particulars Note | Asat March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 118.25 15.11 18,28 346
(b) Intangible assets 5 330 2,49 - =
(e} Right-of-use assets 5 18.23 e - =
{d] Financial assets
{1} Investments 7.1 1E1.34 169.73 163.75 159.90
(i) Loans 8.1 - - - -
(i) Other financial assets 2.1 23.82 63.72 11.00 6.50
(e) Non-current tax assets {net} 101 21.76 14,92 0.54 £.83
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 111 523 3.52 270 2,28
(g} Other non-current assets 12.1 0.29 0.83 - -
Total non-current assets 372.21 274.31 196.28 180.95
Current assets
(a) Invanteries 131 4,879.02 5.005.26 2,990.08 2,040.89
{b) Financial assets
{1} Investments 71 - - 23163 976.46
{ii) Trade receivables 14.1 80.72 37.05 5260 126.13
(iil) Cash and cash equivalents 15,1 233.03 166.20 25.21 4939
{iv) Bank balances other than (i} above 16.1 15.58 9.52 7003 66.58
[v) Loans 81 131 0.91 0.15 0.23
{vi) Other financial assets 9.1 29.55 26.77 188 2,56
[c) Othercurrent assets 121 138.83 34.07 131.82 54,19
Total current assets 5377.84 5,279.78 3,503.39 3,316.43
Total assets 5,750.05 5,554.09 3,699.67 1,497.38
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17.1 1,520.00 20,00 20.00 20.00
(b) Other equity 18.1 1,714.02 1,9683.17 1,474.94 971.41
Total attributable te ewners of the parent company 3,234.02 2,003.17 1,494.99 991.41
Total attributable to Non- Contralling Intarest 2.32 0.52 {1.98) 9.41
Total Equity 3,236.34 2,003.69 1,492.96 1,000.82
Liabllities
Man-current llabilities
{a) Financial llabilities
(i} Borrowings 19.1 290.42 T87.54 11.99 -
(i1} Lease fiabilities 6.2 14.34 - * -
(i) Other financial liabilities 0.1 - - - -
{b) Provisions 211 12.47 10.91 9.12 6.79
(¢} Deferred Tax Laibilities (Net} 11.1 - 3 - -
Total non-current liabilities 317.23 798.45 21.11 6.79
Current liabilities
{a} Financial fiabilitles
{i} Borrawings 151 403.68 70241 632.14 13694
{ii}) Lease llabilities 6.2 386 - » 2
{iili) Trade payables 221
- Total cutstanding dues to small and micro enterprises 101.23 79.66 32,54 60,91
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small 281.70 155.53 104.77 162.01
and micro enterprises
{iv} Other financial liabilities 201 45.78 137.2% 77.08 73.78
{b) Othercurrent liabilities 231 1,288.75 1,648.01 1,308.11 203211
{c} Provisions 211 53.23 29.05 30.95 24,01
{d] Current tax liabilities {net) 241 18.25 - - -
Tatal current liabilities 2,196.48 2,751.95 2,185.60 2,489.76
Total equity and liabilities 5,750.05 5,554.09 3,699.67 3,497.38

information appearing in Annexure VII.

[As per our report of even date

For Mittal & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 106456W

Menoni™

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arkade Developers Limited

The above statement should be read with the Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information- Significant Accounting Policies appearing in Annexure V, Notes
to the Restated Consolidated Financial information - Other Information appearing in Annexure VI; and Restatement Adjustments to Restated Consolidated Financial
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arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

ANNEXURE Il
Restated Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
All amounts are % in Millions unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
| |Revenue from operations 251 6,347.36 2,201.52 2,189.34 1,082.70
Il |Other income 261 9.76 38.61 82.48 49.15
1 |Total income (14 11) 6,357.12 2,240.13 237182 1,131.85
IV |Expenses
(a) Costof construction 271 4,163.97 3,344.28 2,548.79 585.16
{b) Changes in inventaries of finished goods and work in progress 281 126.24 {2,015,19) (949,19} 79.04
(c] Employee benefit expense 28.1 167.02 170.83 79.46 61.30
(d) Finance costs 301 31.27 12,81 43.29 12.99
(e} Depreciation and amortisation expense 311 11.38 271 0.71 1.09
(f) Other expenses 321 21572 98.69 £5.82 85.25
Total expenses (IV) 4,715.61 1,614.14 1,788.89 834.81
V  |Profit before tax and share of profit (loss) from associates (Il - IV) 1,641.51 625.99 582,93 297.04
Share of profit / (loss) from associates 5.59 41.74 72.79 {6.10]
V1 | Profit before tax 1,651.10 667.73 655.72 290.95
Vil |Taxexpense
[1}) Current tax 331 424.72 160.88 147.73 76.89
(2) Taxation for earlier year - - - -
{3} Deferred tax expense/ (credit) 331 [1.71) (0.82) [0.45}) (3.13)
Total tax expense (V1) 423.02 160.07 147.28 73.76
VIll |Profit for the year [V -VI) 1,228.08 507.66 508.44 217.18
{i] Owners of the company 1,228.40 507.83 504.73 211.90
(i) Non contraliing interest [0.31) (0.17) T 5.28
IX | Other comprehensive income
{A} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or lass
(a) (Less)/Gain on remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 371 (2.44) (0.38) 119 0.40
(b} Income tax on above 331
Total other comprehensive (loss)fincome for the year (2.44) {0.38) 119 0.40
(1} Owners of the company (2.44) {0.38) 119 0.40
(i} Mon controlling interest - - x -
X |Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (VIVII) 1,230.53 508.05 507.25 216.78
(i} Owners of the company 1,230.84 508.22 503.54 211.50
(i) Non controlling interest (0.20) {0.17) 371 528
Xl |Earnings per equity share (Face value of X 10/- per share) 34.1
{1) Basic (%) 8.08 2.34 332 1.39
(2) Diluted (%) 8.08 3.34 3.32 1.39

The above statement should be read with the Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information- Significant Accounting Policies appearing in Annexure V,
Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial information - Other Information appearing in Annexure VI; and Restatement Adjustments to Restated Consclidated
Financial information appearing in Annexure V.

As per our report of even date

For Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 106456W

Hemant R Bohra
Partner

M Mo. 165667
Place: Mumbai

Date :

Tune 10, 2024
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Arkade Developers Limited
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Amit Jain
Managing Director
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
ANNEXURE Il

Restated Statement of Changes in Equity

All amounts are % in Millions unless otherw(se stated

Equl capital
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Changes in equity share
Restated balance at Changes in equity share | Balance as at March 31,
Balance as at April 1, 2023 capltal dni :onr;lm period April 1, 2023 caphtat during the yeriod B4
| 20.00 20.00 1,500.00 1.520.00
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Changes in equity share
Restated balance at Changes in equity share | Balance as at March 31,
Bal, t April 1, 2022
AR ol ""::”n:';'”’ pesnd April 1, 2022 capital during the year 2023
20.00 - 20,00 - 20.00
[Far the year ended March 31, 2022
Changes In equity share
Restated balance at Changes In equity share | Balance as at March 31,
Balance as at April 1, 2021 capital duee::::lur period april 1, 2021 capital during the year 2022
20.00 - 20.00 - 20.00
For the year ended March 31, 2021
Changes In equity share
Restated balance at Changes in equity share | Balance as at March 31,
Bal t Aprl 1, 2020 i
Biance NsaE AR capltal due to prior period April 1, 2020 capital during the year 2021
errors
[ 20.00 - 20.00 - 20.00
{b] Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Securities premium Retalned earnings Remeasurement of
defined benefit plan
Balance as at April 1, 2023 187.92 1,795.65 f0.40) 1,983.17
Changes in accounting palicy - - . ]
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 187.92 1,795.65 {0.40) 1,983.17
Profit for the year/period - 1,228.40 - 1,223.40
Less: Utilised for Bonus Issue (187,92 f1,312.08) {1,500,00)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation, net of income tax - - 2.44 2.44
Total comprehensive [loss)/Gain for the year,/period (187.92) {83.68) 2.44 {269.16)
Securities premium on shares issued [net of share Issue costs) - - - .
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 1,711.57 .04 1,714.02
Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Securities premium Retalned ES Fe of
defined benefit plan
Balance as at April 1, 2022 187.92 1,287.82 {0.73) 1,474.95
Changes in accounting pelicy i ¥ e 5
Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 187.92 1,287.82 [0.79) 147495
Prefit for the vear/perlod - 507.83 - 50783
Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation, net of income tax . . 0.38 038
Total comprehensive (loss)/Gain for the year/period - 507.83 0.38 508.22
Securities premium on shares |ssued (net of share issue costs) - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 187.92 1,795.65 0.40 1,983.17
Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Securities premium Retained eamings Aemeasurement of
defined benefit plan
Balance as at April 1, 2021 187.52 783.09 040 87141
Changes in accounting policy = = = =
Restated balance as at April 1, 2021 187.92 783.09 0.40 97141
Prafit fer the vear/pericd - 504.73 - 504.73
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation, net of income tax - - 1,19} 11.19]
Total comprehensive (loss)/Galn for the year/period - 504.73 (1.18) 503.54
Securities premium on shares Issued (net of share lssue costs) = = - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 187.52 1,287.82 (0.79) 1,474,
Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Securities premium Retained eamings Remeasurement of
defined benefit plan
Balance as at April 1, 2020 187.92 57119 - 759.10
Changes In accounting pelicy i 3 = =
Restated balance as at April 1, 2020 187.92 571.19 - 759.10
Profit for the year/period - 211.90 - 21180
Remeasurement of defined benefit cbligation, net of Income tax = = 0.40 0,40
Total comprehensive (loss)/Galn for the vear/period - 211.90 0.40 212.30
Securities premium on shares Issued (net of share issue costs) - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 187.92 783.09 0.40 971.41

As per our repart of even date

For Mittal & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Flrm Reg. No.: 106456W

Pemannt

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of

Arkade Developers Limited

Hemant RBoha— Amit Jain
Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director
M No. 165667 DIN : 00135764 DIN : 06893631
Place: Mumbal \
pate: Jype 10,2024 W
UDIN : zE
241656 STBKE QBGTO Samshet Shetye Sheetal Solan|
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
mgg
Place: Mumbai evey
pate: June [0 2024 /79 ——~0

The above staternent should be read with the Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Infermation- Significant Accounting Policles appearing in Annexure V, Notes to the Restated Consolldated
Financial information - Other Information appearing In Annexure \V; and Restaterment Adjustments to Restated Consolidated Financlal Information appearing in Annexure VI,




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
ANNEXURE IV

Restated Statement of Cash flow

All amounts are % in Millions unless otherwise stated

Particulars For the yearended | Forthe yearended | Forthe yearended | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,651.10 667.73 655.72 290.95
Adjustments for:
Fimance costs 31.27 12.81 43.29 12.99
Interest income (2.93) (4.55) [6.51) {8.00)
Loss/{Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment {neat) 1.76 - 0.03 -
Fair value (gain) on investments (net) - - [1.16) {5.11)
Loss [/ (gain) on sale of current investments (net) (2.37) (7.27) (30.43) {1.05)
Depreciation and amartisation expenses 11.38 .71 0.71 1.09
Operating profit befere working capital changes 1,690.22 67143 661.66 230.87
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets
Trade receivables {43.67) 15.55 73,53 205.88
Inventories 126.24 (2,015.18) (949.19) 79.11
Other financial assets (Nen-Current and Current) 37.13 (77.62) (3.82) (3.30)
Loans {0.21) (0.75) 0.08 {0.25)
Other assets (Non-Current and Current) (104.22) 96.93 (77.63) (16.56)
Increase/(decrease) In operating liabilities
Trade payables 147.74 97.87 (85.61) (77.33)
Provisions (Non-Current and Current) 25.73 (0.10) 9.27 8.80
Other financial liabilities (Non-Current and Current) (91,51} 60.21 3.30 .
Other current liabilities (359.26) 339.50 (724.00) 1,022.00
Changes in Working Capital 1262.02) [1,483.20) (1,754.07) 1,218.34
Cash generated from operations 1,428.20 (811.77) [1,092.41) 1,509.21
Income taxes paid {Net of Refund) (413.32) (175.27) 1139.42) (58.91)
Net cash generated by operating activities 1,014.88 (987.04) {1,231.83) 1,450.31
Cash flows from investing activities
{Investment in} / Proceeds from Bank Deposits {6.06) 60.51 (3.45) -
(Investment) / withdrawal from investments in subsidiary & associates firms {11.61) (5.97) {3.85) (30.23)
(Investment in) / Proceeds from current investments (Net) 2.37 238.90 776,43 (954.67)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (121,67} (6.03) [18.14) (0.18)
(Increase)/decrease of Capital Work in Progress - - - -
Interest Income 2.93 4.55 6.51 8.00
i 12.10 - 2.55 =)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
Met cash used In investing activities (121.94) 291,96 760.05 [977.09)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 1,785.81 1,230.30 564.55 137.54
Repayment of borrowings {2,581.66) (384.48) (57.386) [618.563)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (4.07) . - -
Change in Non- Controlling Interest 211 2.68 (15.11) (8.37)
Interest paid (30.75) (12.81) [43.29) (12.99)
Nat cash (used in) [ generated by financing activities [828.56) B35.69 448.79 {502.44)
Add / Less : (Loss)/Gain on remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 2.44 0.38 {1.19) {0.40)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 66.83 140.99 (24.18) (29.63)
Cash 2nd cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 166.20 25.21 49.39 79.02
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 233.03 166.20 25.21 49.39
|Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer Note 15) 233.03 166.20 25.21 49.39

Note:

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS - 7) "Statement of Cash Flow™

The above statement should be read with the Notes to the Restated Consclidated Financial Information- Significant Accounting Policies appearing in Annexure V, Notes to the Restated
Consolidated Financial information - Other Information appearing in Annexure VI; and Restatement Adjustments to Restated Consolidated Financial information appearing in Annexure VIl

As per our report of even date

For Mittal & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 106456W
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ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED [Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
ANNEXKURE V

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Informatien

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

2.1.1

Corporate information

Arkade Developers Limited is a Public Company domieiled in India and incorporated on 13th May, 1986 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office situated at Arkade House, Opp. Bhoomi Arkade, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali East, Mumbai,
400 101. The company is primarily engaged in real estate development. The operations of the Company span all aspects of real estate
development, from the identification and acquisition of land, to planning, execution, construction and marketing of Commercial and
residential projects.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the restated consolidated financial information.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. These restated conselidated financial
information are for the Company consisting of Arkade Developers Limited and its subsidiaries & associates [collectively referred to as
“Group”). These Restated Consolidated financial information were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors en
June 10, 2024,

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The restated consolidated financial information of the Group comprises of the Restated Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as
at March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Restated Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Restated Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Restated Consclidated Statement
of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 and Notes to the
Restated Consolidated Financial Information and Statement of Adjustments to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements (collectively, the
‘Restated Consolidated Financial Information].

These Restated Consolidated Financial Information have been prepared by the Management of the Group for the purpose of inclusion in
the Red Herring Prospectus (RHP) to be filed by the Group with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (*SEBI”), National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited in connection with proposed Initial Public Offering ["IPO") of its equity shares.

The Restated Consclidated Financial Information, which have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Group, have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of:

(i) Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act") as amended from time to time:

(i) Paragraph A of Clause 11 {I] of Part A of Schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended to date (the “SEBI ICDR Regulations”] issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{the “SEBI"); and

(iiij Guidance Note on Reports in Group Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"] as
amended from time to time (the “Guidance Note”).

The Restated Consolidated Financial Information have been prepared by the Management from the audited consolidated financial
statements as at and for the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 which is prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS] notified under Section 133 of the Act [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

These Restated Consolidated Financial Information do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the respective dates of
auditor's reports on the audited consolidated financial statements mentioned above,

The Restated Consolidated Financial Information:

(a] have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting policies, material errors, if any, and
regrouping/reclassifications retrospectively in the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 to
reflect the same accounting treatment as per the accounting policies and grouping/classifications followed as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2023,

{b) do not require any adjustment for qualification as there are no qualifications in the underlying audit reports.




ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
ANNEXURE V

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

2.1.2

These Restated financial Information have been prepared on a going concern basis following the acerual basis of accounting in aceordance
with the Generally accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India (Indian Accounting standards referred to as “IndAS”) as specified under
the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of Companies {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendments rules issued there after and and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule III). These standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Millions,
except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities:

i Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value;
ii. Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value,
iii. [nvestments in equity instruments, other than investments in subsidiary & associates firm, measured at fair value

thorugh profit & loss account (FVTPL).

Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is expesed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its invelvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date on which contrel is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

The Group combines the {inancial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities,
equity, income and expenses. InterGroup transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the restated consolidated statement of profit
and loss, restated consolidated statement of changes in equity and restated consolidated statement of assets and liabilities respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but net control or joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, after initially being recognised at cost,

Equity Method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Company's share of the post acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the Company’s share of other
comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Company’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Company's
interest in these entities.

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Company.




ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
ANNEXURE V

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Finaneial Information

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

2.2

2.3

2.4

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current
when it is:

- Expected fo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

Property, Plant & Equipments

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the itern will flow to the Group.

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in asset’s carrying amount or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
{uture econemic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of item can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognized.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under development as at the balance sheet
date.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost of intangible assets acquired in business
combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in
statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.




ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
ANNEXURE V

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

2.5

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level, The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. The Group has assessed indefinite life
for such brand considering the expected usage, expected investment on brand, business forecast and challenges to establish a premium
electronic segment. These are carried at historical cost and tested for impairment annually.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.

Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on pro-rata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013,

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used which are aligned with useful lives defined in schedule 11 of
Companies Act,2013 :

Fixed Asset Name No. Of Years Useful
Life

Buildings (Temporary Structures) 3 Years

Vehicles (Car) 8 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Computers & Mobiles 3 Years

Leasehold Improvements Period of the initial
lease

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Network and Server 6 Years

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their
useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future econmomic benefits embodied in the asset is
accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets other than having indefinite life :

Class of Asset Useful lives

Computer Software 8 Years

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of asscts, When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.
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The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates, or for the
market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss,
except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCL For such properties, the impairment is recognized in
OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill and intangible assets having indefinite life, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

As per the assessment conducted by the Group there were no indications that the non-financial assets have suffered an impairment loss
during the reporting periods.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition,

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

*the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows: and

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on th
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except
for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financie
assets: and

* the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on th
principal amount outstanding,

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and
losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of 'Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income'. When
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.




ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
ANNEXURE V

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

Significant Accounting Policies forming part of the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

2.6.3

2.6.4

20,5

2,60

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,

[ncome is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income” line item,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments,
which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTFL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases, The Group has not designated
any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurements recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliahly.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election {on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs,

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through ether eomprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

*it has been acguired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actus
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

+it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend win flow to the entify, the dividend does not represent a
recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss is
included in the 'Other income’ line item.

The Group has not elected for the FVTOCI irrevocable option for this investment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or
another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18, the Group always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
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Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial
asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety [e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that
financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All finaneial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTFL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

+It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actus
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

+it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument,

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

* such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

* the financial liability forms part of a Group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group's obligations a.re discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the tion paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
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Other financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments {including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability, Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability (whether or not attributable te the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial Hability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries

The investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost as per IND AS 27. The Group regardless of the nature of its invelvement with an entity
(the investee], determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. The Group controls an investee when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee.

Thus, the Group controls an investee if and only if it has all the following;

= power over the investee;

* exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
* the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns.

Investments are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of investment, the
difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Inventories
Inventories comprise of: (i) Construction materials and consumables (i) Construction Work-In-Progress representing properties under

Py

construction/development (iii) Finished Inventories representing unsold units in completed projects
The construction materials and consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

The construction work in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of land, development rights, rates
and taxes, construction costs, borrowing costs, other direct expenditure, allocated overheads and ather incidental expenses,

Finished stock of completed projects and stock in trade of units is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contacts with customer is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured
based on the transaction price which is the consideration, adjusted for discount and other credits, if any, as specified in the contract with
customer. The Group presents revenue from contracts with customer net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss. The Group
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that
it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangement.

Income from property development

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated in determining the transaction price, the Group considers the effect of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).
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The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognize the revenue over the time if the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and it has an enforceable right to receive payment for performance completed till the date on the
basis of the agreement entered with customers, otherwise revenue is recognized point in time. The revenue is recognized at the point in
time when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer and the performance obligation is satisfied i.e. on transfer of legal title of
the residential unit and on completion of project and occupation eertificate is received,

In respect of property under development, Group starts recognising the revenue once the construction linked milestone is achieved with
respect to project cost incurred and work progress.

When it is not possible to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation and the Group expect to recover the cost incurred
in satisfying the performance obligation revenue is recognized only to the extent of the cost incurred until such time that it can reasonably
measure the outcome of the performance obligation

The Group becomes entitled to inveice customers for construction of residential and commercial properties based on achieving a series of
construction-linked milestones. When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates
a contract asset based on the amount of consideration earned by the performance. Any amount previously recognized as a contract asset
is reclassified to trade receivable at the point when the Group has the right to receive the consideration that is unconditional. If a
customer pays consideration before the Group transfer goods or services to the customer, the contract liability is recognized when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier]. Contract liabilities are recopnized as revenue, when the Group performs
under the contract.

Income Tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
peried in the countries where the Group and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement, Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted to apply when the related deferred income tax
assets is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Employee Benefits:

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the
end of the peried in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Post-employment

Defined contribution plan
The Group makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to Employees' Provident Fund. The Group's
contributions to the fund are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which the employee renders the
service.
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Defined benefit plan :

The Group's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined
based on actuarial valuation carried at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final oblipation. The
abligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows, The discount rate used for determining the present value
of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date.

The Group recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or
loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements

Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net inferest on
the net defined benefit lability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, That is, if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

As a lessee

The Group's lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for office and other premises. The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets (ROU)

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e,, the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment,

(b) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option

reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless
they are incurred to preduce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments| or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occur.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing
cash flows, Lease liabilities have been included in financial labilities.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and deo not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases. For operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Transition to Ind AS

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

*Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date

* Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date ¢
initial application, variable lease and low value asset.

*Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

Segment reporting :

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker, The
Board of directors monitors the operating results of all product segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

*  Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment including inter-segment
revenue,

* Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the segment result. Expenses which
relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments are included under unallacable expenditure,

* Income which relates to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in unallocable income.

* Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. Unallocable assets and liabilities
represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of
shares] if any that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to real estate project development activities are inventorised / capitalized as part of project
cost,

Borrowing costs are inventorised [ capitalised as part of project cost when the activities that are necessary to prepare the inventory /
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Borrowing costs are suspended from inventorisation / capitalisation when development
work on the project is interrupted for extended periods and there is no imminent certainty of recommencement of work.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the
Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.17

2.18

2.19

2,181

2.19.2

2.19.3

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shert-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet,

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency .

The Group's Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee (%) which is also the Group's functional currency. Foreign currency
transaction are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency item at the balance sheet date;

+ Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on th
reporting date,

* Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at th
dates of the initial transactions

Enchange differences:
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of
Profit & Loss,

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities

Provisions:

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflew of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance
cost.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are diseounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost in respective expense.

Provision for Defects Liabilities and Repairs

As per, Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA) vide section 14(3) a builder or developer will be liable to repair any
defect, on the building sold, for a period of Five years. Further, as per the terms of contracts with customers, the Group is liable for any
defects, repairs and other claims for crtain period after completion and handever of the possession of developed properties, Provision for
defect liability and repairs is recognized when sales from contracts with customer is recognized. Certain percentage to the sales recognised
is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for expense to be acerued. The recognition percentage is based on
management estimates of the possible future incidence. The claims against defect liability and repairs from customers may not exactly
match the historical percentage, so such estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of
occurrence and revised accordingly.

Contingent Liahilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The Group does not recognize a

contingent liability but discloses its existence in al statements unless the probability of cutflow of resources is remote.
gtk
>4
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2.20

2.21

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures) and
derivatives at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

«[n the principal market for asset or liability, or
+In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value measurement as a
whole:

* Level 1- Quoted{unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

« Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpese of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Critical accounting estimates, judgement and assumptions

The preparation of these Consolidated financial statements requires the management to make judgments, use estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the acGrouping disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgements, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

i. Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of {future taxable
income. Given the wide range of business relationships differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or
future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Group
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of
previous tax assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.

ii. Employee benefit plans
The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation invelves making
various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of long term government
bonds with extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality tables for India. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expeeted future inflation rates for
India.
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iii. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group, including legal, contractor
and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events oceur or fail to occur. The
assessment of the existence, and potential gquantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the
use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

iv. Property Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent significant portion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respeet of periodic depreciation
is derived after determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The useful life and
residual value of Group's assets are determined by Management at the time asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the
end of each year. The useful life is based on historical experience with similar assets, in anticipation of future events, which may have
impact on their life such as change in technology.

v. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset including intangible assets having indefinite useful
life and goodwill may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is reguired, the Group
estimates the assel’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal
and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are estimated based on past trend
and discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken inte account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation medel is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or
other fair value indicators.

vi. Provisions for Defect liability and repairs

As per, Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 [RERA) vide section 14(3) a builder or developer will be liable to repair any
defect, on the building sold, for a period of Five years. Further, as per the terms of contracts with customers, the Group is liable for any
defects, repairs and other claims for crtain period after completion and handover of the possession of developed properties. Provision for
defect liability and repairs is recognized when sales from contracts with customer is recognized. Certain percentage to the sales recognised
is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for expense to be accrued. The recognitien percentage is based on
management estimates of the possible future incidence. The claims against defect liability and repairs from customers may not exactly
match the historical percentage, so such estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of
occurrence and revised accordingly.

vii. Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Under this approach the Group
does not track changes in credit risk but recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. For this
purpose the Group uses a provision matrix to determine the impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The said
matrix is based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables duly adjusted for forward looking
estimates,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposures, the Group determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit
loss(ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on
a timely basis,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, The
12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. The ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal)
recognized during the period in the statement of profit and loss and the cumulative loss is reduced from the carrying amount of the asset
until it meets the write off criteria, which is generally when no cash fl expected to be realised from the asset.
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viil. Impairment for Investments in Subsidiary & Assocites

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries are impaired requires an estimate in the value in use of investments. In considering
the value in use, the Directors have anticipated the future operating margins, resources and availability of infrastructure, discount rates
and other factors of the underlying businesses/operations of the investee companies, Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to
changes in the above-mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of investments.

ix Leases

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain
not to be exercised. Wherever, lease contracts that include extension and termination options, the Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant
factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its eontrol and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA’") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below;

(i) Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These
changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant
impact in its Financial Statements.

(i) Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling
items produced while the Group is preparing the asset for its intended use, Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and
related cost in profit or loss. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant, and
equipment in its Financial Statements.

(iii) Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification, and the Group does not
expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its Financial Statements,

(iv) Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial liability. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its Financial Statements.

(w) Ind AS 116 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leaschold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration.
The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impaet in its Financial Statements.
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4 Property, plant and equipment

(a)

(b)

{e)

{d)

[e}

Bulldings
Leasehold Furniture and Network &

Particulars IiprausaREs (Temporary Office equipment e Computer Saniaie Vehicles Total

Structure)
I. Cost/Deemed Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2020 - - 0.32 0.87 7.72 891
Additions - - - 019 - 0.19
Disposals - - {0.18) {0.52) - (0.70)|
Balance asat March 31, 2021 - - 0.15 - 0.54 - 7.72 B.40
Balance as at April 1, 2021 - - 0.14 - 0.54 - 7.71 8.40
Additians - - 0.20 0.49 17.44 18.14
Disposals = - - {0.10) (7.08)) {7.18}]
Balanee asat March 31, 2022 = - 0.34 - 0.93 - 18.07 19.34
Balance as at April 1, 2022 - - 0.34 - 0.93 - 18.07 19.34
Additions - - 0.15 1.41 128 3.54
Disposals - - - - - -
Balance asat March 31, 2023 - - 0.49 - 233 - 20.05 22.88
Balance as at April 1, 2023 - - 0.49 - 233 - 20.05 22.88
Additions .79 B8B.68 5.04 579 3.10 079 9.66 120.85
Disposals - - - - - - 17.44 17.44
Balance asat March 31, 2024 7.73 28.68 5.54 5.79 5.43 .73 12.27 126.29
Il Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2020 0.20 0.70 3.67 4,56
Depreciation expense for the year 0.03 0.13 092 1.08
Eliminated on disposal of assets {0.18} {0.52) = {0.70)
Balance asat March 31, 2021 - - 0.06 - 031 o 4.58 4.9
Balance as at April 1, 2021 . . 0.06 - 0.31 - 458 494
Depreclation expense for the year 0.04 0.11 0.56 0.71
Eliminated on disposal of assets - {0.10) (a.43)] 14.60)]
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - - 0.09 - 0.31 - 0.65 1.06
Balance as at April 1, 2022 - - 0.09 - 0,31 - OGS 1.06
Deprectation expense for the year 0.03 0.40 222 271
Eliminated on disposal of assets = = = -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 = = 0.18 = 0.71 = 2.87 3.77
Balance as at April 1, 2023 - - 0.18 - 071 - 7 am
Depreciation expense for the year 075 3.B5 0.33 0.14 110 a.07 162 7.86
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - - - - - 3.58 3.58
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.75 3.85 0.51 0.14 1.82 0.07 0.91 8.05
11 Net block balance (1-11)
As on March 31, 2024 7.04 B4.84 5.03 5.65 361 0.72 1L36 118.25
As on March 31, 2023 - - 0.31 - 162 - 17.18 19.11
As on March 31, 2022 - - 0.25 - 0.61 - 17.42 1B.28
As on April 1, 2021 = = 0.09 - 0.24 - 313 3.46

There are no impalrment losses recognised during the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

Assets pledged as security
Vehicles with a carrying amount of £ 11.36 Millions [as at March 31, 2023: % 17.18 Milllons, as at March 31, 2022; % 17,42 Milllons and as at April 1, 2021: % 3.13 Millions) Included In the block of Vehlcles have
been pledged to secure barrowings of the Company |see note 19.1 & 19.2).

The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment as on each reperting period and therefore Schedule |l disclosure requirements with respect to fair value detalls is not applicable.
The Group does not hold any immovable property, other than properties where the Group is the lessee and the |ease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee, whose title deeds are not held In the
name of the Group.

Additions during the year under the head building (Temporary Structure) represents amount of expenditure incurred for construction of experience centre at of its Praject namely "Project Nest". This structure
will be depreciated over a peried of 3 Years (estimated peried of preject completien) from the date of its completion,
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5 Intangible assets

Particulars

Computer Software

Total

I. Cost/Deemed cost

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Balance as at April 1, 2021
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Balance as at April 1, 2022
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Balance as at April 1, 2023
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Il. Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2020
Amortisation expense for the year
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Balance as at April 1, 2021
Amortisation expense for the year
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at March 31, 2022

Balance as at April 1, 2022
Amortisation expense for the year
Eliminated on dispasal of assets
Balance asat March 31, 2023

Balance as at April 1, 2023
Amortisation expense for the year
Eliminated an disposal of assets
Balance asat March 31, 2024

Ill. Net block balance (I-11)
As on March 31, 2024
As on March 31, 2023
As on March 31, 2022
As on April 1, 2021

2.49

2,48

2.49

2.45

0.82

0.82

3.30

3.30

3.30
2.49

3.30
2.49

5.1 The Group has not revalued its intangible assets as on each reporting period and therefore Schedule Ill disclosure requirements

with respect to fair value details is not applicable.

5.2 The computer software under Intangpjg_géets is having useful life of indefinite period and hence not amortised.

Foeiele)

(s
=
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6 Right-of-use assets

Particulars Premises Total
I. Cost

Balance as at April 1, 2021
Additions - -
Termination - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - -
Additions - -
Termination - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 & -
Additions 21.76 21.76
Termination - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 21.76 21.76

Il. Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2021

Amortisation expense for the year - =
Eliminated on termination - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 = =
Amortisation expense for the year = =
Eliminated on termination = =

Balance as at March 31, 2023 - -
Amortisation expense for the year 3.53 3.53
Eliminated on termination - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3.53 3.53
Ill. Net block balance {I-11)

As on March 31, 2024 18.23 18.23

As on March 31, 2023 - -

As on March 31, 2022 - -

As on April 31, 2021 - =

6.1 Details of lease liabilities
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

As at beginning of the year
Recognised during the year 20.81 - - -
Finance cost accrued during the year 1.46 - - -
Derecognised during the year - - = =
Payment of lease liabilities (4.07) - - -
As at end of the year 18.20 - - -

6.2 Classification of lease liabilities

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current 14.34 - - B
Current 3.86 - - -
Total 18.20 - - -

6.3 Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended | For the year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Amortisation expenses on right-of-use assets 3,53 - o .
Interest expenses on |lease liability 1.46 - = =
Expenses related to short term leases 0.82 - = -

Gain on early termination of lease - - . -

6.4 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities of non-cancellable contractual commitments as on an
undiscounted basis.

Particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended | For the year ended For year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Less than cne year 5.69 B H -
One to five years 17.23 - & i

More than five years = = 2 B

=
6.6 The company has taken assets including offices on lease. The average lease term is 3-5 years as gt3 SQ%%}

-
6.7 The total cash outflows for leases amounts to  4.89 Millions (for the year ended March 31, 20 (&;‘“ ¥ 3
(includes cash outflow from short term and long term leases).
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Annexure VI

Motes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

All amounts are % in Millions unless otherwise stated

81

2.1

10.1

Loans
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
Non-current - unsecured, considered good
(a) Loans to employees 2 = - -
Total - - - -
Current - unsecured, considered good
{3) Loans to employees 1.11 091 0.15 0.23
Total 1.11 0.91 0.15 0.23
Other financial assets
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
Non Current - unsecured, considered good
(a) Deposits with bank
- Margin money deposits with banks (held as lien by bank) 21.98 63.72 11.00 6.50
- Fixed Deposit with Bank 0.31 - - -
{b) Security deposits 1.53 - - -
Total 23.82 63.72 11.00 65.50
Current - unsecured, considered good
(a) EMD Deposits with societies 26.70 20.00 0.10 0.30
{b) Security deposits 0.89 0.30 0.30 0.63
(c) Other recelvables 1.96 6.47 1.48 1.64
Total 29.55 26.77 1.88 2.56
Non-current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
Advance tax (net of provisions) 21.76 14.92 0.54 8,83
Total 14.92 0.54 8.83




Arkade Developers Limited [Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Annexure VI

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information
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11.1

11.2 Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2024

113

11.4

11.5

Deferred tax asset (net)

Particulars Opening Balance as | Recognised in Profit| Recognised in Other | Closing balance as on

on April 1, 2023 or loss (expense)/ | comprehensive income March 31, 2024

credit

Property, plant and equipment (0.25) 0.85 - 0.60
Provisions for employee benefits and others 3.77 1.22 - 5.00

Disallowances under Income Tax 2 & i »

ROU Assets, Lease Liability and Loan Processing Fees

- (0.37) - (0.37)
Total 3.52 1.70 - 5.23

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Opening Balance as | Recognised in Profit| Recognised in Other Closing balance as on
on April 1, 2022 or loss (expense)/ | comprehensive income March 31, 2023
credit
Property, plant and equipment 0.02 (0.27) - (0.25)
Intangible assets # = = =
Provisions for employee benefits and others 2.69 1.08 3.77
Disallowances under Income Tax - = -
Total 2.70 0.82 - 3.52

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars

Opening Balance as
at April 01, 2021

Recognised in Profit
or loss (expense)/

Recognised in Other

comprehensive income

Closing balance as at
March 31, 2022

credit
Froperty, plant and equipment 0.29 (0.27) - 0.02
Intangible assets = - - -
Provisions for employee benefits and others 1.88 0.72 - 2.69
Disallowances under Income Tax - - = -
Total 2.26 0.45 - 2.70

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

Opening Balance as

Recognised in Profit

Recognised in Other

Closing balance as at

at April 01, 2020 or loss (expense)/ | comprehensive income March 31, 2021
credit
Property, plant and equipment 0.03 0.26 - 0.29
Intangible assets - - - -
Provisions for employee benefits and others 0.63 133 - 198
Disallowances under Income Tax - = - &
Total 0.66 1.59 - 2.26




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Annexure VI
Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information
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12.1_Other assets

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
Non-current
(a) Prepaid Expenses 0.29 0.83 . -
(b) Capital Advance - - - =
Total 0.29 0.83 - -
Current
(a) Security deposits given against purchase of land - - 94.70 27.21
(b} Balanece with Government Authorities* 88.72 15.88 12.03 5.58
(c) Advance to Suppliers 1.51 9.03 6.71 3.81
(d) Prepaid Expenses** 47.81 1.49 0.40 0.51
(e)Interest Accrued and due 0.37 2.49 1.70 1.17
(f) Other Receivables 0.43 1.17 16.29 15.91
Total 138.83 34.07 131.82 54.19

* Balance with Government Authorities as at 31st March, 2024 includes deposits towards Court Fees amounting to Rs. 4.67 millions and GST Appeal

amounting to Rs, 3.25 millions.

** Prepaid Expenses as at 31st March, 2024 includes Rs. 21.65 millions towards expenses incurred in relation to Initial Public Offer.

13.1 Inventories

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
At lower of cost or net realisable value
(a) Work in Progress (Project) 4,879.02 4,897.81 2,990.08 2,007.25
(b) Finished Goods = 107.45 - 33.63
Total 4,879.02 5,005.26 2,990.08 2,040.89
14.1 Trade receivables
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
Trade receivables
(a) Unsecured, considered good 80.72 37.05 52.60 126.13
(b) Unsecured, credit Impaired - - - -
B0.72 37.05 52.60 126,13
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts / expected credit losses - - - -
Total 80.72 37.05 52.60 126.13

14.2 The average credit period on sales of goods is 15 days.

14.3 Considering the inherent nature of business of the Group, Customer credit risk is minimal. The Group generally does not part away with its assets unless trade
receivables are fully realised, Wherever there is doubt on recovery, the Group makes adequate provision based on best estimation of recovery.

Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, management believes there is no credit risk provision required, other
than those made in the accounts, if any. Also the Group does not have any significant concentration of credit risk.
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Annexure VI
Motes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information
4ll amounts are X in Millions unless otherwise stated

18.1 Other equity

Paticulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
Securities premium - 187.92 187.92 187.92
Retained earnings 1,711.98 1,795.65 1,287.82 783.09
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 2.04 (0.40) (0.79) 0.40
Total 1,714.02 1,983.17 1,474.94 971.41
18.2 Securities premium
L For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of the year 187.92 187.92 187.92 187.92
Securities premium arising on issue of equity shares - - - -
Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares (187.92) - B =
Balance at end of the year - 187.92 187.92 187.92

Amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. It will be used as per the provisions of Companies Act,
2013, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares, write-off equity related expenses like underwriting costs, etc.

18.3 Retained earnings

Paticulars

For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of the year 1,795.65 1,287.82 783.09 57119
Less; Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares {1,312.08) - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,228.40 507.83 504.73 211.90
Balance at end of the year 1,711.98 1,795.65 1,287.82 783.09

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any transfers to General Reserve, dividends or other distributions to
shareholders. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company.

18.4 Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Paticulars

For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of the year (0.40) (0.79) 0.40 2
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 2.44 0.38 (1.19) 0.40
Income tax on above - - - -
Balance at end of the year 2.04 {0.40) (0.79) 0.40
Includes re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss.
19.1 Borrowings
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
Non Current
Secured from banks:;
Vehicle Loan from Bank 6.21 9.21 11.99 -
Term Loan from Non-Bank Financial Companies 284.21 778.33 - -
290.42 787.54 11.99 =
Current
Secured from banks:
Current maturities of long term leans from banks 1.24 297 2.42 -
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Loan from related parties (refer note 329.3) 402.44 694.64 629.72 136.00
Loan from erstwhile director - - - &
Intercorporate Deposits - 5.00 - 0.94
403.68 702.41 632.14 136.94
Total 694.10 1,489.95 644.13 136.94
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Annexure VI

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information
All amounts are X in Millions unless otherwise stated

20.1

20.2

21.1

22.1

22.2

Other financial liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
Non-current
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: - - - -
Total - - - -
Current
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Security deposits received from customer 14.06 19.70 40.57 25.33
Interest accrued but not due - 2.54 - -
Society maintenance liabilities {net of expense incurred) 2.73 6.24 0.08 14.22
Employee Benefits payable 10.05 51.95 8.15 2.73
Accrued Expenses 1.56 133 0.29 1.87
Project Expenses Payable 17.36 54.57 24.39 24.40
Other payables - 0.94 3.61 5.23
Total 45.78 137.29 77.08 73.78 |
Refer note 40.2 on financial instruments.
Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 11.02 10.43 8.74 6.45
- Leave Encashment 1.45 0.49 0.38 0.34
Total 12.47 10.91 9.12 6.79
Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 1.71 1.74 1.45 0.92
- Leave Encashment 0.30 0.10 0.07 0.06
Provision for defect liability & repairs 51.22 27.21 29.42 23.03
Total 53.23 29.05 30.95 24.01
Trade payables
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
(a) Total outstanding dues of small and micro 101.23 79.66 32.54 60.91
enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small 281.70 155.53 104.77 162.01
and micro enterprises
Total 382.93 235.19 137.32 222.92

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days.

22.3 For explanations on the Group's liquidity risk management processes Refer note 40.3 (jii)
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Annexure VI

Motes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information
All amounts are X in Millions unless otherwise stated

22.5 Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act):
The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ has been determined
to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

23.1

24.1

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

As at March 31,
2021

(a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act
and remaining unpaid as at period end

(b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and

remaining unpaid as at period end
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,

beyond the appointed day during the period

(¢} Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to
suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day
during the period

(d) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act,beyond the appointed day during the
period

(e) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under
MSMED Act, for payments already made

() Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier periods

101.23

0.37

79.66

32.54

60.91

Other current liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

As at March 31,
2021

Statutory remittances
Advance from Customers
Current Account balance with Partnership Firms & LLP's
Total

59.93
1,228.82

98.76
1,545.97
3.27

27.40
1,244.78
35.93

43.44
1,864.11
12457

1,288.75

1,648.01

1,308.11

2,032.11

Current tax liabilities (net of advance tax)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

As at March 31,
2021

Income tax payable {net of advance tax)

Total

18.25




Arkade Developers Limited (Fermerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Annexure V|

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

All amounts are X in Millions unless otherwise stated

25.1 Revenue from operations
Particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended | Forthe year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2029 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of Properties 6,344.44 2,191.57 2,230.11 902.56
Other operating revenues
Development and amenities charges from Sale of Flats 2,93 9.96 59.24 180.15
Total 6,347.36 2,201.52 2,2859.34 1,082.70

25.2 The Group has provided for impairment losses, if any, based on expected credit loss policy on trade receivable recognised in statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024,

March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

25.3 Contract balances
Refer details of trade receivables in note 14,1 & advance from customers in note 23.1

25.4 The Group receives payments from customers as per agreed contractual terms and payment schedules. Accounts receivable are recorded when the right to consideration becomes

unconditional.

25.5 Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from contracts with customers 6,344.44 2,191.57 2,230.11 902.56
Add: Credits / Returns - - - -
Contracted price with the customers 6,344.44 2,181.57 2,230.11 902.56
26,1 Other income
Particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended | For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest Income on fianancial assets measures at amortised cost
- From bank deposits 0.99 3.67 3.79 3.72
- From delayed payments by customers 1.85 0.87 272 4.28
- From security deposites 0.09 = - -
2.93 4.55 6.51 8.00
Other gains and losses
- Net gain arising on finandal investments measure - - 116 511
at FVTPL
- Gain on sale of current investments 2.37 7.27 30.43 1.05
2.37 7.27 31.59 6.16
Other non-operating income
= Cancellation Charges Received from Customers - 0.49 0.59 -
- Commission Received 2.21 1.08 1.08 138
- Balances / Provisions written back (net) 1.66 24.44 36.18 3278
= Miscellaneous income 0.59 0.77 6.50 0.84
- Discount = = - -
4,46 26.78 44.38 35.00
Total 9.76 38.61 82.48 49,15
— —
27.1 Cost of Constructions
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cost incurred during the year
Land & Land Related cost 1,387.46 1,443.91 1,327.85 110.04
Construction Cost 2,477.40 1,715.52 1,122.96 44363
Allocated expenses te project:
Finance cost (refer note 30.1) 135.44 66.24 - -
Employee benefits expense (refer note 29.1) - 5.00 - -
Other expenses (refer note 32.1) 163.66 113.61 97.98 3149
Total 4,163.97 3,344.28 2,548.79 585.16
28.1 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress
Particulars For the yearended | For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March31,2022 | March31, 2021
Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Finished Units (Completed Projects) 10745 - 33.63 2,119.93
-Work in Progress (Projects under construction / development) 4,897.81 2,990.08 2,007.25 -
Inventories at the end of the year
~Finished Units {Completed Projects) - 107.45 - 3363
-Wark in Progress (Projects under construction / development) 4,879.02 4,897.81 2,990.08 2,007.25
Net (increase)/decrease 126.24 {2,015.18) [945.18) 79.04




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Annexure V|

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

All amounts are % in Millions unless otherwise stated

29.1 Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
Parch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 121.19 68.79 43.45 34.97
Director's Remuneration & Bonus 33.14 101.70 33.24 23.76
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 37.1) 112 0.46 0.15 0.09
ESIC Comtribution 0.07 0.07 0.00 -
Gratuity (Refer note 37) 3.00 2.36 163 1.47
Leave Encashment (Refer note 38) 116 013 0.06 0.30
Staff Training & Recruitment Expernse 4,60 1.55 0.20 -
Staff welfare expenses 233 0.77 0.74 0.71
167.02 175.83 79.46 61.30
Employee benefits expense allocated to Cost of Constructions (refer note 27.1) (5.00) - -
Total 167.02 170.83 79.46 61.30
30.1 Finance cost
Particulars For the year ended | Forthe yearended | Forthe year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March31,2032 | March31, 2021
Interest cast - on financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Borrowings from banks 071 117 0.20 -
- Borrowings from NBFC's 73.72 11.48 - -
- Borrowings from Others 63.48 6199 40.91 12,59
- Lease Liabilities 146 - - =
Transaction cost related to long term borrowings 24,64 0.24 - 5
Bank Charges and Stamp Duty Charges an long term borrowings 270 4.18 .18 0.39
166.72 79.05 43.29 12.99
Finance cost allocated to Cost of Constructions (refer note 27.1) {135.44) (66.24) - -
Tatal 31.27 12,81 43.29 12,99
. =
31.1 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 786 2.71 0.71 1.09
Amaortisation of intangible assets * - -+ - 2
Right-of-use assets 353 - . +
Total 1138 271 0.71 1.09
* The computer software under Intangible assets is having useful life of indefinite period and hence not amortised.
32.1 Other expenses
Particufars For the year ended | For the year ended Forthe year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Brokerage & Commission 86.03 46.04 40,51 34,58
Business Promotion & Advertising 13833 78.21 791 431
Computer Expenses 0.12 0.18 0.16 0.13
Director sitting fees 0.71 - - -
Donation & CSR Expense 12.51 B.33 863 3689
Electricity Charges 035 0.55 132 0.31
Expenses to Increase Autorized Share Capital 17.39 i - -
House Keeping Expenses 749 3.15 267 4.26
Insurance Expenses 218 0.86 0.70 0.65
Auditors Remuneration (As per Note 32.2) 0.40 0.40 0.04 0.13
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 176 - 0.03 -
Legal & Professional Fees 79.87 54,95 45.04 4230
Mataor Car Expenses 041 0.58 0.50 0.56
Printing & stationary 0.8s 1.09 0.86 1.25
Rent paid o082
Repair & Maintenance Expenses - Others 0.66 098 0.27 0.28
Security Expenses 10,14 7.44 3.24 2.02
GST Reversed / Paid 107 - 40.96 25.87
Software & IT related Expenses 0.70 197 1.67 0.11
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 1.74 2.14 0.99 1.01
Miscellanzous Expenses 15.87 5.43 B.20 5.27
379.39 212.30 163.81 126.73
Other expenses allocated to Cost of Constructions (refer note 27.1) |163.66) {113.61) {97.98) (31.49)
Total 215.72 98.69 65.82 95.25
32.2 Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses (net of GST):
Faita For the year ended | Forthe yearended | Fortheyearended | Forthe year ended
March 31,2024 | March31 2023 Mareh 31, 2032 March 31, 2021
(i) For audit 0.40 0.40 0.04 0.13
(ii) For taxation matters - = - -
(it} For other services # u - -
(iv) For certification work - - - =
(v) Auditors out-of-packet expen - - - -
Total 0.40 0.40 0.04 0.13




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
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32.3 Expenses on corporate social responsibility

No.

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

~

w

~

o

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year (under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013)

Amount of expenditure incurred

(i} Construction/acquisition of any asset
{ii) On purposes other than (i) above
Amount not spend during the year on:
(i} Construction/acquisition of any asset
(11} On purpeses other than (i) above
Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfall

Reason for shortfall
- Adoption of long gestation program/project

Amount yet to be spent/paid

Details of Related party transactions
- Contributions to the trust in which directors and their relatives are trustee

Liability incurred by entering into contractual obligations

Nature of CSR activities:

10.47

120

4.69

a. Promoting health
care including
preventive health
care and sanitation

b. Pratection of Art/
culture

. Ensuring
environmental
sustainability and
maintaining quality of
soll, air and water

d. Eradicating hunger,
poverty and
malnitrition

2.13

-a. Promoting health
care including
preventive health care
and sanitation

b. Protection of Art/
culture

e Ensuring
environmental
sustainability and
maintaining quality ef
soil, air and water

d. Eradicating hunger,
poverty and
malnitrition

For the year ended
| March31,2022 |

441

4.50

a. Promating health
care including
preventive health care
and sanitation
b. Protection of Art/
culture
¢ Ensuring
environmental
sustainability and
maintaining quality of
sail, air and water
d. Eradicating hunger,
poverty and
malnitrition

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

3.20

322

a. Promoting health
care including
preventive health care
and sanitation

b. Protection of Art/
culture

c. Ensuring
environmental
sustainability and
maintaining quality of
soil, air and water

d. Eradicating hunger,
poverty and
malnitrition
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34.1 Earning per share

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
(a) Profit/Loss for the year 1,228.40 507.83 504,73 211.90
(b) Weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding for the 20,00,000 20,00,000 20,00,000 20,00,000
purpose of basic earnings per share (numbers) at beginning of the period
(c) Effect of 1ssued of ordinary bonus shares (Numbers)* 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
(d) weighted average number of ordinary shares in computing diluted 15,20,00,000 15,20,00,000 15,20,00,000 15,20,00,000
earnings per share [(b) + (c)] (numbers)
(e) Earnings per share on Profit for the year (Face Value % 10/- per share)
- Basic [(a)/(b)] (%) B.08 3.34 332 1.39
— Diluted [{a}/(d]] (%) 8.08 3.34 3.32 1.39

*Note : Pursuant to the resolution passed in the meeting of shareholders held on July 06, 2023, the Company has allotted 15,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs, 10/-
each, as a bonus Shares in the ratio of 1: 75 to the existing equity shareholders. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year ended March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 presented above are restated and accordingly basic and diluted earning per share have been calculated after

considering the banus issue of shares.

35.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Capital Commitment (net off advances)

and not provided for

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021
Contingent liabilities :
(i) Bank Guarantees 35.75 19.00 16.50 6.50
{il) Demands/Claims by Government Authorities not acknowledged as debts
and contested/to be contested by the Group:
Income Tax - FY 2015-16 and FY 2017-18 1.10 - . -
Service Tax - FY 2016-17 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89
Goods & Service Tax - FY 2017-18 to FY 2022-23* 536.65 297.54 27235 191.62
574.38 317.43 289.74 199.01

Estimated Amount of Contracts Remaining to be Executed on capital account

35.2 * The figures for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 includes the amount of contingent liabilities for the respective years,
where show cause notice or claims have been received after the close of respective reporting period and till the date of approval of this fianncial statements by the Board of
Directors. Further, the amount of contingent liabilities disclosed above, does not include the amount of interest or penalty, wherever the same are not ascertain or included

in demand notices.

35.3 The Group is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business, the impact of which presently is not quantifiable, These cases
are pending with various courts / authorities. After considering the circumstances and advice from the legal advisers, management believes that these cases will not
adversely affect its financial statements, The above Contingent Liabilities exclude undeterminable cutcome of these pending litigations.

35.4 Future cash flow in respect of the above, If any, is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with the relevant authorities. Interest, penalty or
compensation liability arising on outcome of the disputes has not been considered, since not determinable at present.

35,5 The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision was required for foreseeable losses.

36.1 Segmentinformation

For management purposes, the Company is into ane reportable segment i.e. Real Estate development,

The Managing Director is the Chief Operating Decision Maker of the Company who monitors the operating results of the Group for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. The Company’s performance as single segment is evaluated and measured consistently with profit or loss in the
standalone financial statements, Also, the Company’s financing (including finance costs and finance income} and income taxes are managed on a Company basis
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36.2 Geographical information
The Group operates in one geographical environment only i.e. in India.
The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information about its non-current assets by location of assets are

detailed below:
Revenue from External Customers
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Within India 6,347.36 2,201.52 2,289.34 1,082.70
Cutside India - - - :
Total 6,347.36 2!201.52 2,289.34 1,082.70
Non-current Assets
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022 2021

Within India 140.07 22.42 18.29 3.46
QOutside India ” 4 i g
Total 140.07 %42 18.29 3.46

36.3 Information about major customers
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

36.4 The reporting segment includes a number of sales operations in various cities within India each of which is considered as a separate operating segment by the CODM. For
financial statements presentation purposes, these Individual operating segments have been ageregated into a single reportable operating segment taking into account the

following factors:
* these operating segments have similar long-term gross profit margins;
# the nature of the products and production processes are similar; and

* the methods used to distribute the products to the customers are the same.
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37.1 Employee benefit plans
37.2 Defined contribution plans:

The Group participates In Provident fund as defined contribution plans an behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised in relation to provident fund represents the
value of contributions payable during the period by The group at rates specified by the rules of provident fund, The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those
relating to the prior months contributions that were net paid until after the end of the reporting period.

{a) Provident fund and pension

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the group are entitled to receive benefits in respect of
provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the group make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary.
The contributians, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund administered and managed by Government of India {GO!). The group has no further obligations
under the fund managed by the GOl beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are incurred. The benefits are
paid to employees on their retirement or resignation from the group.

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year under employee benefits expense, are as under:

Particulars For the year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1) Employer's contribution to provident fund and pension 112 0.46 0.15 0.09

ii) Employer's contribution to state insurance corporation 0.07 0.07 0.00 -

Total 1.19 0.54 0.15 0.08 |

(b] Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity [Unfunded)

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a unfunded defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees, The plan provides for lump sum payment to vested
employees at retirement or at death while in employment or en termination of the employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary, as applicable, payable for each
completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on
an actuarial valuation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out for the year ended March 31, 2024 by an independent actuary. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit eredit method.

{A) Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

(1) Actuarial Risk:

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
i) Adverse Salary Growth Experience

ii) Variability in mortality rates

iii) Variability in withdrawal rates

(2} Investment Risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such
cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are
significant changes in the discount rate during the inter- valuation period.

(3) Liquidity Risk:
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign/retire from the Group
there can be strain on the cashflows.

{4) Market Risk:

Market risk is a collective term far risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the
discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa.
This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability s exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

{5) Legislative Risk

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities ar reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment
of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same
will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

(B) Principal actuarial assumptions used:

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.

Particulars Gratuity {Unfunded)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
1. Discount rate - Company 7.20% 7.40% 6.85% 6.50%
2. Salary escalation - Company 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%

3. Rate of employee turnover - Company

Age 25 & Below : 25 %,
Age 25t035:20%,
Age35t045:15%,
Age 45t0 55:10%,
Age 55 & above : 5%

Age 25 & Below : 25 %,
Age 25t035:20%,
Age35t045:15%,
Age 45to 55:10%,
Age 55 & above :5 %

Age 25 & Below ; 25 %,
Ape 25t035:20 %,
Age35tod5:15 %,
Age 45to55:10 %,
Age 55 Rabove 1 5%

Age 25 & Below : 25 %,
Ape 25 10 35: 20 %,
Age 3510 45:15 %,
Age 45 to 55:10 %,
Age 55 & above : 5 %

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) UIt.
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(C) Expenses recognised in profit and loss

Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded)
For the year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Service cost:
Current service cost 2.17 1.71 1.18 1.08
Net Interest cost 0.84 0.65 0.45 0.39
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 3.00 2.36 1.63 1.47
The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expenses' line item in the Statement of profit and loss.
{D) Netinterest cost recognised in profit or loss:
Particulars Gratulty {Unfunded)
For the year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest cost 0.84 0.65 045 0.39
Interest income - N s -
Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss 0.84 0.65 0.45 0.39
(E) Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Particulars For the year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Actuarial {gains)/losses on obligation for the year
- Due to changes in demegraphic assumptions - - - -
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.15 (0.39) (0.21) 0.05
- Due to experience adjustment {2.59) 0.00 1.40 {0.45)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income - - - .
Net [income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI (2.44) 0.38) 1.19 (0.40)
(F) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 1273 12.17 10.19 7.37
Fair value of plan assets - - - -
12.73 12.17 10.19 7.37
(G} Net asset/(liability} recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
Recognised under: As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Long term provision 11.02 10.43 8.74 .45
Short term provision 171 1.74 1.45 0.92
Total 12.73 12.17 1_{!.19 7.37
{H) Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars For the year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening defined benefit obligation 12.17 10.19 7.37 6.30
Current service cost 217 1.7 1.18 1.08
Interest cost 0.84 0.65 0.45 0.39
Actuarial losses / (Gain) (2.44) (0.38) 119 (0.40)
Benefits paid from the fund - - - -
Closing defined benefit obligation 12.73 12.17 10.19 7.37
(1) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of For the year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
reporting March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Year 1 cashflow 171 1.74 1.45 0.92
Year 2 cashflow 1.61 1.73 1.36 0.91
Year 3 cashflow 1.44 1.57 132 0.85
Year 4 cashflow 135 1.40 1.20 0.84
Year 5 cashflow 1.36 129 1.07 0.78
Year 6 to year 10 cashflow 6.73 5.08 3.77 2.78
Total expected payments 14.19 12.82 10.17 7.09

(J) Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reparting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant, These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the lied assumptions in isolation. While each of these
sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent,
For presenting the sensitivities, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented above, There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the

preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis from préevious year.
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Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of For the year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
Ireporting March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Rate of discounting

Impact of +0.5% change 12,36 11.84 9.91 7.15
(% change) {2.86%) (2.72%) (2.79%) (3.00%)
Impact of -0.5% change 13.11 12.52 10.49 7.61
(% change) 3.02% 2.87% 2.94% 3.18%
Rate of salary increase

Impact of +0.5% change 12.92 12.32 1031 7.49
(% change) 1.53% 1.22% 1.18% 1.59%
Impact of -0.5% change 12.54 12,04 10.08 7.24
(% change) [1.49%) (1.07%) {1.07%) (1.74%)
Withdrawal Rate (W.R.)

W.R. x 110% 12,75 12.28 10.26 7.39
(% change) 0.17% 0.90% 0.72% 0.21%
W.R. x 90% 12.68 12.04 10.10 7.35
(% change) (0.37%) (1.09%) (0.89%) (0.24%)

(K) Other disclosuras

The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 31, 2024 is 6.76 years {March 31, 2023: 6.89 years, March 31, 2022: 6.92 years and April 1, 2021: 7.07 Years).
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3B.1 Leave Encashment plan

(A) Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

{8)

()

(1) Actuarial Risk:

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
i) Adverse Salary Growth Experience

ii) Variability in mortality rates

iii) Variability in withdrawal rates

iv) Variability in availment rates

{2) Investment Risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases,
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes

in the discount rate during the inter- valuation period.

{3) Liquidity Risk:

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the Entity there

can be strain on the cash flows,

{4) Market Risk:

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the finandal markets, One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This
assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is expesed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.Since the
benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

(5) Legislative Risk

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Shop and
Establishment Act, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same
will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

Principal actuarial assumptions used:

The principal assumptions used for the purpases of the actuarial valuation

5 were 3s follows.

Particulars Leave Encashment (Unfunded)

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
1. Discount rate - Company 7.20% 7.40% 65.85% 6.50%
2. Salary escalation - Company 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%

4. Mortality rate

3. Rate of employee turnover - Company

Age 25 & Below : 25 %,
Age 2510 35 20 %,
Age35t045: 15 %,
Age 45to55: 10 %,
Age 55 B above: 5%

Age 25 & Below : 25 %,
Ape 2510 35:20%,
Age35t045:15%,
Aged45to55:10%,
Age 55 & above 15 %

Age 25 & Below @ 25 %,
Age 25t 35:20%,
Age 3510 4515 %,
Aged451t055:10%,
Age 55 & above : 5%

Age 25 & Below : 25 %,
Age 25 to 35: 20 %,
Age 35to 45 : 15 %,
Age 4510 55: 10 %,

AgeS5 & above 5%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult.

Expanses recognised in profit and loss
Particulars Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Service cost:

Current service cost 0.64 017 0.12 0.09
Net Interest cost 0.04 0.03 0.02 0.02
Met value of remeasurements on the gbligation and plan assets 0.49 (0.07) (0.09) (0.01)
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 1.16 0.13 0.06 0.10

The current service cost and the netinterest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expenses' line item In the Statement of profit and loss.

(D) Net interest cost recognised in profit or [oss:

(E)

Particulars Leave Encashment [Unfunded)
For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest cost 0.04 0.03 0.02 0.02
Interest income - - = =
Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss 0.04 0.03 0.02 0.02
Remeasurements on the Obligation and Plan Assets
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the year
- Due to changes in demographic assumptions - - - -
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.02 {0.02} (0.01] 0.00
- Due to experience adjustment 0.47 {0.05} (0.08) {0.01)
Return on plan assets, excl i Come - - - -
|Met actuarial Loss/[Gai 0.49 (0.07) (0.08) (0.01)
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d)

(F) Amount recagnised in the consolidated balance sheet
Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 175 0.59 0.46 0,40
Fair value of plan assets - - - -
1.75 0.59 0.46 0.40
{G) Net asset/{liability) recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
Recognised under: As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Long term provision 093 0.49 028 0.34
Short term provision 0.19 .10 0.07 0.06
Total 1.13 0.59 0.46 0.40
(H) Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:
[Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening defined benefit obligation 0.59 0.46 0,40 0.30
Transfer inf{out) obligation - - - "
Current service cost 0.64 0.17 0.12 0.09
Interest cost 0.04 0.03 0.02 0.02
Actuarial losses 0.49 (0.07) (0.09) {0.01)
Benefits pald from the fund " = - -
Closing defined benefit obligation 1.75 0.59 0.48 0.40
(1) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
‘fear 1 cashflow 0.30 0.10 0.07 0.06
‘Year 2 cashflow 0.27 0.09 0.07 0.06
Year 3 cashflow 0.24 0.08 0.06 0.05
Year 4 cashflow 0.22 0.07 0.05 0.05
Year 5 cashflow 0.20 0.07 0.05 0.04
Year 6 to year 10 cashflow 0.72 0.26 0,20 0.16
Total expected payments 1.94 0.67 0.50 0.43 |

(1) Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting periad, while holding
all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the lied assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all
other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent. For presenting the
sensitivities, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit methad at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as
that applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented above. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis

fram previous year.

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions
Rate of discounting
Impact of +0.5% change 1.71 0.57 0.45 0.39
(% change) [2.39%) (2.36%) (2.47%) (2.53%)
Impact of -0.5% change 1.79 0.60 0.47 041
(% change) 2.51% 2.48% 2.59% 2.66%
Rate of salary increase
Impact of +#0.5% change 179 0.60 0.47 0.41
(% change) 2.43% 2.41% 2.50% 2.56%
Impact of -0.5% change 1.71 0.57 0.45 0.39
(% change) (2.3438) [2.3236) (2.41%) (2.46%)
Withdrawal Rate (W.R.) varied by 10%
W.R. x 110% 162 0.54 0.42 0.37
{% change) {7.38%) (6.99%) (7.22%) {7.61%)
W.R. x 90% 190 0.63 0.43 0.44
(% change) 8.39% T87% 8.13% B.B3%

(K] Other disclosures

The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 31, 2024 |5 5.33 years (March 31, 2023: 5.43 years, March 31, 2022: 5.49 years and April 1, 2021: 5.45 Years).
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39 Related party disclosures
39.1 Details of related parties

Description of relationship

Name of the related party

Key management personnel _
- Director (Managing Director w.e.f, 01.06.2023)
- Directer (Whole Time Director w.e.f, 01.06.2023)
- Director (Whole Time Director w.e.f, 01.06.2023)
- Director (Non-Executive Non-Independent Director w.e.f. 29.11.2023)
- Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 01.06.2023)
- Company Secretary (w.e.f. 22.05.2023)
- Key management personnel (w.e.f. 31,10.2023)

Amit Mangilal Jain

Arpit Jain

Sandeep Jain (Upto 30.10.2023)
Ketu AmitJain

Samshet Balkrishna Shetye
Sheetal Haresh Solani

Sandeep Jain

Relatives of key management personnel {where transactions have taken
place)

Kritika Jain
Simran Jain
Ketu lain
Sajjan lain
Vikram Jain
Kala Jain
Mangilal lain
Sneha Jain

Enterprises over which key gement per. | is able to ise
significant influence (where transactions have taken place)

The Sajlan Jain Support Trust

Associates Firms / LLP

Bhoomi & Arkade Associates
Atul & Arkade Realty
Arkade Abode LLP (Upto 19.11.2023)

Chandak & Arkade Assoclates (Lpto 24.08.2023)

39.2 Transactions during the year with related parties

5. No. |Particulars For the Year ended | Forthe Year ended | For the Year ended | Forthe Year ended
i March 31,2024 March 31,2024 March 31,2024 March 31,2024
A management nel
I| Amit Mangilal Jain
Managerial Rermuneration 19.07 13.00 9.00 9.60
Loan Taken 100.63 218.46 318.85 90.34
Repayment of Loan Taken 178.13 137.11 36.85 393.95
Interest Expenses 44,63 23.54 5 536
Rent Expenses 1.80 - - -
Security Deposit Paid 0.320 - -
11} Arpit Jain
Managerial Remuneration 9.13 44.83 12,12 7.60
Laan Taken 26.50 34.10 85.50 5.75
Repayment of Loan Taken 152.16 7.08 0.51 -
Interest Expenses 10.00 17.78 512 -
| Sandeep Jain
Managerial Remuneration 4.94 43.87 121 6.56
Managerial Salaries 4.19 - . .
Loan Taken - 20.00 96.70 B.65
Repayment of Loan Taken 152.51 7.12 0.80 =
Interest Expenses 8.85 18.22 8.02 -
V| Samshet Balkrishna Shetye
Managerial Salaries 2.68 - - -
V| Sheetal Haresh Solani
Managerial Salaries 0.71 - -
B|Relatives of Key Management Personnel
1| Ketu Jain
Managerial Salaries 112 1.63 0.50 -
Sale of flat - 116.62 - -
Il| Kala Jain
Loan Taken - - 26.30 1.30
Repayment of Loan Taken 248 14,10 13.77 -
Interest Expenses - 0.02 273 -
1| sajjan Jain
Repayment of Loan Taken X 29.10 230 )
Sale of flat - 57.50 - -
IV| Mangilal Jain
Repayment of Loan Taken - 56.00 - 13.00
Loan Taken - - - 24.00
V| Vikram Jain
Repayment of Loan Taken - = 160 -
Loan Taken - - - 1.60
V| Kritika Jain
Professional Fees Paid = B 0.30 0.58
Vil| Simran Jain
Commission / Brokerage Paid - 196 1.96
Viil| Sneha Jain
Commission / Brokerage Paid - - 1.93 193
Managerial Remuneration - * 1.38




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Annexure VI

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information

All amounts are ¥ in Millions unless otherwise stated
5N A Partiodhars For the Year ended | Forthe Year ended | For the Year ended | For the Year ended
March 31,2024 Mareh 31,2024 March 31,2024 March 31,2029
C|Enterprises over which key management personnel is able to exercise significant
influence*
|| The Sajjan Jain Support Trust

Donations Paid 4.69 213 - -

D|Associates Firms / LLP

||Bhoomi & Arkade Associates
Share of profit / (loss) 9.61 46.86 73.09 0.09
Capital Introduce 0.25 0.19 19,99 16.41
Capital Withdrawals 0.25 14.40 3.75 153
Repayment of Loan Taken - 14.21 0.06 0.04
Interest Expenses - - 0.61 0.59
Il Arkade Abode LLP

Share of profit / (loss) - (0.38) [0.00) (0.00)
Capital Introduce - - 0.00 -
Capital Withdrawals - 0.41 0.00 -

11| Atul & Arkade Realty
Share of profit / {loss) (0.02) {0.02) (0.02) 0.03
Capital Introduce 5.62 6.85 388 0.03
Capital Withdrawals 0.34 - - -

IV|Chandak & Arkade Associates
Write off of Balances - 0.08 - -

The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. All the related party transactions

are reviewed and approved by board of directors.

39.3 Amoun
5. No,

ts outstanding with related parties

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

A
1

n

=

=

Key management personnel
Amit Mangilal Jain

Loan Payable

Managerial Remuneration Payable
Rent Payable

Security Deposit Receivable

Arpit Jain
Loan Payable
Managerial Remuneration Payable

Sandeep Jain
Loan Payable
Managerial Remuneration Payable
Managerial Salaries Payable

tives of Key Mana t Personnel

Kala Jain
Loan Payable
Interest Payable

Mangilal Jain
Loan Payable

SajjanJain
Loan Fayable

Vikram Jain
Loan Payable

Kritika Jain
Trade Recelvable

Associates Firms
Bhoomi & Arkade Associates

Capital balance with firms
Loan Payable

Atul & Arkade Realty
Capital balance with firms

Arkade Abode LLP
Capital balance with firms

Chandak B Arkade Associates

> gve

377.44
0.56
0.14
0.30

25.00
0.48

0.66

6.34

175.00

410,31
1.01

140.66
21.23

143.67
21.62

(3.27)

169.73

305.43
0.54

95.86

158

112.57

188

16.56

56.00

(35.93)
14.21

162,89

0.78

0.0

17.64

5.75
0.03

B.65

0.23

130

56,00
3140
160

0.02

{124.57)
13.66

159.04
0.78

0.08

heod ®
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a@(Mumbai|w
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Q‘\.




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

Annexure VI
MNotes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information
All amounts are X in Millions unless otherwise stated

40 Financial instruments and risk management

40.1 Capital risk management

The Group's objective, when managing capital is to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,
support the corporate strategy and meet shareholder's expectations. The policy of the Group is to borrow funds through banks or raise through equity which is
supported by committed borrowing facilities to meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the
light of changes in economic conditions and the requirement of financial markets. The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors,
and is monitored by various metrics. The fallowing table summarises the capital of the Company

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As atMarch 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31,
2021
Short term debts*(including current maturities of long term debt) 403.68 702.41 632.14 136.94
Long term debts 290.42 787.54 11.99 -
Total Debts 694.10 1,489.95 644.13 136.94
Less: Cash and cash equivalants (233.03) (166.20) {25.21) (49.39)
Net debt 461.08 1,323.75 618.92 87.55
Total Equity 3,234.02 2,003.17 1,494.94 991.41
Net debt to equity ratio 0.14 0.66 0.41 0.09

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the

interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable, and there has been no breach of any loan covenants.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and

March 31, 2021.

40.2 Categories of financial instruments

The following table provides categorisation of all financial instruments

h
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As atMarch 31,2023 | AsatMarch31,2022| 52 :‘;:;c ¥
Financial assets n
Measured at amortised cost
(a) Loans (including inter corporate deposit) 111 0.91 015 0.23
(b) Security deposits 2758 2030 0.40 0.93
(c) Deposits with bank (Fixed Deposits) 21.98 63.72 11.00 6.50
(d) Cash and cash equivalent 233.03 166.20 2521 49,39
{e) Bank balance other than (d) above 15.58 952 70.03 66.58
(f) Trade receivables B0.72 37.05 52,60 126.13
(g) Other financial assets 3.80 6.47 1.48 1.63
Total financial assets 383.81 304.18 160.87 251.39
——i
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
(a) Borrowings 694.10 1,489.95 644.13 136.94
{b) Trade payables 382.93 235.19 137.32 222.92
(c] Lease Liabilities 18.20 - - -
{d) Other financial liabilities 45,78 137.29 77.08 73.78
Total financial liabilities 1,141.01 1,862.43 858.52 433.64

40.3 Financial risk management objectives

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities Is to finance the
Company’s operations. The Group's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group periodically reviews the risk management policy so that the management manages the
risk through properly defined mechanism, The focus is to foresee the unpredictability and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group's overall risk management procedures to minimise the potential adverse effects of financial market on the Group's performance are as follows:

(i). Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.

(a) Interest rate risk:

The Group is exposed to cash flo
promoter & promoter groups wf
rates go down. However this
associated with variability in ifite
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(b}

(li).

{ii).

Foreign currency risk:
Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates. Exposures can arise
on account of the various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee.

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date:

As at March 31,

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | AsatMarch 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022 2021

(a). Financial liabilities:
In UsSD = - 5 -

Equivalent in ® Millions - = = &

|b}. Financial assets:
In UsD - - . -
In EURO - - - -
Equivalent in % Millions % = ‘ i

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or custamer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Group's customer base, including
the default risk of the industry and eeuntry, in which customers operate, has less influence on the credit risk.

The Group has entered into contracts for the sale of residential and commercial units on an installment basis. The installments are specified in the contracts. The
Group Is exposed to credit risk in respect of instaliments due. However, the possession of residential and commercial units is handed over to the buyer only after all
the installments are recovered. In addition, installment dues are monitored on an ongeing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to credit risk Is not
significant, The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as none of its customers constitutes significant portions of trade
receivables as at the year end.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by Group's treasury in accordance with the Group's policy. The Group limits its exposure to
credit risk by only placing balances with local banks of good

Liquidity risk management

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments assoclated with financial instruments that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset guickly at close to its fair value. The Group has an
established liquidity risk management framework for managing its shart term, medium term and lang term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group manages the liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. '

Surplus funds not immediately required are invested in certain financial assets which provide flexibility to liguidate at short notice and are included in cash
equivalents.

Liquidity risk table

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.
Particulars Upto 1-5years Total

1year
March 31, 2024
Borrowings 403.68 290.42 694.10
Lease Liabilities 3.86 14.34 18.20
Trade payables 382,93 - 382,93
Other financial liabilities 45.78 - 45,78
Total 836.24 304.76 1,141.01
March 31, 2023
Borrowings 702.41 787.54 1,489.95
Trade payables 235.19 - 235.19
QOther financial liabllities 137.29 - 137.29
Total 1,074.88 787.54 1,862.43
March 31, 2022
Barrowings 632.14 11.89 644.13
Trade Payables 137.32 - 137.32
Other Financial Liabilities 77.08 - 77.08
Total B846.54 11.99 858.52
March 31, 2021
Borrowings 136.94 - 136.94
Trade Payables 222.92 - 22292
Other Financial Liabilities 73.78 - 73.78
Total 433.64 - 433.64
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43 Ratio Analysis and its elements
Where any one or both the components of ratios are extracted from statement of profit and loss, the ratios are provided for the year ended March 31, 2024,
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. However, where both the components of ratio are extracted from the Balance sheet, the ratios are provided for all the three
periods (i.e., as at March 31, 2023, as at March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021),

a)

b

c)

Current Ratlo = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, | As atMarch 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
2023

Current assets 5,377.84 5,279.78 3,503.39 3,316.43

Current liabilities 2,196.48 2,751.95 2,185.60 2,489.76

Ratio [In times) 2.45 1.92 1.60 1.33

% Change from previous year 27.60% 20.00% 20.30%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2023-24 is on account of mainly repayment of short-term borrowings and decrease in advance from customers.

Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by average equity

Particulars As at March 31,2024 As atzh;;r;h 31, |AsatMarch 31,2022 |As at March 31, 2021
Met profit after tax 1,228.08 507.66 S508.44 217.18
Total equity* 2,618.60 1,749.06 1,243.18 991.41
Ratio (In %) 46.90% 29.03% 40.90% 21.91%
% Change from previous year 61.58% -29.03% 86.70%
*Average equity represents the average of opening and closing total equity.
Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2021-22 is due to increase in Net profitability of the Company.
In FY 2022-23 is due to increase in net worth with no corrosponding increase in profitability.
In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in Net profitability of the Company.
Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of materials consumed divided by average inventory
ol As at March 31, 2024 As atzh:l;r;h 31, |AsatMarch31, 2022 |As at March 31, 2021
Cast of materials consumed 4,290.21 1,329.09 1,599.60 664.20
Average Inventory 4,942.14 3,997.67 2,515.49 2,040.89
Ratio (In times) 0.87 0.33 0.64 0.33
% Change from previous year 161.11% -47.72% 95,39%
Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23, due to increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and increased in overall opertions of the Company.
In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in operations while no corresponding major change in inventory level.

d) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by average trade receivables
Bk As at March 31, 2024| As at March 31, | AsatMarch 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021

2023

Sales 6,344.44 2,191.57 2,230.11 902.56
Average Trade Receivables # 58.88 44,82 89.36 126.13
Ratio (In times) 107.75 48.89 24.96 7.16
% Change from previous year 120.36% 95.92% 24B.74%

e)

# Trade receivables is included gross of ECL and net of customer advances. Average Trade receivables represents the average of opening

and closing trade receivables.
Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2021-22, due to increase in sales while maintaining debtors realisation period under control.

In FY 2022-23 due to improved Debtors Realisation period.

In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in sales while maintaining debtors realisation period under control.

Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables

- As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31, | As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Particulars 2023
Contract Cost 4,163.97 3,344.28 2,548.79 585.16
Average Trade Payables 154.53 93.13 90.06 111.46
Ratio (In times) 26.95 35.91 28.30 5.25
% Change from previous year -33.27% 21.19% 81.45%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2021-22 due to increase in operations while maintaining Creditors Payment period at similar |evel.

In FY 2023-24, due to increase in outstanding trade payable balances at the year end.




Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)
Annexure VI

Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Infarmation

All amounts are X in Millions unless otherwise stated

f) Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales Divided by net working capital

Particulars As at March 31,2024 | As at 2.;::;:11 31, |AsatMarch 31,2022 |As at March 31, 2021
Sales (A) 6,347.36 2,201.52 2,289.34 1,082.70
Current Assets (B) 5,377.84 5,279.78 3,503.39 3,316.43
Current Liabilities (C) 2,196.48 2,751.95 2,185.60 2,489.76
Met Working Capital (D=8 -C) 3,181.36 2,527.83 1,317.79 B826.67
Ratio (In times) (E = A / D) 2.00 0.87 1.74 1.31
% Change from previous year 129.09% -49.87% 32.64%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23, the increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and increased in overall opertions of the Company has lead to

increased investments in working capital of the Company.
In FY 2023-24 is due to increase in overall operations of the company.

g) Net profit ratio = Net profit befare tax divided by Sales
Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at zl'i;:;ch 31, | AsatMarch 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Net profit before tax 1,641.51 625.99 582.93 297.04
Sales 6,347.36 2,201.52 2,289.34 1,082.70
Ratio (In %) 25.86% 28.43% 25.46% 27.44%
% Change from previous year -9.05% 11.67% =7.19%

h) Return on Capital employed (pre -tax) = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by average Capital Employed

i As at March 31,2024| AsatMarch 31, | As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021

Particulars 2033
Profit before tax (A) 1,641.51 625.99 582.93 297.04
Add : Interest (B) 137.91 74.63 41,11 12.59
EBIT (C) = (A) + (B) 1,779.41 700.62 624.04 309.64
Total Assets (C) 5,750.05 5,554.09 3,699.67 3,497.38
Current Liabilities (D) 2,196.48 2,751.95 2,185.60 2,489.76
Capital Employed (E)=(C)-(D) 3,553.57 2,802.14 1,514.07 1,007.62
Ratio (In %) 50.07% 25.00% 41.22% 30.73%%
% Change from previous year 100.27% -39.34%| 34.13% -I

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 2021-22, FY 2022-23, the increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and increased in overall opertions of the Company has lead to increased

investments in working capital of the Company.

In FY 2023-24 due to increased in overall opertions and profitability of the Company.

i) Debt Equity ratio = Total debts divided by Total Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2024| Asat zl‘-;;::h 31, |AsatMarch 31,2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Total Debts 694.10 1,489.95 644,13 136.94
Shareholder's funds 3,234.02 2,003.17 1,494.94 991.41
Ratio (In Times) 0.21 0.74 0.43 0.14
% Change from previous year -71.14% 72.63% 211.95%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Increase in FY 21-22 is mainly on account of increase in unsecured borrowings & Increase in FY 22-23 is on account of raising fresh Term Loans for Projects &

unsecured borrowings.

In FY 2023-24 due to decrease is mainly on account of decrease in unsecured borrowings & increase in Networth of the Company.

J) Debtservice coverage ratio= Earnings available for debt services dividend by total interest and principal repayments.

As at March 31, 2024| Asat March 31, | As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Particulars 2023
Profit after tax (A) 1,228.08 507.66 508.44 217.18
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost
-Depreciation and amortisation (B) 11.38 271 0.71 1.09
-Finance cost (C) 31.27 12.81 43.29 12.99

42.66 15.52 44.01 14.08

Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Pre-tax) (D= B+C)
Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Post-tax) (E=D 31.92 11.62 32.093 10.53
(1-Tax rate))
Earnings available for debt services (F = A+E) 1,260.00 519.28 541.37 227.72
Debt service
Interest (G) 137.91 74.63 4111 12.59
Lease payments (H) {4.07) - - -
Principal repayments (I} (2,581.66) (384.48) (57.36) [618.63)
Total Interest and principal (2,347.83) (305.85) -16.25 -606.03
Ratio (In times) (K= F/J) 0.51 1.68 33.31 0.38
% Change from previous year -69.29% -94.97% 8765.54% ‘_l
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Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23 Increase in cash profit ef the Company has lead to increased Debt Repayment Capacity of the Company.
In FY 2023-24 due to increase in repayment of principle amount of unsecured borrowings (which are repayable on demands)

k) Return on Investments
This ratio has not been calculated since the Company does not have any investments as on 31st March, 2024 except investments in Associates Firms.

44 Significant events occurred during the year ended March, 31, 2024

(a) Initial Public Offer - Draft Red Herring Prospectus
The Company has formed the IPO Committee vide resolution passed in the meeting of Board of Directors of the Company held on December 05, 2022 for
initiating the process of preparing and filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectuts in terms of SEBI (Issue of Capital & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations and
has filed the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with SEBI during the year ended 31st March, 2024.

(b) Conversion into Public Limited Company
The Company has been converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company vide resolution passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the
Company held on June 05, 2023,

(c) Increase in Authorised Share Capital
The Company has increased its authorised share capital from Rs. 20 millions (devided into 2 millions equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up) to Rs. 1,850 millions
{devided into 185 millions equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up vide special resolution passed in the meeting of shareholders held on July 06, 2023.

(d) Issue of Bonus Shares
The Company has allotted 15,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each, as a bonus Shares in the ratio of 1: 75 to the existing equity shareholders of
the Company vide resolution passed in the meeting of shareholders held on July 06, 2023.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
For Mittal & Assoclates Arkade Developers Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 106456W

—_— -
Hemant R Bohra Amit Jain Arpit Jain
Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director
M No. 165667 DIN : 00139764 DIM : 06899631

Place: Mumbai

pate: June 10, 201Y

UDIN: 2 416566 J@KEZEQ36T0 «ﬁ‘ﬁ*‘i ,

Samshet Shetye Sheetal Solani
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M No. : A45964
Place: Mumbai

pate: Tyn e 10, 2024
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Restatement adjustment to Audited Ind As Consolidated Financial Statements

All amounts are % in Millions uniess otherwise stated

Part A
The summary of results of restatement adjustments made in the audited consolidated financial statements for the respective year 2nd its impact on the profit of the Group Is as follows
[ % in Millions )
For the year ended
FEHar Nota 31st March, 2024 31t March 2023 315t March 2022 31t March 2021
(A) Total Comprehensive Income for the year as per audited financial statements 1,231.59 548.79 48730 207,40
(B) Adjustrment for:=
(1) Write back of Provisions - {55.85) 2492 4,41
(2] Previsions far Grauity + » " 529
|3) Share of Profit f (Loss) from Partnership Firms 071 0.09
{4) Short / (Excess) Provision of Current tax {4.13) 4.13 - (0.61)
{5) Current Tax - 14.06 (627} {1.11)
(6] Deferred Tax 3.07 (3.07) - 132
Total adjustments {1.05) {40.74) 19.36 9,39
Restated Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,230.53 508.05 507.25 216,79
PartB
The summary of results of restatement adjustments made in the audited consolidated financial statements for the respective year and its impact on Total Equity of the Group is as follows:
[ % in Milllans )
; As at
P I N
SR oA 315t March, 2024 31t March 2023 315t March 2012 315t March 2021
|A) Total Equity as per audited financlal statements 3,236.34 2,002.64 1,451,17 978.39
(8) Adjustment for:-
{1) Write back of Provisions - (55.85) 24,92 441
{2) Provisions for Grauity - - - 5.29
(3] Share of Profit / (Loss) from Partmership Firms - - o071 0,09
(4) Short / (Excess] Pravision of Current tax (4.13) 413 - (0.61)
{5) Current Tax = 14.08 {6.27) (1.11)
{6) Deferred Tax 1.07 (2.07) . 132
{7) Carry forward adjustment In total equity from the immediate previcus year 1.05 41,79 2243 13,05
Total adjustments - 1.05 41,79 22.43
Restated Total Equity 3,236.34 2,003.69 1,492.96 1,000.82

Notes to the adjustments
1. The Restated Ind AS Consolidated Financial Information do not require any adjustment far auditor quelification as there was no qualification in the underlying audit reports of the respective years that required
any corrective adjustments

2. In audited Standalene financial statements of financial year 2022-23, provision of defect liability and repairs pertaining to earlier years were written back and accounted as other income. For the purpose of
Restated Financial Information, such errors of accounting estimates of written back of excess provisions have been appropriately adjusted in the respective financlal year te which they relate including ineome tax
thereon.

3.n audited Standalane financial statements of financial year 2023-24, 2022-23, 2021-22 and 2020-21, tax pertaining to earller years were accounted based on self assessment by Group. For the purpose of the
Restated Standalone Financial Information, such taxes, interest and errors have been appropriately adjusted In the respective financlal year to which they relate.

4. For the purpose of this Restated Consclidated Financlal Information, certain errors of previous years are corrected retrospectively in the years to which they pertain. Such as provision for gratuity, share of
profit & loss from Partneship Firms etc,

5. Deferred tax impact of the restatement adjustments as explained above Is given based on the applicatle tax rates.

& Material Regrouping

Appropriate adjustments have been made In the Restated Ind AS Consolidated Summary Statement of Assets and Lizbilities, Profit and Loss and Cash Flows, wherever required, by a reclassiication of the
corresponding items of income, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows In order to bring them in |ine with the groupings/ disclosures as per the Audited Consclidated Financial Statemeants ef the Group.
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NOTICE

Shorter Notice is hereby given that the 38t Annual General Meeting of the members of
Arkade Developers Ltd. (Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) will be
held on SATURDAY, 13% July, 2024 at 4.00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at
Arkade House, Opp. Bhoomi Arkade, near Children's Academy, A. S. Marg, Ashok Nagar,
Kandivali (E), Mumbai- 400101 to transact the following business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Report of the
Auditors thereon.

3. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Restated Financial Statements of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Report of the Auditors
thereon.

4. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Arpit Jain (DIN: 06899631), who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself for re-
appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules, 2014 and The Companies(Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, the consent of the Board be and is hereby
accorded to appoint S.K.Agarwal & Associates as the Cost Auditor for auditing the cost accounting

{ a | Arkade House, Next ta Children’s Academy, t 022 28863787 / 28863785
' AS5Marg, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (E), f 022 28874742
Mumbai 400 101, Maharashtra, India e  info@arkade.in
w o www.arkadein
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records of the company who are appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company on the
recommendation(s) of the Audit Committee, for the financial year 2024-25 Company hereby ratifies
the remuneration of Rs.82,600/- (Rupees Eighty Two Thousand Six Hundred only), as mutually
agreed between auditor and Board subject to ratification at the ensuing General meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, be and is hereby, the Cost Auditor shall submit a detailed report to
the Board and also shall submit all such records, information, and the document accessed during
the conduct of the Cost Audit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of director and Key Managerial personnel of the company be
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things and matters as may be necessary in their
absolute discretion and file ROC forms to give effect to the Resolution.”

6. Approval of Related Party Transaction
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and all other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) (subject to any modification and re-enactment thereof),
based on the recommendation of audit committee and the consent of the Board of Directors of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to enter into any contract or arrangements with related parties
as defined under the Act with respect to sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, selling
or otherwise disposing of, or buying, leasing of property of any kind, availing or rendering of any
services, appointment of agent for purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or property or
otherwise disposing of any goods, materials or property or availing or rendering of any services or
appointment of such related party to any office or place of profit in the Company or its subsidiary
or associate Company or reimbursement of any transaction or any other transaction of whatever
nature with related parties for an amount aggregating upto Rs. 200 Crore, in one or more tranches”

7. OFFER AND ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 62(1)(c),179 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Share Capital
and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules,
2014 (collectively, the “CA 2013"); and in accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company ,the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2009, as amended (“ICDR Regulations”); and

a | Arkade House, Next to Children's Academy, t | 022 28863787 / 28863785
A.5.Marg, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (), f | 022 28874742
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the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation 2015, (iv) any other rules / regulations/ guidelines, if any, prescribed by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, , stock exchange and/or any other statutory / regulatory authority;
as may be required, and pursuant to approval of Board and Shareholders in their respective
meeting held on 18% August, 2023 for Pre -IPO placement under proposed Initial Public Offer and
further approval of Board of Director in the meeting held on 12t July, 2024 for issuance of Equity
shares and corresponding draft offer letter in Form PAS-4("Private Placement offer cum
Application letter” or “offer Letter")

By order of the Board of Directors
For, Arkade Developers Limited
(Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited)

L

AMIT JAIN

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 06899631

Place: Mumbai

Date: 12/07/2024

Notes:

1. A Member entitled to attend and Vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and
Vote instead of Himself/ Herself and such Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. A person
can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company.

2. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, duly
completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. Proxies
submitted on behalf of the companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as applicable.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a
certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution authority, as applicable together with their

022 28863787 / 28863785
| 022 28874742
| infomarkade.in
www.arkadein
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respective specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their
behalf at the Meeting.

4. Only bonafide members of the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members/Proxy
holders, in possession of valid attendance slips duly filled in and signed will be permitted to
attend the meeting. The Company reserves its rights to take all steps as may be deemed necessary
to restrict non-members from attending the meeting.

5. Members are informed that in case of joint holders attending the meeting only such holders
whose names appears first in the register of members of the applicant company, in respect of
such joint holding will be entitle to vote.

6. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of the quorum
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited are functioning as the Registrar and Transfer Agent
(R&TA) for carrying out the Company’s entire share related activities viz. Transfer/
Transmission/ Transposition/ Dematerialisation/ Rematerialisation/ Split/ Consolidation of
shares, Change of address, Bank mandate, Filing of nomination, Dividend payment and allied
activities. Shareholders are requested to make all future correspondence related to share
transfer and allied activities with this agency only, at the following address: S6 -2, 6th Floor,
Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri East, Mumbai -

400093
a | Arkade House, Next to Children's Academy, t | 022 28B63787 / 28863785
I A.SMarg, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (E), f | 022 28874742
| Mumbai 400 101, Maharashtra, India e | info@arkade.in
w | wwwarkadein
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FORM NO. MGT-11

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014.

CIN

U45200MH1986PLC039813

Name of the Company

ARKADE DEVELOPERS LTD.

Registered office

ARKADE HOUSE, OPP. BHOOMI ARKADE, NEAR
CHILDREN’S ACADEMY, A.S. MARG, ASHOK
NAGAR, KANDIVALI - EAST, MUMBAI - 400 101.

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

Folio No./ *Client Id.

*DP ID.(*Applicable for
Members holding
Shares in electronic
form)

I/ We, being the holder(s) of shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint

1. Name of the person:

Address: Email Id.

Signature:

Arkade House, Next to Children's Academy,

ASMarg, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (E),
Mumbai 400 101, Maharashitra, India

or failing him/her

=M o

022 2BBG3VEB7 / 2BEG378BS
022 28874742
info@arkade.in
www.arkade.in
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2. Name of the person: Address: Email Id.
Signature: or failing him/her
3. Name of the person: Address: Email Id.
Signature: or failing him/her

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday 13th July, 2024 at 4.00 p.m. at the registered

office of the Company at Arkade House, Opp. Bhoomi Arkade, Near Children’s Academy, A.S. Marg,
Ashok Nagar, Kandivali - East, Mumbai - 400 101.

Resolution No |
Ordinary Business
1. Adoption of Accounts & Board Report
2. Adoption of Consolidate Accounts &
Report
3. Adoption of Restated Financials
4. Appointment of Director Arpit Jain (DIN:
06899631) in place of retiring director
Special Business
5. Ratification of Remuneration of Cost
Auditors for The Financial Year 2024-25
6. Approval of Related Party Transaction

Signed this day of 2024
Affix
Signature of Shareholder(s): Revenue
stamp of

Signature of Proxy holder(s):

022 28863787 / 28863785
022 28874742
info@arkade.in
www.arkade.in

a | Arkade House, Next to Children’s Academy,
ASMarg, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (E),
Mumbai 400 101, Maharashitra, India
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Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
meeting.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

*DP Id. Name & Address of the
registered Shareholder

*Client Id. /Regd. Folio No.

(*Applicable for Members
holding Shares in electronic
form)

No. of Share(s) held

[ certify that [ am a registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.

[ hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company convened on Saturday
13th July, 2024 at 4.00 p.m at the registered office of the Company at Arkade House, Opp. Bhoomi
Arkade, Near Children’s Academy, A.S. Marg, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali - East, Mumbai - 400 101.

Member’s/ proxies Signature

Note: Please complete this and hand it over at the entrance of the hall.

022 2BBG3VEB7 / 2BEG378BS
022 28874742
info@arkade.in
www.arkade.in
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Board’s Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Board’s have pleasure in presenting their Thirty Eight Annual Report and the
Audited Accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 together with the
Independent Auditor’s Report thereon.

. Financial Results

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

2023-2024 2022-2023 2023-2024 2022-2023
Total Revenue 63,473.65 22,015.27 63,473.65 22,015.27
Less: Expenses 47,144.40 16,128.01 47,156.13 16,141.41
Profit / (Loss) 16,514.15 7,236.88 16,511.01 7,235.82
Before Tax
Provision for
Taxes -
Current Tax 4,247.22 1,790.0 4,247.22 1,790.0
Deferred Tax 13.58 -38.90 13.58 -38.90
Assets
Short provision
for tax
adjustments in
respect of earlier
year (Net)
Net Profit [/ 12,294.62 5,485.79 12,291.47 5,484.08
(Loss) After Tax
Balance Brought 17,946.11 12,460.32 17,946.10 12,460.31
Forward from
Previous Year
Balance in
Statement of 17,119.88 17,946.11 17,119.88 17,946.10
Profit & Loss at
the end of the
Year

@ | Arkade House, Next to Children's Academy,
AS5.Marg, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (E),
Mumbai 400 107, Maharashtra, India
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2. Operations of the Company

On a Standalone basis, the Total Revenue for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
stood at Rs. 63,473.65 Lakhs as against Rs. 22,015.27 Lakhs for the corresponding
Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. The Company earned a Profit before tax of Rs.
16,514.15 Lakhs for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 as against Profit before tax
of Rs. 7,236.88 Lakhs for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. The Profit after tax was
Rs. 12,294.62 Lakhs for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 as against Profit after
tax of Rs. 5,485.79 Lakhs for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

On a Consolidated basis, the Total Revenue for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
was Rs. Lakhs as against Rs. 22,015.27 Lakhs for the corresponding Financial Year ended
March 31, 2023. The Company earned Profit before tax of Rs. 16,511.01Lakhs for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 as against a Profit of Rs. 7,235.82 Lakhs for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. The Profit after tax was Rs. 12,291.47 Lakhs for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 as against Profit of Rs. 5,484.08 Lakhs for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

3. Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company has been Increased from Rs. 2.00 Cr to
Rs.185.00 Cr by way of creation of additional Rs.183.00 Cr.

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2024 was Rs. 152.00 Cr has been
increased from Rs. 2.00Cr to Rs 152.00 Cr due to issue and allotment of Bonus Shares on
6t July, 2023.

4. Conversion of the Company
The Company has been converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited

Company from Arkade Developers Pvt. Ltd. to Arkade Developers Ltd. vide resolution
passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on June 05, 2023

5. Debentures
During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company did not issue or allot any Debentures.
6. Dividend

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the Equity Share of the
Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.
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7. Transfer to Reserves

The Company has transferred Rs. 12,294.62 Lakhs to the general reserves during the
financial year under review.

8. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the Note No. 7 and 8 to the Standalone Financial
Statements, forming part of this Annual Report.

9. State of Company’s Affairs and Business Review
The details of the Company’s affairs including its operations and projects are detailed in
the Management Discussion & Analysis Report, which forms part of this Annual Report
more specified in Annexure A.

10.Corporate Social Responsibility
The Composition of the CSR Committee has been changed during the year due to

resignation of Mr. Sandeep Jain as Director of the Company and has been replaced by Mr.
Hiren Tanna. The CSR Committee as on March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Name Designation
Mr. Amit Mangilal Jain Chairman
Mr. Arpit Vikram Jain Member

Mr. Hiren Tanna Member

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has contributed Rs. 1.04 Cr towards the
Corporate Social Responsibility activities.
Detail of the same is provided in “Annexure B.” and Corporate Social Responsibility

Policy of the Company is hosted on the website of the Company https://arkade.in/csr-
disclosures/

11.Business Risk Management
The Company is exposed to inherent uncertainties owing to the sector in which it
operates. A key factor in determining the Company’s capacity to create sustainable value
is the ability and willingness of the Company to take risks and manage them effectively
and efficiently. Many types of risks exist in the Company’s operating environment and
emerge on a regular basis due to many factors such as changes in regulatory framework,
economic fundamentals etc. In order to evaluate, identify and mitigate these business
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risks, the Company has a robust Risk Management framework. This framework seeks to
create transparency, ensure effective risk mitigation process and thereby minimize
adverse impact on the business objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Business risks as identified are reviewed and a detailed action plan to
mitigate the identified risks is drawn up and its implementation is monitored.

12.Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations.

The Internal Auditor has been appointed by the Board in its Meeting held on 015t June,
2023 for the Financial Year 2023-24. The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the
efficiency and adequacy of the internal control system in the Company, its compliance
with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the
Company. Based on the suggestions of Internal Auditor, process owners undertake
corrective actions in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.

13.Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy on 18 August, 2023 and has
established the necessary vigil mechanism for Directors and employees in conformity
with Section 177 of Companies Act, to report genuine concerns and to provide for
adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who may use such mechanism.

14.Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associates

The Company has 2 (Two) Subsidiaries as a Partnership firm such as Arkade Paradigm
and Arkade Realty and 2 (Two) Associates such as Atul Arkade Realty and Bhoomi Arkade
Associates as on March 31, 2024.

One of the Associates Arkade Abode LLP was dissolved due to strike off in the month of
December 2023.

A statement containing the salient features of the Financial Statements of the Company’s
aforesaid Subsidiaries and Associates is annexed in the prescribed Form AOC-1 to this
Report as “Annexure-C.”
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The Company will provide the Financial Statements of the Subsidiaries and Associates
and the related information to any member of the Company who may be interested in
obtaining the same. The Financial Statements of the Subsidiaries will also be kept open
for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company and that of the respective Joint
Ventures and Associates. The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, forming
partofthis Annual Report includes the Financial Statements of its subsidiary and the same

is also hosted on the website of the Company https://arkade.in/disclosure-under-reg-

46-of-sebi- - ions
Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there are following Change in the Director of the
Company which are as follow:

i.  The Board of Directors appointed the existing Director Mr. Amit Mangilal Jain
(DIN: 00139764) as Managing Director and Chairman of the Company for a term
of 5 (five) years with effect from 015t June, 2023. The appointment was approved
by the Member Extra Ordinary General Meeting on 05t June, 2023.

In accordance with the provisions of Sub-Section (6) of Section 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company,

ii.  The Board of Directors has Changed the Designation of Mr. Arpit Vikram Jain (DIN:
06899631) from Director to Whole-time Director of the Company for a term of 5
(five) years with effect from 01st June, 2023 and the same was approved by the
Member in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 05% June, 2023.

In accordance with the provisions of Sub-Section (6) of Section 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Arpit
Vikram Jain (DIN:06899631) is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re- appointment. Your
Directors recommend re- appointment of Mr. Arpit Vikram Jain (DIN:06899631)
as a Whole Time Director of the company, liable to retire by rotation.

iii. =~ The Board of Directors has Changed the Designation of Mr. Sandeep Ummedmal
Jain (DIN: 02231601) from Director to Whole-time Director of the Company for a
term of 5 (five) years with effect from 015t June, 2023 and the same was approved
by the Member in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 05% June, 2023.

iv.  The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting on 17th May, 2023,
appointed Ms. Sheetal Solani, as the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of
the Company with effect from 22nd May, 2023 and complied with the requirement
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of appointing Key Managerial Personnel as per the provisions of Section 203 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

v. The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting, appointed Mr. Samshet
Balkrishna Shetye, as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from
01st June, 2023 and complied with the requirement of appointing Key Managerial
Personnel as per the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. Appointment of Mrs Neha Huddar, Mr, Hiren Tanna and Mr, Chaitya Mehta as
Additional Independent Director of the Company w.e.f 1st August, 2023.

vii. Change in Designation of Mrs Neha Huddar, Mr, Hiren Tanna and Mr, Chaitya
Mehta from Additional Independent Director to Director with the approval of
shareholders on 18th August, 2023.

viii.  Resignation of Mr. Sandeep Jain as Whole time Director of the Company w.e.f 30th
October, 2023 and Resignation of Mr. Chaitya Mehta as Independent Director of
the Company w.e.f 29t November, 2023.

ix.  Appointment of Mr. Abhishek Dev as Additional Independent Director of the
Company and Mrs. Ketu Jain as Additional Non-Executive Director of the Company
w.e.f 29t November ,2023 and same was approved by the Member in the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on 29t November, 2023 as Change in Designation
from Additional Director to Director.

The Company is in Compliance with the Composition of the Board.

15.Remuneration of Managing Director & Whole Time Director

During the Financial Year 2023-2024, the Managerial Remuneration of Managing
Director & Whole time Director is detailed below:

The Managerial Remuneration of Managing Director Mr Amit Jain is Rs 200 Lakhs, &
Whole time Directors Mr. Arpit Jain is Rs. 100 Lakhs and Mr Sandeep Jain is Rs 100
Lakhs w.e.f 15t June, 2023.

16.Particulars of Employee:
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None of the employees of the Company has received any remuneration exceeding the
limit as prescribed under section 197 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Meetings of the Board and its Committees

During the Financial Year, the Board met on 19 occasions as detailed below. The gap
between two consecutive Board Meetings was within the limits prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Sr. | Board Meeting Total Number Attendance
No of directors as
on the date of Number of % of attendance
meeting directors
attended

1 ]101/04/2023 3 3 100
2 | 03/04/2023 3 3 100
3 |11/04/2023 3 3 100
4 |29/04/2023 3 3 100
5 |17/05/2023 3 3 100
6 |29/05/2023 3 3 100
7 101/06/2023 3 3 100
8 |07/06/2023 3 3 100
9 |26/06/2023 3 3 100
10 | 03/07/2023 3 3 100
11 | 06/07/2023 3 3 100
12 | 14/07/2023 3 3 100
13 | 21/07/2023 3 3 100
14 | 01/08/2023 3 3 100
15 [ 18/08/2023 6 4 66.66
16 | 31/08/2023 6 5 83.33
17 | 30/10/2023 6 4 66.66
18 | 29/11/2023 5 5 100
19 | 23/02/2024 6 4 66.66

Committee Meeting

Board of Directors of the Company has formed following committees in terms of
requirements of the Act, the statutorily mandated committees constituted under the
provisions of the Act are Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
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The Committees have been mandated to operate within their terms of reference,
approved by the Board to focus on the specific issues and ensure expedient resolution on
diverse matters. There was no instance where the Board did not accept the
recommendation of the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
The composition, committee meeting held, terms of reference and other details of the
above mentioned committees are as follow:

Sr. Type of Date of Meeting Total Number | Attendance
No Meeting Number of
of Director
Members | attended
as on the
date of
meeting
1 | Management 22/08/2023 3 3 100
committee
2 | Management 13/09/2023 3 2 66.66
committee
3 | Management 09/10/2023 3 2 66.66
committee
4 | Management 17/01/2024 3 3 100
committee
5 | Management 06/03/2024 3 2 66.66
committee
6 | Management 30/03/2024 3 2 66.66
committee
1 | Audit Committee 30/08/2023 3 2 66.66
2 | Audit Committee 23/02/2024 3 2 66.66
1 | Nomination & |29/11/2023 4 4 100
Remuneration
Committee
1 | Corporate Social | 03/07/2023 3 3 100
Responsibility
1 | IPO Committee 31/08/2023 3 2 66.66

20. Remuneration Policy

The Board has framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key

Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and their remuneration.
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21. Loan from Directors

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has accepted loans from Mr. Amit Jain,
Mr. Arpit Jain & Mr. Sandeep Jain who were Directors of the Company during the year.

Company has repaid the Loan to Mr. Sandeep Jain within financial year 2023-24.
22. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), we hereby state that:

i)  In the preparation of the annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

ii)  Your Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its
loss for the year ended on that date;

iii) Your Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv)  Your Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March
31, 2024 on a going concern basis;

v)  Your Directors have laid down internal financial controls which are followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively; and

vi) Your Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

23. Related Party Transactions

The Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the Financial Year 2023-24
were on an arm'’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There were no
materially significant Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company with
Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel, which may have a potential conflict with
the interest of the Company at large.
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Details of the Related Party Transactions are given in Form AOC-2 which is enclosed as
“Annexure-D.”

24, Deposits

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposits under Chapter V of the Companies
Act, 2013, during the Financial Year 2023-24.

25. Auditors
a) Statutory Auditors

The Statutory Auditor, Kevin Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (FRN#
144250W), rendered his resignation from the office on 03 April, 2023 due to pre-
occupation.

Due to the Casual Vacancy caused in the office of the Statutory Auditor, the Board appointed
M/S. Mittal & Associates, Chartered accountants, Mumbai (FRN:- 106456W), as the Statutory
Auditor of the Company in the Board Meeting held on 11t April, 2023 and the appointment
was approved by the Member in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 12t April, 2023.

In view of the above, the Board of Directors of the Company recommended to the members
of the Company the appointment of M/S. Mittal & Associates, Chartered accountants,
Mumbai (FRN:- 106456W),) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (five)
years commencing from conclusion of 37t Annual General Meeting upto the conclusion of
the 415t Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2026-2027. The
Company has received a confirmation letter from M/S. Mittal & Associates to the effect that
their appointment, if made, will be within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013. Further, they have confirmed that they are not disqualified for appointment as per the
provisions of the Act and they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). The Board recommends their
appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years commencing
from the Financial Year 2022-23 to 2026-27.

b) Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Kala
Agarwal (C.P. No.: 5356), Company Secretary in Practice, in the Board meeting held on 01st
June, 2023 to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-
2024 and their report is Annexure E as part of this Report.
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26. Annual Return

27,

28.

29

30.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 134(3)(a) and 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12(1)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return as on
31st March, 2024, is placed on the website of the Company at https:/ /arkade.in/financial-

reporting/

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

In view of the nature of activities which are being carried on by the Company, provisions
regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption read with Section 134 (3) (m)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable.

Maintenance of Cost Records

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014; your Company with reference to its Construction
Industry is required to maintain the cost records as specified under Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the said cost records are also required to be audited by the
Practising Cost Accountants. Your Company is maintaining all the cost records referred
above.

The Company had appointed S K Agarwal and Associates, Practising Cost Accountants, as
the Cost Auditors for conducting the audit of cost records of the Company for the Financial
Year 2023-24.

Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

During the Financial Year 2022-23, there was no expenditure in foreign currencies in terms
of on account of professional fees and payment of Letter of Credit and the Company has not
earned any foreign exchange.

Significant and Material Orders

There were no significant and material orders passed by any Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals during the Financial Year 2023-24 impacting the going concern status and
Company'’s operations in future.
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Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

In line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has adopted an Anti-Sexual
Harassment Policy and has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) to redress the complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. During the Financial Year 2023-24, no instances were reported for redressal.

32.Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

Pursuant to sub-rule (8) of rule 9A Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities
Rules, 2014, As required by the with a view to reconcile the total share capital admitted
with NSDL and CDSL and held in physical form, with the issued and paid-up capital. The
Company has filed Half yearly Form PAS-6 to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

33.Declaration by Independent Directors & Registration in Independent Directors

34.

Databank

All the Independent Directors have given declarations that they continue to meet the criteria
of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Actand Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI LODR and that they are not debarred from holding the office of director by virtue of any
SEBI Order or any other such authority. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that
they are in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to registration with the data bank of
Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs

Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test

Mrs Neha Huddar, Independent Directors of the Company have passed the Online Proficiency
Self-Assessment Test conducted by Indian Institute of Corporate Affair (IICA). The other 2
Independent Director will appear for Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test conducted by
Indian Institute of Corporate Affair (I1ICA)

35.Change in the Nature of Business (if any)

There is no material change in the type of business the Company is carrying.

36.Material Changes and commitments occurred between the end of the Financial Year

and the date of the report
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The details of material changes, occurred between the end of the Financial Year and the date
of this report, which may have an effect on the financial position of the Company are
disclosed in the Notes No. 44. In the Restated Financial Statements for the year 2023-24,
forming a part of this Annual Report.

There were no other reportable material changes or commitment, occurred between the end
of the Financial Year and the date of this report, which may have any effect on the financial
position of the Company.

37.Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India during the Financial Year 2023-24.

38.Details of Fraud.

There were no frauds which are reported to have been committed by Employees or Officers
of the Company:.

39.Proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the year there was no application made or any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

40. Details in Respect of Frauds Reported by Auditors Under Sub-Section (12) of Section
143 other than those which are Reportable to the Central Government

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under the
second proviso of Section 143(12) of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) for the time being in force).

41.General Disclosure
During the year, there were no transactions requiring disclosure or reporting in respect of
matters relating to:

a) issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;

b) issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under
any scheme;

c) raising of funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement;

d) instance of one-time settlement with any bank or financial institution.
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Annexure A-Management Discussion and Analysis

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATING RESULTS AND
FINANCIAL POSITIONS

REVIEW OF THE GLOBAL ECONOMY

The global economy has been exhibiting encouraging signs of a gradual recovery from the turmoil of the
pandemic and the Ukraine-Russia war, The Chinese economy has re-opened and is likely to return to its
growth trajectory. The challenges faced by the supply chain disruptions together with the dislocations in
the energy and food markets are seen to be receding. The Indian economy continues to remain buoyant.
Notably, there has been a recovery in credit growth for both industrial and retail sectors, which is a
promising indication of economic progress. Additionally, the return of foreign portfolio investors has
further contributed to this positive sentiment. The Government's commitment to implementing structural
reforms that encourage private investment has also played a crucial role in boosting investor confidence.
Overall, these developments highlight a favourable environment for investment and growth.
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Figure 1: Projected GDP Growth Rate (%) Source

India recently achieved the coveted position of being the 5th largest global economy, by dislodging the
United Kingdom. This has been significant progress from being in the 11th position a decade ago. Despite
the IMF’s downward GDP revision for India, from 6.1% to 5.9% for FY24, India continues to be the fastest
growing economy across the world and is considered as ‘very strong’. The ambitious investment plans,
infrastructure development, and continued government spending on national progress have driven India’s
economic growth. With rapid progress, it is anticipated that India can become the 4th largest economy by
2027, by replacing Germany. Further, by the end of this decade India is expected to surpass Japan as the
3rd largest economy in the world only behind China and the United States of America.
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New supply across the top 7 cities up by 25% Y-0-Y
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New supply across the top 7 cities saw an increase of 25% over the year before, with new unit launches
of nearly 4.45 lakh units in 2023 compared to over 3.57 lakh units in 2022. However, the total number of
new launches in 2023 stayed below the previous high of 2014, when over 5 lakh units were introduced in

the top 7 cities.

Supply & Absorption Outlook - MMR (Units: 2024 to 2026)
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Figure 2: Supply and Absorption outlook (in units) of MMR housing market from 2017 to 2026

MMR HOUSING MARKET

As we progress towards 2026, the pricing in housing market are likely to gain momentum and rise steadily.
This positive trend can be attributed to various factors such as improved infrastructure development,
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growing demand from homebuyers, and favourable market conditions. Below is the graph showcasing the
capital value movement outlook (on saleable area) of MMR housing market from 2017 to 2026.
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Note: All the figures in the above graph are as per Calendar Year (CY)

Note: Accuracy of forecast is subject to unforeseen situations and circumstances, real estate trends can be influenced by economic
factors, government policies, infrastructure developments, and other variables that may impact the capital values in the
residential market.

Western suburbs are home to some of the biggest residential catchments in the city. The western suburbs
account for almost 60% of the market size of the total western coast of Mumbai and is one of the densely
populated areas of the city. The submarket includes some of the most luxury and upmarket residential
areas like Bandra, Khar, Santacruz, Juhu Tara Road, JVPD and Versova. Previously these areas were
dominated by homes of Bollywood stars, however now these micro markets have become the preference
of corporates and HNIs also as BKC has become the pseudo-CBD of Mumbai.

Micro markets like Andheri, Jogeshwari, Goregaon, Malad, Kandivali and Borivali are some of the
prominent residential areas in Mumbai. A large chunk of Mumbai’s talent pool resides here and
consequently these areas have received the maximum supply of residential units and almost all major real
estate developers have their presence in these areas. These factors have led to western suburbs becoming
the most active real estate markets in the city.
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Budget-wise Supply

As per Anarock, share of affordable and mid-income
segments in the total housing sales has come down

in the recent past due to rise in mortgage rates.
Rising mortgage rates reduces the loan eligibility of 24
the consumer. Thus, while the consumer can afford

the monthly payments towards the mortgage due to 39

income growth, lower loan eligibility means a higher
equity contribution on the part of the consumer.
Given, this segment of the consumer has limited
4 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

savings, there has been an impact on the growth for g affordable m Mid-End m High-End m Luxury m Ultra-Luxury
this segment. There are near term actions which are likely to support the demand in this segment. Key
among them are: Likely government incentives for entry level homebuyers -~ Govt has time and again
shown intention of increasing home ownership in affordable segment, could announce detailed scheme
soon which was mentioned in the budget announcement Likely cut in interest rate in second half of FY25
— As inflation has come down at better-than-expected pace, RBI is likely to cut key policy rate to prioritize

growth.
SIGNIFICANT EQUITY WEALTH CREATION TO FUEL LUXURY DEMAND

On the back of strong economic growth and prudent policies as well as various reforms in the last three
years, India has seen substantial equity wealth creation both in the listed as well as unlisted space. There
has been marked increase in the number of companies having US$ 1 Bn market value both in the listed
and unlisted space. The number of listed Indian companies having market cap of US$ 1 Bn has nearly
doubled in 4 years to 525 companies as of March 31, 2024. Similarly, despite the softness in the start-up
ecosystem, India ranks 3rd in the number of unicorns with nearly 100 unicorns. Many of these unicorns
ultimately list on public markets, resulting in the unlocking of significant wealth and a positive impact on
related sectors. This trend is expected to persist, keeping luxury markets buoyant in the future. By virtue
of being one of the largest residential players in the country, your company will be a disproportionate
beneficiary of this opportunity.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

In the last 2 decades we have completed 27 projects (including 10 projects on a stand-alone basis
(including 2 projects executed through partnership firms in which we hold the majority stake), 8 projects
executed by our Promoter through his proprietorship, M/s Arkade Creations, and 9 projects through joint
development arrangements with other third parties) aggregating more than 4.5 million square feet of
development and have catered to more than approximately 4,000 customers. Our projects have,
generally, been financed primarily through a mix of promoter equity and internal accruals.
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We are a real estate development Company concentrating on the development of premium aspirational
lifestyle residential premises in Mumbai, Maharashtra, India’s commercial capital. Our business can
broadly be classified into two categories: (i) development / construction of residential premises on land
acquired by our Company (New Projects) and (ii) redevelopment of existing premises (Redevelopment
Projects).

Arkade's project portfolio spans an impressive range of segments, catering to diverse buyer preferences.
From premium and high-end residences to luxury and ultra-luxury offerings, the company has successfully
positioned itself across multiple price points in some of Mumbai's most sought-after locations. This
diversification strategy has allowed Arkade to evolving consumer demands. The company’s diverse
portfolio encompasses several prime locations across Mumbai including Andheri, Borivali, Goregaon,
Kanjurmarg, Santacruz, Malad, Vile Parle, and Carmichael Road. These strategic locations highlight
Arkade's ability to identify and capitalize on emerging real estate hotspots, ensuring a strong market
presence and sustained demand for its projects. These areas, known for their connectivity and amenities,
have proven to be ideal for Arkade's development projects, attracting a steady stream of homebuyers and
investors.

Our Subsidiaries

As on the date, our Company has 2 subsidiaries namely, Arkade Paradigm and Arkade Realty, as set out
below:

Arkade Developers
Limited

Arkade
Paradigm*

Arkade Realty**

*Our Company is a partner in Arkade Paradigm and holds 95% in profit and loss sharing ratio of Arkade Paradigm.
**Our Company is a partner in Arkade Realty and holds 70% in profit and loss sharing ratio of Arkade Realty.

Our operations are strategically located in Mumbai, one of the biggest and most expensive real estate
markets in India. Since January 2017 to Q1 2024, the MMR, Maharashtra has contributed the highest
annual sales share of residential units across the top 7 cities in India, ranging from 27% to 33%. On average,
the sales in MMR, Maharashtra accounted for 31% of the total residential unit absorption during this time
frame. Further, the residential market in MMR, Maharashtra stands out as the most expensive, amongst
the top 7 cities in India with a capital value of X 14,600 per Sq. ft as of Q1 2024. (Source: Anarock Report)
Within the MMR, Maharashtra, our operations are strategicall'y located and we have significant
operations in the western suburbs of the MMR, Maharashtra and, from 2017, are amongst the top 10
developers in terms of supply in the Borivali West, Goregaon East and Santacruz West micro-markets.
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Arkade Developers Limited has distinguished itself through its unwavering commitment to quality, trust,
and customer satisfaction. The company's success is built on a foundation of ethical practices,
transparency, and affordability, values that have become synonymous with the Arkade brand. We are
amongst the top-10 developers in the Borivali West micro-market and have a 2% share in the total supply
and 3% share in the total absorption of cumulatively from 2022 to Q1 2024. Further, in Borivali West
micro-market we account for 11% share of the top 10 developers supply since 2017 and 13% of the share
of the top-10 developers from 2022 onwards. Moreover, in the Goregaon-East micro-market we had 8%
share in the total supply and 11% share in the total absorption cumulatively from 2022 to Q1 2024. In the
Goregaon-East micro-market he top-10 developers contribute 75% in the total supply from 2017 onwards
and out of we account for a 11% share. Similarly, top-10 developers contribute 84% in the total supply
from 2022 onwards and of this our share is 22%. Further, from 2017, we have been one of the major
market players in the combined micro-markets of Andheri East, Goregaon East, Santacruz West and
Borivali West in terms of 4 BHK, 3 BHK & 2 BHK units accounting for (i) 2%, 5% and 3%, respectively of the
typology wise supply and (i) 3%, 5% and 4%, respectively, of typology wise absorption. (Source: Anarock
Report)

Arkade has made notable strides in the residential real estate market across Maharashtra, with a distinct
emphasis on the Western and Eastern regions of the Mumbai Metropolitan Region (MMRY). The Western
MMR emerged as a key area of activity, with 201 residential units booked, amounting to a substantial
total value of X 515 crores. This region accounted for 13.40% of the total value of residential units booked,
indicating its significant contribution to Arkade's portfolio. Meanwhile, the Eastern MMR, although
comprising a smaller volume with 68 residential units booked, demonstrated a higher value efficiency,
contributing 102 crores and representing 16.60% of the total value of residential units booked. This data
reflects the Western MMR's predominance in terms of sheer volume and aggregate value, while the
Eastern MMR, despite its smaller scale, showcased a higher proportional value contribution. Such a
distribution underscores the strategic positioning and market dynamics within different sectors of the
MMR, highlighting Arkade's adeptness in navigating and capitalizing on varied market opportunities
across the region,

With each project, Arkade reinforces its reputation as a developer that not only meets but exceeds the
expectations of its stakeholders. Looking ahead, Arkade Developers is poised to continue its growth
trajectory, leveraging its futuristic vision and innovative approach to redefine urban living. With a strong
foundation built on trust and excellence, Arkade Developers is set to achieve new heights, delivering
outstanding value to its customers and contributing significantly to the development of Mumbai's urban
landscape.

ONGOING PROJECTS

The Arkade Group is currently spearheading several noteworthy real estate projects within the Mumbai
Metropolitan Region (MMR) of Maharashtra, each varying in nature and completion timelines. The Arkade
Aura in Santacruz, a purely residential project, is slated for completion by December 31, 2025, with a total
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of 43 units, 55.87% of which have been sold. Another project, Arkade Prime in Andheri East, encompassing
both residential and commercial spaces, shares the same expected completion date and boasts 116 units
with a remarkable 91.23% of units already sold. Similarly, the Arkade Aspire in Goregaon East, a mixed-
use development, is also on track for a December 31, 2025, completion with 228 units, 88.60% of which
have been sold. Moving forward, Arkade Nest in Mulund West, dedicated solely to residential use, is
anticipated to be completed by June 30, 2027, featuring 87 units with 31.58% sold. Additionally, the
Arkade Pearl in Vile Parle, another residential endeavour, is expected to be finished by December 31,
2026, providing 38 units with a 34.55% sales rate. Finally, Arkade Eden in Malad, also residential, shares
the same completion date as Arkade Pearl and comprises 55 units, with 55.87% already sold.

These diverse projects underscore the Arkade Group’s strategic expansion and robust presence within the
MMR, reflecting a balanced portfolio of residential and mixed-use developments with varying degrees of
market absorption.

STRATEGIES FOR AN EMPOWERED TOMORROW

» Expanding our presence in Eastern MMR Region with Mid Mass Aspirational Category
» Continue to focus on our blended Business Model

» Moving up the value chain to Premium/Luxury Residential Premises

» Continuing to be a pioneer in Micro Market

OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES

Opportunities

As India awaits policy reforms to pick up speed, your Company firmly believes that the demand for Real
Estate in a country like India should remain strong in the medium to long term.

Challenges

While the management of your Company is confident of creating and exploiting the opportunities, it also
finds the following challenges:

* Unanticipated delays in project approvals;

e Availability of accomplished and trained labour force;

* Increased cost of manpower;

® Rising cost of construction lead by increase in commaodity prices;
# Growth in auxiliary infrastructure facilities;

® Over regulated environment.

COMPANY STRENGTHS
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Your Company continues to capitalize on the market opportunities by leveraging its key strengths. These

CIN: U45200MH1786PLCO39913

include:

1. Targeting Established and Premium Markets: Focusing on well-established and high-value markets to
ensure exceptional returns and elevate brand prestige.

2. Stringent Due Diligence: Implementing comprehensive evaluations and assessments prior to
acquisitions to minimize risks and enhance investment potential.

3. Emphasizing Larger Plots: Prioritizing plots exceeding one acre for layout projects, ensuring enhanced
amenities and expansive living spaces.

4. Zero debt: The company has zero debt or low leverage for the successful completion of the projects.

5. Planning Low Density and Sustainable Products: Designing low-density, eco-friendly products to
promote sustainable living and uphold environmental integrity.

ACHIEVEMENTS AND AWARDS

1. Seren achieved a remarkable feat by obtaining an Occupancy Certificate just 17 months after the
Commencement Certificate, drastically shortening the typical real estate development timeline.

2. Arkade Aura recognized as the Iconic Luxury Residential project of the year 2024 by Mid-day Real Estate
and Infrastructure lcons.

3. Iconic Residential Developer by Times Real Estate Conclave Awards 2023.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
OUR RESULT OF OPERATIONS

The following table provides select financial data from our consolidated statements of profit and loss for
financial years ended March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023, respectively, the components of which are also
expressed as a percentage of total revenue for such periods.

(Rs. M_Ii_lll_Ions}

% to % to
Particulars 31-03-2024 revenue 31-03-2023 revenue
Revenue from operations 6,347.36 99.85 2,201.52 98.28
Other income 9.76 0.15 38.61 1.72
Total income (1 + I1) 6,357.12 100.00 2,240.13 100.00
Expenses
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Cost of construction 4,163.97 65.50 3,344.28 149.29
Changes in inventories of finished goods and wip 126.24 1.99 -2,015.19 -89.96
Employee benefit expense 167.02 2.63 170.83 7.63
Finance costs 31.27 0.49 12.81 0.57
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11.38 0.18 2.71 0.12
Other expenses 215.72 3.39 98.69 4.41
Total expenses (IV) 4,715.60 74.18 1,614.13 72.06
Profit before tax and share of profit (loss) from

associates 1,641.51 25.82 625.99 27.94
Share of profit / (loss) from associates 9.59 0.15 41.74 1.86
Profit before tax 1,651.10 25.97 667.73 29.81
Tax expense 0.00 0.00
Current tax 424.72 6.68 160.88 7.18
Taxation for earlier year

Deferred tax expense/ (credit) -1.71 -0.03 -0.82 -0.04
Total tax expense (VI) 423.01 6.65 160.06 7.15
Profit for the year (V -VI) 1,228.08 19.32 507.66 22.66

Revenue from Operations: The company’s revenue from operations increased significantly
from X2,201.52 million in FY 2022-23 to %6,347.36 million in FY 2023-24, marking a 188.27%
growth. This substantial increase is reflected in the percentage of total revenue, which
increased from 98.28% to 99.85%.

Other Income: Other income, however, decreased from %38.61 million (1.72% of total revenue)
to X9.76 million (0.15% of total revenue). This indicates a greater reliance on core operations for
income.

Cost of Construction: The cost of construction rose to %4,163.97 million, accounting for 65.50%
of total revenue, compared to %3,344.28 million, which was 149.29% of total revenue in the
previous year. The relative decrease in percentage terms highlights improved efficiency in
managing construction costs.

Changes in Inventories: There was a significant shift in inventory costs, with an increase of
%126.24 million (1.99% of revenue) in FY 2023-24, compared to a substantial decrease of
%2,015.19 million (-89.96% of revenue) in FY 2022-23. This suggests better inventory
management or increased demand for finished goods.
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Employee Benefit Expense: Employee benefit expenses slightly decreased from X170.83 million
(7.63% of revenue) to X167.02 million (2.63% of revenue), indicating better control over
personnel costs relative to revenue.

Finance Costs: Finance costs increased from £12.81 million (0.57% of revenue) to £31.27 million
(0.49% of revenue). Although the absolute value increased, the percentage of revenue slightly
decreased, reflecting effective financing strategies amidst higher revenues.

Depreciation and Amortization: These expenses rose from X2.71 million (0.12% of revenue) to
%11.38 million (0.18% of revenue), indicating increased capital investments.

Profit Before Tax: The profit before tax increased substantially to X1,651.10 million (25.97% of
revenue) from %667.73 million (29.81% of revenue). Despite the increase in absolute terms, the
percentage of revenue slightly decreased, indicating higher operational costs.

Profit for the Year: The net profit for the year increased to %1,228.08 million, accounting for
19.32% of revenue, compared to 507.66 million, which was 22.66% of revenue in the previous
year. Although there is a slight decrease in profit margin, the significant increase in absolute profit
indicates a strong overall performance.

The company has shown remarkable growth in revenue and profitability for the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2024. Despite some increases in operational costs and a decrease in other income, the
company's core business operations have expanded substantially. Improved cost management
and efficiency in operations have contributed to this strong financial performance.

CASH FLOWS

The table below summarizes our cash flows for the consolidated operations for the year ended March 31,
2024 and 2023.

Particulars 31-03-2024 | 31-03-2023
Net cash generated by operating activities 1014.88 -987.04
Net cash used in investing activities -121.94 291.96
Net cash (used in) / generated by financing activities -828.56 835.69
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 64.38 140.61
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CHALLENGES AND CONSTRAINTS FACED BY REAL ESTATE MARKET

ARKADE DEVELOPERS LTD.
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Mumbai, a bustling megacity, faces a multitude of challenges in its real estate landscape. High property
prices have become a significant barrier for middle-income and lower-income groups, making it
increasingly difficult for them to afford housing within the city. The limited availability of land exacerbates
this problem, leading to a prevalence of high-rise constructions and fierce competition for available plots.
The city's ever-increasing population density has resulted in overcrowding and congestion in many areas,
putting strain on people's quality of life and placing additional pressure on existing infrastructure.
Speaking of infrastructure, Mumbai's development is often hampered by bottlenecks such as traffic
congestion, limited public transport options, and a lack of essential amenities. Efforts to rehabilitate slums
also face various challenges, including land acquisition, rehabilitation, and funding hurdles.

The real estate industry faces a complex array of challenges that require strategic foresight and
adaptability. Foremost among these is the potential reversal of gains made in the fight against inflation.
While central banks worldwide have successfully lowered inflation through coordinated interest rate
hikes, any resurgence could necessitate further rate increases, impacting mortgage rates. However, the
industry's resilience is evident in its ability to maintain volume growth despite steep rate hikes,
underpinned by strong structural demand and the floating rate nature of Indian mortgages. Economic
slowdown presents another significant risk, as housing demand is intrinsically linked to job sentiments,

The economic slowdown poses another risk, particularly affecting job sentiments linked to housing
demand. The steep rate hikes in FY23 slowed growth in advanced economies, impacting sectors like IT
services in India through hiring freezes. Nonetheless, India is projected to be the fastest-growing major
economy with an estimated 7% growth rate for FY25. Signs of recovery are emerging as sector leaders
resume hiring, and government initiatives like 'Make in India' are creating new job opportunities in
industries such as semiconductors and electric mobility. These structural drivers of housing demand are
expected to offset the impact of global economic slowdowns. The company remains vigilant, ready to
adjust its new launches to respond to changing economic dynamics.

The cyclical nature of the real estate industry, influenced by macroeconomic factors, government
regulations, and supply-demand dynamics, is another risk. The current upcycle may pause, affecting the
overall business. However, India's transition to a middle-income economy presents a multi-decadal
growth opportunity. The company's strategy includes maintaining a robust balance sheet with controlled
leverage (below 0.5x Net D/E) to ensure resilience and capitalize on opportunities during downturns.

Climate risk is another concern, with the company committed to global leadership in sustainability
practices. Efforts include reducing emissions, using sustainable materials, and achieving carbon neutrality.
These initiatives demonstrate a commitment to creating a sustainable and profitable future.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company established an in-house internal audit department to carry out robust internal
audits of Arkade Group. The observations of internal auditors and their recommendations are
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presented to the Audit Committee of the Company. Also, the implementation of
recommendations of internal auditors are reviewed during monthly review meetings and
reported to the Board of Directors’ Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Group has clearly
defined roles and responsibilities for all managerial positions. Its operating parameters are
monitored and controlled effectively through FAR Vision software system. This enables effective
utilisation of FAR Vision for implementing efficient internal controls and timely reporting of
financial and operational information.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company believes that the quality of its employees is the key to its success and is committed
to providing necessary human-resource development and training opportunities to equip
employees with additional skills to enable them to adapt to contemporary technological
advancement and evolving workplace requirements. Our learning-management system plays an
active role in standardising and digitisation of few processes that are crucial to various work
functions, such as administration, documentation, tracking and reporting of the various learning
and development and training programmes for employees.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Boards’ Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the
Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be ‘forward-
looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual
results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could
make a difference to the Company’s operations include global and Indian demand/supply
conditions, finished-goods prices, feedstock availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing
in the Company’s principal markets, changes in government regulations, tax regimes, economic
developments within India and the countries within which the Company conducts business and
other factors such as litigation and labour negotiations. The Company is not obliged to publicly
amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statement on the basis of any subsequent
development, information or events or otherwise.
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“Annexure B”
The Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy
and projects or programs:

CSR Policy will be termed as Arkade Corporate Social Responsibilities Policy and it outlines
the Company’s philosophy and responsibility as a corporate citizen of India and lays down
the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programmes for welfare &
sustainable development of the community, in and around its area of operations and other
parts of the country.

With achieving success to a certain degree at the Company, we also take on some additional
social responsibilities and will be conducting certain social activities as per the CSR policy
prescribed.

The Company endeavor to engage with dependable institutions, Public Trust NGO’s, and
other foundations to leverage their expertise, networks and relationships in implementing
the CSR initiatives.

Overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken:

Activities proposed to be undertaken under CSR shall be activities mentioned in Schedule VII
of Section 135(3) (a) of the companies Act 2013 which largely shall focus on following areas:

Promoting Preventive Healthcare and sanitation
b. Make available safe drinking Water
c. Social Empowerment
d. Promoting education, Including Special education, and employment enhancing vocation
skills
2. The Composition of CSR Committee

Sr. | Name of the Member Designation
No.
1 Amit Mangilal Jain Chairman

a | Arkade House, Next to Children's Academy, t | D22 28853787 / 2BBE37HS
A5 Marg, Ashak Nagar, Kandivali (E), f 022 28874742
Mumbai 400 101, Maharashtra, India & info@arkade.in
w | wwwarkadein
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{Farmarky known as Arkade Developars Put, Lid ]

2 Arpit Vikram Jain Member
3 Hiren Tanna Member

3. Web-link(s) where composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company:
Composition of Committee: https: i mposition-of-board-and-commitee

CSR Policy: https://arkade.in/csr-disclosures/
CSR Projects: https://arkade.in/csr/

4, Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not
Applicable

5. A. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs.
52,36,66,108/-

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section
135.: Rs. 1,04,73,322/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years: Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+ (c) - (d)]:
B. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than

Ongoing Project): X
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: X
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b) +(c)]: X
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

2 | Arkade House, Next to Children's Academy, t | 022 28863787 / 28863785
| AS.Marg, Ashok Magar, Kandivall (E), f 022 28874742
| Mumbai 400 101, Maharashtra, India e  infodarkade.in
w  wwwarkadein



6. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (Two percent of the

CIM: U45200MH 1986PLCO39E13

Rupees):

Ul

7. Details of CSR spend for the financial year:

ARKADE DEVELOPERS LTD.

(Forrarly known s Arkeds Developers Pur, Led

amount as in item 3 above in

1 [ (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sr. | CSR project or | Sector in | Projects or | Amount Amount spent | Cumulative | Amount
No | activity which programs outlay on the | expenditure | spent: Direct
Identified the (1) Local | (budget) | projects or |up to to the | or through
Project | area or other | project or | programs reporting implementing
is (2) Specify | programs | Sub-heads: (1) | period agency *
covered | the State and | wise Direct
Projects | district expenditure
or where on projects or
program | projects or programs (2)
s programs Overheads:
was
undertaken
1 setting up homes | Apna Rajasthan 6,00,000 | Direct 6,00,000 6,00,000
and hostels for | Ghar expenditure
orphans on projects
or programs
2 | setting up homes | Bal Asha | Maharashtra | 8,50,000 | Direct 8,50,000 8,50,000
and hostels for | Trust expenditure
orphans on projects
or programs
3 Promoting Sajjan Maharashtra | 46,88,175 | Direct 46,88,175 46,88,175
education, Jain expenditure
including special | Trust on projects
education and or programs
employment
enhancing
vocation  skills

especially among
children, women,
elderly and the
differently abled
and livelihood
enhancement

a | Arkade House, Mext to Children’s Academy,

ASMarg, Ashok Magar, Kandivali (E},
| Mumbai 400 101, Maharashtra, India

I | 022 28874742
e | Info@arkade.in
wl wwwarkadein
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projects.

promoting Desire Maharashtra | 2,50,000 | Direct 2,50,000 2,50,000
health care | Society expenditure

including on projects

preventive or programs

health care

promoting Tata Maharashtra | 55,98,062 | Direct 55,98,062 55,98,062
health care | Memori expenditure

including al on projects

preventive Hospital or programs

health care

Promoting Akshar | Maharashtra | 25,000 | Direct 25,000 25,000
education, Dhara expenditure

including special | Foundat on projects

education and | ion or programs

employment

enhancing

vocation  skills

especially among

children

8.

In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of
the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the
reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report - NA

A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the
Company.

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance
with CSR objectives and CSR policy of the Company.

For ARKADE DEVELOPERS LTD
(Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Pvt. Ltd.)

AMIT JAIN ARPIT VIKRAM JAIN
MANAGING DIRECTOR WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR

DIN: 00139764 DIN: 06899631

2 | Arkade Heuse, Next to Childrens Academy, t | 022 28863787 / 23863785
| ASMarg, Ashok Magar, Kandivali (E). f | 022 18874742
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“ANNEXURE-C"

FORM NO. AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

containing salient

features of

the

subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”":

ubsidiari

financial

» | ARKADE DEVELOPERS LTD.

ity as Arkack Developers Pyl Lid))

statement of

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sr. Particulars Details
No.
1. Name of the subsidiary as Arkade Paradigm Arkade Realty
partnership firm
The date since when subsidiary was | 11-04-2014 24-03-2011
acquired
3. Reporting period for the subsidiary | - -
concerned, if different from the
holding company’s reporting period
4, Reporting currency and Exchange | - -
rate as on the last date of the
relevant financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries
5. Share capital 7,05,694 32,10,000
6. Reserves & surplus . ¥
7. Total assets 1206177.90 32,21,000
8. Total Liabilities 1206177.90 32,21,000
9, Investments -
10. Turnover = =
1. Profit before taxation (1,36,960.56) -
12. Provision for taxation -
13. Profit after taxation (1,36,960.56) (10,24,361)
14, Proposed Dividend - -
15 Extent of shareholding (in | 95% 70%
percentage)

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations. NA
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. NA

a | Arkade House, Next to Children's Academy, t
AS Marg, Ashok Nagar, Kandivall (E), f
Mumbal 400 107, Maharashtra, India e

w
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[LF ol 0 L - r
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Bhoomi & Arkade | Atul & Arkade
Associate- Realty-Partnership
Partnership Firm | Firm

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 2024 2024

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint | 01/10/2010 11/04/2012
Venture was associated or acquired

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures | - -
held by the company on the year end

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint | (32.75) 1697.26

Venture

Extend of Holding (in percentage) 34% 40%

4, Description of how there is | Holding holding
significant influence

5. Reason why the associate/joint NA NA

venture is not consolidated
6. Profit/Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation - S
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 4,49,16,518 41231

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. NIL
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year-
* Arkade Adobe LLP Strike off w.e.f December 2023

a | Arkade House, Next to Children's Academy, t | D22 289863787 / 2BBGITES
ASMarg, Ashok MNagar, Kandivall {E), f | 022 28874742
Mumbai 400 101, Maharashtra, India e | info@arkade.in
w | wwwarkadein
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Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be
certified.

For ARKADE DEVELOPERS LTD
(Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Pvt. Ltd.)

AMIT JAIN ARPIT VIKRAM JAIN
MANAGING DIRECTOR WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR
DIN: 00139764 DIN: 06899631

a | Arkade House, Next to Children's Acadermy, t | 022 28853787 / 28863785
A5 Marg, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (E), f | 022 28874742
Mumbai 400 101, Maharashira, India & | infogarkadein
w wwwarkadein
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“ANNEXURE - D"

FORM NO. AOC-2

Form for disclosure o ngrtlgulgrs of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the company
w1 h rel ies referr - 1) of 1 f i
Tudi rm’s length tr. ions under hlrd rovi I

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of NA
relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in

general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s

length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any

a | Arkade House, Next to Childrens Academy,
AS.Marg, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (E),
Mumbal 400 101, Maharashitra, India

022 28863787 / 28863785
022 28874742
info@markade.ln
www.arkadein
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(f) Amount paid as advances, if any

For ARKADE DEVELOPERS LTD
(Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Pvt. Ltd.)

¥
AMIT JAIN ARPIT VIKRAM JAIN
MANAGING DIRECTOR WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR
DIN: 00139764 DIN: 06899631

PLACE: MUMBAI |
DATE: | 2™ July, 2024

a | Arkade House, Next to Children's Academy, t | 022 28B63787 / 2BB63IVES
| AS.Marg, Ashok Magar, Kandivali (E), f | 022 28874742
| Mumbai 400 101, Maharashtra, India & Info@arkade.in
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Kala @garwal

B.Com, FCS

Company Secretary & Insolvency Professional (IBBI/IPA-D02/IP-NO0841/2019-2020/12734)
801, Embassy Centre, Jamnalal Bajaj Road, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021.
Email: admin@kalaagarwal.com - Contact: 022 22824639 / 59 + Mob.: 9819888185

Form No - MR- 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED
Arkade House, Opp. Bhoomi Arkade,
Near Children's Academy, A S Marg,
Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (E),

Mumbai - 400101.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Arkade
Developers Limited (hereinafter called the ‘Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

ﬁ
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Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that
in our opinion, the company has during the audit period covering the Financial
Year ended on 315t March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by Arkade Developers Limited for the financial year ended on 31+
March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(iii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA) and the rules made
thereunder; (Not applicable to the Company as it is an Unlisted Public
Limited Company);

(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

(v}  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder;

(vi) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') viz. (Not applicable to the Company as it
is an Unlisted Public Limited Company}:

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d}  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014,

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations. 2008;

(H The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009;

M
Secretarial Audit Report Page 2 of 6
Arkade Developers Limited - 31«t March, 2024



(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998; and
(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(vi) The other laws applicable to the Company are as follows:

Factories Act, 1948

Payment of Wages Act, 1936

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

The Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules & regulations made there under.

Explosives Act, 1884

Essential Commodities Act, 1955

Indian Boilers Act, 1923

Energy Conservation Act, 2001

Environment Protection Act, 1986

The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution}) Act, 1974

The Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Trans boundary

Movement) Rules, 2008

The Employees' Compensation Act, 1923

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

Maharashtra State tax on professions, trades, callings and Employments Act,

1975

Bombay Shops & Establishments Act, 1948

The Land Acquisition Act, 1894

Consumer Protection Act, 1986

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013

o Monitoring compliance with the operational practices and policies relating to
anti-corruption and prevention of bribery in the organization.

o Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Central Rules, 1971.

o Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923.

o The Maharashtra State tax on Professions, Trades, Callings and Employments
Act, 1975.

O 0 0 600 0O 0o 0 0 O 0o 0 0 o0

O 0O 0 0 0 0 0O

o 0o O O
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The Bombay Shops & Establishment Act, 1948.

Industries (Development & Regulation) Act, 1951.

Noise Pollution (Regulation and Control) Rules, 2000.

Water (Prevention and Contro! of Pollution) Cess Act, 1977 and Water

(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Rules, 1978.

o Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Trans-boundry Movement)

Rules, 2008.

Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989.

Ozone Depleting Substances (Regulation and Control) Rules, 2000

Static and Mobile Pressure Vessels (Unfired) Rules, 1981 as amended by the

SMPV (U) Rules, 1999

Explosives Act, 1884 and the Indian Explosives Rules, 1983

Batteries ( Management and Handling) Rules 2001

Bombay Electricity Duty Act, 1958.

Custom Act, 1952 and its Rules.

Master Circular on Import Goods and Services (Master Circular No. 13/2014-

15 dated July 01, 2014.)

o Foreign Exchange Management (Manner of Receipt and Payment)
Regulations, 2000.

o Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992 and Foreign Trade
(Regulation) Rules, 1993.

o Foreign Trade Policy 2009-2014 & Handbook of Procedures (Foreign Trade
Procedures).

o Income Tax Act, 1961 and Income Tax Rules, 1962.

o Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 & Central Sales Tax (Registration & Turnover)
Rules, 1957.

o The Integrated Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017, The Central Goods and

Service Tax Act, 2017 and State Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 and its

Rules, 2017

Q O 0 0 0O

Q

O 0 0 O O

We have also examined compliance of

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) Listing agreement entered into by the Company. (Not applicable to the Company as it
is an Unlisted Public Limited Company)

M
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During the year under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent

Directors during the year under review.

Adequate notice is given to the directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority
decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

(K

KALA AGARWAL

Practising Company Secretary
CP No.: 5356
UDIN: FO05976F000742877

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12t July, 2024

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ANNEXURE A’
and forms an integral part of this report.
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‘ANNEXURE - A’

To,

The Members,

ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED
Arkade House, Opp. Bhoomi Arkade,
Near Children's Academy, A S Marg,
Ashok Nagar, Kandivali (E),

Mumbai - 400101.

Our report of event date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate
to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents
of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the company.

4, Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable
laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility  of

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

KALA AGARWAL
Practising Company Secretary
CP No.: 5356

UDIN: FO0O5976F000742877

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12t july, 2024

Secretarial Audit Report Page 6 of 6
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B8.Com, FCS

Company Secretary & Insolvency Professional (IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00841/2019-2020/12734)
B01, Embassy Centre, Jamnalal Bajaj Road, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021,
Email: admin@kalaagarwal.com = Contact: 022 22824639 / 59 + Mob.: 9819888185

Form No. MGT-8
[Pursuant to section 92(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 11(2) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CERTIFICATE BY A COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

I have examined the registers, records and books and papers of Arkade Developers
Ltd. (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Pvt. Ltd.) (the Company), CIN:
U45200MH1986PLC039813 as required to be maintained under the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2024. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the
examinations carried out by me and explanations furnished to me by the Company, its
officers and agents, I certify that:

A. The Annual Return states the facts as at the close of the aforesaid financial year
correctly and adequately.

B. During the aforesaid financial year the Company has complied with provisions of the
Act & Rules made there under in respect of:

1. Based on the data provided by the Company and its Officer and the data available on
website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the Company has generally
complied with the all provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder regarding the
status of the Company under the Act;

2. The Company has kept and maintained registers as per the provisions of the Act and
the rules made thereunder and entries therein have been properly recorded within
the time limits prescribed therefor;

3. The Company has filed the forms and returns as stated in the Annual return, with
the Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, and Central Government, Company
Law Board or other authorities within the time prescribed under the Act and the
rules made thereunder.

4. (1) The Board of Directors met at least 19 times in the year and not more than one
hundred and twenty days intervened between two consecutive meetings of the
Board, during the year under review. In respect of these meetings, notices were



given and the proceedings were recorded and signed in the Minutes Book
maintained for the purpose. No circular resolution was passed during the year under
scrutiny.

(Il)The Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on 31st March 2023
was held on 28t September 2023 after giving requisite notices to the members of
the Company and the resolutions passed thereat were recorded in Minutes Book
maintained for the purpose and duly signed by the Chairperson;

(III) The Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held on 12th April 2023, 5% June,
2023, 12t June, 2023, 06t July, 2023, 31st July, 2023, 18™ August, 2023 and
29 November, 2023 after giving requisite notices to the members of the Company
and the resolutions passed thereat were recorded in Minutes Book maintained for
the purpose and duly signed by the Chairperson;

. The Company was not required to close its Register of Members during the financial
year under review;

. The Company has not given any advances/loans to persons or firms or Companies
referred to in section 185 of the Act.

. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 188 of the Act in respect
of contracts/arrangements with related parties as specified in section;

. (I) There were no instances of buyback of securities or redemption of preference
shares or debentures or alteration or reduction of share capital or conversion of
shares/ securities and issue of security certificates during the financial year under
review. During the year the Company allotted 15,00,00,000 Bonus Equity Shares to
the Shareholders and has generally complied with the all provisions of the Act and
rules made thereunder regarding allotment of shares;

(11} There were no transmission of shares and securities during the financial year.
During the year there were transfer of shares as mentioned in below table and the
Company has generally complied with the all provisions of the Act and rules made
thereunder regarding transfer of shares;

Share Transfer as on 11% April, 2023

Sr. No. No of | Name of the Transferor | Name of the Transferee
Equity
Shares

1 1 Amit Jain Arpit Jain

2 1 Sandeep Jain

3 1 Aarin Ambavat

4 1 Simran Arpit Jain

5 1 Sneha Sandeep Jain




Share Transfer as on 22t August, 2023

Sr. No. No of | Name of the Transferor | Name of the Transferee
Equity
Shares

1 12919924 | Amit Jain Mr. Mangilal Jain

2 12919924 Mrs. Sajjan Jain

9. There were no transactions necessitating the Company to keep in abeyance rights to
dividends, right shares, and bonus shares pending registration of transfer of shares;

10.(I) The Company was not required to deposit any amount in a separate Bank
Account during the financial year as no dividend was declared,

(1) The Company was not required to issue any Dividend Warrants during the
financial year as no dividend was declared,

) There was no amount lying in the unpaid dividend account which was required to
be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund. Further, there was no,
application money due for refund or matured deposits or matured debentures,
required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund;

11. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 134 of the Act, with
regard to the signing of audited financial statements and report of directors thereon
as per sub-section (3), (4), and (5) of Section 134;

12. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. All the requirements
relating to appointments/ re-appointment/ resignation/ retirement/ disclosures of
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and the remuneration paid to them, during
the financial year under review have duly complied;

13. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 139 of the Act, with
regards to the appointment, reappointment, and filling-up of a casual vacancy of
auditors during the financial year under review.

14.The Company was not required to obtain any approvals from the Central
Government, Tribunal, Regional Director, Court, or such other authorities under the
various provisions of the Act during the Financial Year under review;

15. The Company has not invited/accepted or renewed any deposits falling within the
purview of section 73 during the financial year under review;



16. The Company has made borrowings from its Directors, Members, public financial
institutions, banks and others falling within the purview of section 180 during the
financial year under review and the Company has generally complied with the all
provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder regarding transfer of shares.

17. During the financial year under review the Company has not advanced any loans or
provided any guarantee the Company under the provisions of section 186 of the
Act. The Company has made non-current-investments and has generally complied
with the all provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.

18. During the financial year under review, the Company amended its Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association as per the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company transitioned from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited Company
and increased its Authorized Share Capital from Rs. 2,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Crore)
to Rs. 18500,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Eighty Five Crore), The Company has
generally complied with the all provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.

Kala Agarwal

Practicing Company Secretary
CP No: 5356

UDIN: F005976F000956475

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12/08/2024



